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itt
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re
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m
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Bo
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pr
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re
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de
pe
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en
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re
ct
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ec
ut
iv
e
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r
Li
m
Si
an
g
Ka
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de
pe
nd
en
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Di
re
ct
or
an
d
no
tp
ar
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ft
he
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en
tt
ea
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e
In
de
pe
nd
en
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ire
ct
or
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e
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at
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ne
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e
is
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ro
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in
de
pe
nd
en
te
le
m
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n
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Bo
ar
d
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no
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al
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al
lg
ro
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of
in
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vi
du
al
sd
om
in
at
e
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e
Bo
ar
d’
sd
ec
is
io
n-
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in
g
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s.
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e
au
th
or
ity

to
ex
am
in
e
pa
rti
cu
la
r

is
su
es
an
d
wi
ll
re
po
rt
ba
ck
to
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g
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g
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u
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M
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r
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m
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g
Hu
at

Li
m
Si
an
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m
Ch
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g
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M
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u
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ck
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m
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g
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1.
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at
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d
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ip
at
e
in

Bo
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d
an
d
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m
m
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m
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m
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re
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m
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d
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m
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le
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fe
re
nc
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d
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o
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nf
er
en
ci
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m
ee
tin
gs
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pe
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itt
ed
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de
r
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e
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m
pa
ny
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tit
ut
io
n
(“C
on
st
itu
tio
n”
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ad
di
tio
n
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ho
ld
in
g
m
ee
tin
gs
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m
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nt
m
at
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ga
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in
g
th
e
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p
ar
e
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e
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is
io
n
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m
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e
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at
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an
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A
R
C

N
C

R
C

G
en

er
al

M
ee

tin
g

N
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be
r
of

m
ee

ti
ng

s
he

ld
2

2
1

1
1

N
am

e
of
di
re
ct
or

Li
m
Si
an
g
Ka
i

2
2

1
1

1
On
g
Yo
ke
En

2
2*

1*
1*

1
Li
m
La
yY
on
g

2
2*

1*
1*

1
Ha
u
Ho
ck
Kh
un

2
2

1
1

-
Li
m
Ch
on
g
Hu
at

2
2

1
1

1
Da
to
’L
oh
Sh
in
Si
on
g

2
2*

1*
1*

1
Da
to
’C
ha
ng
Ch
or
Ch
oo
ng

2
2*

1*
1*

1
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y
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vi
ta
tio
n

20ANNUAL REPORT 2024/ SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED



CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

P
ro
vi
si
on

Co
de

D
es
cr
ip
ti
on

Co
m
pa

ny
’s

Co
m
pl
ia
nc

e
or

Ex
pl
an

at
io
n

1.
6

M
an
ag
em
en
t
pr
ov
id
es

di
re
ct
or
s

wi
th
co
m
pl
et
e,
ad
eq
ua
te
an
d
tim

el
y

in
fo
rm
at
io
n
pr
io
r
to
m
ee
tin
gs

an
d

on
an

on
-g
oi
ng

ba
si
s
to

en
ab
le

th
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at
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at
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m
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7

D
ir
ec
to
rs
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se
pa
ra
te

an
d
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de
pe
nd
en
ta
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an
ag
em
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th
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m
pa
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se
cr
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ar
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an
d
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te
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al
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vi
se
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(w
he
re
ne
ce
ss
ar
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at
th
e
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m
pa
ny
’s
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pe
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e.

Th
e
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po
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tm
en
t
an
d
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m
ov
al

of
th
e

co
m
pa
ny

se
cr
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ar
y
is
a
de
ci
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on

of
th
e
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ar
d
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a
wh
ol
e.

Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
Se
cr
et
ar
y
an
d/
or
a
re
pr
es
en
ta
tiv
e
of
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
Se
cr
et
ar
y
at
te
nd
s
al
lm
ee
tin
gs

of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
Bo
ar
d
Co
m
m
itt
ee
s
of
th
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m
pa
ny
an
d
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su
re
s
th
at
Bo
ar
d
pr
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ed
ur
es
ar
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fo
llo
we
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an
d
th
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ab
le
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an
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re
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he

m
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Bo
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Bo
ar
d
Co
m
m
itt
ee
s’
m
ee
tin
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ar
e
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rc
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th
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Bo
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d.
Th
e
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m
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ny
Se
cr
et
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y
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re
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bl
e
fo
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he
pr
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er
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en
an
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th
e
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Bo
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an
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itt
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m
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tin
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at
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di
re
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or
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e
se
pa
ra
te

an
d
in
de
pe
nd
en
t
ac
ce
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to
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
Se
cr
et
ar
y.
Th
e
ap
po
in
tm
en
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nd

th
e
re
m
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of
th
e
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m
pa
ny
Se
cr
et
ar
y
ar
e
su
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ec
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o
th
e
Bo
ar
d’
s
ap
pr
ov
al
.

Al
lD
ire
ct
or
s
ha
ve
di
re
ct
ac
ce
ss
to
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
in
de
pe
nd
en
tp
ro
fe
ss
io
na
la
dv
is
or
s,
as
an
d
wh
en

ne
ce
ss
ar
y,
to
di
sc
ha
rg
e
hi
s/
he
r
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s
ef
f
ec
tiv
el
y.
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ad
di
tio
n,
th
e
Di
re
ct
or
s,
ei
th
er

in
di
vi
du
al
ly
or
as
a
gr
ou
p,
m
ay
se
ek
se
pa
ra
te
in
de
pe
nd
en
tp
ro
fe
ss
io
na
la
dv
ic
e,
if
ne
ce
ss
ar
y.
Th
e

co
st
of
al
ls
uc
h
pr
of
es
si
on
al
ad
vi
ce
is
bo
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e
by
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
.

In
fo
rm

at
io
n

Fr
eq
ue
nc
y

1
Bo
ar
d
pa
pe
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d
ha
lf
ye
ar
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f
i
na
nc
ia
lp
os
iti
on
,i
nc
lu
di
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e
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pl
an
at
io
n
on
th
e
va
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es

Ha
lf
ye
ar
ly
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Re
po
rt
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on
-g
oi
ng
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d
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at
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Ha
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te
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d
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re
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re
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d
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at
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m
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at
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p
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p
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in
k
an
d
fo
st
er
co
ns
tru
ct
iv
e

de
ba
te
.
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d
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e
NC

is
re
sp
on
si
bl
e
fo
r
ex
am
in
in
g
th
e
si
ze

an
d
co
m
po
si
tio
n
of

th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
Bo
ar
d

Co
m
m
itt
ee
s.
Ha
vi
ng

co
ns
id
er
ed

th
e
sc
op
e
an
d
na
tu
re
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
bu
si
ne
ss
es
,
an
d
th
e

re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
of
th
e
bu
si
ne
ss
an
d
th
e
ne
ed

to
av
oi
d
un
du
e
di
sr
up
tio
ns
fro
m
ch
an
ge
s
to
th
e

co
m
po
si
tio
n
of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
Bo
ar
d
Co
m
m
itt
ee
s,
th
e
Bo
ar
d,
in
co
nc
ur
re
nc
e
wi
th
th
e
NC
,

be
lie
ve
s
th
at
its

cu
rr
en
t
bo
ar
d
si
ze

an
d
th
e
ex
is
tin
g
co
m
po
si
tio
n
of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
Co
m
m
itt
ee
s

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y
se
rv
e
th
e
Gr
ou
p.
It
pr
ov
id
es
su
ffi
ci
en
t
di
ve
rs
ity

wi
th
ou
t
in
te
rfe
rin
g
wi
th
ef
fic
ie
nt

de
cis
io
n-
m
ak
in
g.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
NC

ta
ke
in
to
ac
co
un
t,
in
te
ra
lia
,t
he
Di
re
ct
or
s’
co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns
,a
re
as
of
ex
pe
rti
se

an
d
sc
op
e
of
wo
rk
on

an
an
nu
al
ba
si
s
in
ev
al
ua
tin
g
wh
et
he
r
th
e
Bo
ar
d’
s
co
m
po
si
tio
n
is

ad
eq
ua
te
.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
NC

ar
e
sa
tis
fie
d
th
at
th
e
cu
rr
en
tB
oa
rd
’s
si
ze
an
d
co
m
po
si
tio
n
ar
e
ap
pr
op
ria
te

fo
r
th
e
Gr
ou
p.
Th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
th
e
NC

ar
e
al
so

of
th
e
vi
ew

th
at
th
e
pr
es
en
t
Bo
ar
d
ha
s
th
e

ap
pr
op
ria
te
m
ix
of
ex
pe
rti
se
,e
xp
er
ie
nc
e
an
d
co
m
pe
te
nc
ie
s
su
ch
as
ac
co
un
tin
g
or
fin
an
ce
,l
eg
al
,

bu
sin
es
s
or
m
an
ag
em
en
te
xp
er
ie
nc
e
an
d
in
du
st
ry
kn
ow
le
dg
e
fo
rt
he
ef
fe
ct
ive

fu
nc
tio
ni
ng
of
th
e

Bo
ar
d.
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P
ro
vi
si
on

Co
de

D
es
cr
ip
ti
on

Co
m
pa

ny
’s

Co
m
pl
ia
nc

e
or

Ex
pl
an

at
io
n

Th
e
cu
rr
en
tB
oa
rd
co
m
po
si
tio
n
pr
ov
id
es
a
di
ve
rs
ity
of
sk
ill
s,
ex
pe
rie
nc
e
an
d
kn
ow
le
dg
e
to
th
e

Gr
ou
p
as
fo
llo
ws
:

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
ha
st
ak
en
th
e
fo
llo
wi
ng
st
ep
st
o
m
ai
nt
ai
n
or
en
ha
nc
e
its
ba
la
nc
e
an
d
di
ve
rs
ity
:


Th
e
NC

re
vi
ew
s
th
e
ex
is
tin
g
at
tri
bu
te
s
an
d
co
m
pe
te
nc
ie
s
of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
at
le
as
t
on
ce
a

ye
ar
in
or
de
rt
o
de
te
rm
in
e
th
e
de
si
re
d
ex
pe
rti
se
or
ex
pe
rie
nc
e
re
qu
ire
d
to
st
re
ng
th
en
or

su
pp
le
m
en
tt
he
Bo
ar
d;
an
d


Ev
al
ua
tio
n
by

th
e
Di
re
ct
or
s
at
le
as
t
on
ce
a
ye
ar
of
th
e
sk
ill
se
ts
th
e
ot
he
r
Di
re
ct
or
s

po
ss
es
s,
wi
th
a
vi
ew

to
un
de
rs
ta
nd
in
g
th
e
ra
ng
e
of
ex
pe
rti
se
wh
ic
h
is
la
ck
in
g
by

th
e

Bo
ar
d.

At
th
e
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n
of
th
e
NC
,t
he
bo
ar
d
ha
s
ad
op
te
d
th
e
bo
ar
d
di
ve
rs
ity
po
lic
y.
In
te
rm
s

of
ge
nd
er
,a
ge
an
d
et
hn
ic
di
ve
rs
ity
,t
he
Co
m
pa
ny
di
d
no
ts
et
an
y
sp
ec
ifi
c
ta
rg
et
no
rt
im
el
in
e

as
it
is
of
th
e
vi
ew

th
at
th
is
is
la
rg
el
y
de
pe
nd
en
to
n
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
’s
bu
si
ne
ss
re
qu
ire
m
en
ta
nd

ne
ed
s.
No
ne
th
el
es
s,
it
is
co
m
m
i tt
ed
to
pr
om
ot
in
g
bo
ar
dr
oo
m
di
ve
rs
ity
,w
ith

th
e
ke
y
ob
je
ct
iv
e

of
wo
rk
in
g
to
wa
rd
s
st
re
ng
th
en
in
g
th
e
Bo
ar
d
as
a
wh
ol
e.

Th
e
NC

wi
ll
co
ns
id
er
th
e
re
su
lts
of
th
es
e
ex
er
ci
se
si
n
its
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n
fo
rt
he
ap
po
in
tm
en
to
f

ne
w
di
re
ct
or
s
an
d/
or

th
e
re
-a
pp
oi
nt
m
en
t
of
in
cu
m
be
nt
di
re
ct
or
s.
Ta
ke
n
in
to
ac
co
un
t
th
e

na
tu
re
an
d
sc
op
e
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
bu
si
ne
ss
an
d
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
bo
ar
d
co
m
m
itt
ee
s,
th
e
Bo
ar
d

be
lie
ve
s
th
at
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
si
ze

of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
th
e
Bo
ar
d
co
m
po
si
tio
n
pr
ov
id
e
su
ffi
ci
e n
t

di
ve
rs
ity

wi
th
ou
t
in
te
rfe
rin
g
wi
th
th
e
ef
fic
ie
nt
de
ci
si
on

m
ak
in
g.
Th
e
Bo
ar
d
cu
rr
en
tly

ha
s
on
e

fe
m
al
e
re
pr
es
en
ta
tio
n
on

th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
ou
r
co
re
co
m
pe
te
nc
ie
s
ar
e
sh
ow
n
in
th
e
ta
bl
e
ab
ov
e.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d,
pa
rti
cu
la
rly
th
e
In
de
pe
nd
en
tD
ire
ct
or
s,
wh
ich

ar
e
No
n-
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
s,
m
us
tb
e

ke
pt
we
ll
in
fo
rm
ed
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
bu
si
ne
ss
an
d
be
kn
ow
le
dg
ea
bl
e
ab
ou
tt
he
in
du
st
ry
th
e
Gr
ou
p

op
er
at
es
in
.T
o
en
su
re
th
at
th
e
In
de
pe
nd
en
tD
ire
ct
or
s
ar
e
we
ll
su
pp
or
te
d
by
ac
cu
ra
te
,c
om
pl
et
e

an
d
tim

el
y
in
fo
rm
at
io
n,
th
ey
ha
ve
un
re
st
ric
te
d
ac
ce
ss
to
M
an
ag
em
en
t,
an
d
ha
ve
su
ffi
ci
en
tt
im
e

an
d
re
so
ur
ce
st
o
di
sc
ha
rg
e
th
ei
ro
ve
rs
ig
ht
fu
nc
tio
ns
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y.

Co
re

C
om

pe
te
nc
ie
s

N
um

be
ro

fD
ir
ec
to
rs

P
ro
po
rt
io
n
of
B
oa
rd

Ac
co
un
tin
g
or
fin
an
ce

2
29
%

Bu
si
ne
ss
M
an
ag
em
en
t

7
10
0%

Le
ga
lo
rc
or
po
ra
te
ex
pe
rie
nc
e

3
43
%

Re
le
va
nt
in
du
st
ry
kn
ow
le
dg
e
or
ex
pe
rie
nc
e

2
29
%

St
ra
te
gi
cp
la
nn
in
g
ex
pe
rie
nc
e

7
10
0%

Cu
st
om
er
ba
se
d
ex
pe
rie
nc
e
or
kn
ow
le
dg
e

4
57
%
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P
ro
vi
si
on

Co
de

D
es
cr
ip
ti
on

Co
m
pa

ny
’s

Co
m
pl
ia
nc

e
or

Ex
pl
an

at
io
n

Th
is
en
ab
le
s
th
e
No
n-
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
s
to

co
ns
tru
ct
iv
el
y
ch
al
le
ng
e
an
d
he
lp

de
ve
lo
p

pr
op
os
al
s
on

st
ra
te
gy

an
d
al
so

re
vi
ew

th
e
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
of
M
an
ag
em
en
t
in
m
ee
tin
g
ag
re
ed

go
al
s
an
d
ob
je
ct
iv
es
,a
nd
ex
te
nd
gu
id
an
ce
to
M
an
ag
em
en
t.
Th
e
Di
re
ct
or
s’
ob
je
ct
iv
e
ju
dg
em
en
t

on
co
rp
or
at
e
af
fa
irs
an
d
co
lle
ct
iv
e
ex
pe
rie
nc
e
an
d
kn
ow
le
dg
e
ar
e
in
va
lu
ab
le
to
th
e
Gr
ou
p
an
d

al
lo
ws

fo
rt
he
us
ef
ul
ex
ch
an
ge
of
id
ea
s
an
d
vi
ew
s.

2.
5

No
n-

ex
ec
ut
iv
e
di
re
ct
or
s
an
d/

or
in
de
pe
nd
en
t
di
re
ct
or
s,

le
d
by

th
e
in
de
pe
nd
en
t
Ch
ai
rm
an

or
ot
he
r
in
de
pe
nd
en
t
di
re
ct
or

as
ap
pr
op
ria
te
,m

ee
t
re
gu
la
rly

wi
th
ou
t

th
e
pr
es
en
ce

of
M
an
ag
em
en
t.
Th
e

ch
ai
rm
an
of
su
ch
m
ee
tin
gs
pr
ov
id
es

fe
ed
ba
ck

to
th
e
Bo
ar
d

an
d/
or

Ch
ai
rm
an
as
ap
pr
op
ria
te
.

Th
e
In
de
pe
nd
en
tD
ire
ct
or
s
di
sc
us
s
an
d/
or
m
ee
to
n
a
ne
ed
-b
as
is
wi
th
ou
tt
he
pr
es
en
ce
of
th
e

M
an
ag
em
en
t
on

m
at
te
rs
su
ch

as
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
fin
an
ci
al
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
,
co
rp
or
at
e
go
ve
rn
an
ce

in
iti
at
iv
e s
,b
oa
rd
pr
oc
es
se
s,
su
cc
es
si
on

pl
an
ni
ng

as
we
ll
as
le
ad
er
sh
ip
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t
an
d
th
e

re
m
un
er
at
io
n
of
th
e
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
s.

Th
e
In
de
pe
nd
en
tD
ire
ct
or
s
ha
d
m
et
an
d
di
sc
us
se
d
wi
th
th
e
ex
te
rn
al
an
d
in
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
on
e

(1
)t
im
e
re
sp
ec
tiv
el
yi
n
th
e
ab
se
nc
e
of
ke
ym

an
ag
em
en
tp
er
so
nn
el
in
FY
20
24
.

Ch
ai
rm

an
an

d
Ch

ie
f
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e
O
ffffii
ce

r
Pr
in
ci
pl
e
3:
Th
er
e
is
a
cl
ea
rd
iv
is
io
n
of
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s
be
tw
ee
n
th
e
le
ad
er
sh
ip
of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
M
an
ag
em
en
t,
an
d
no
on
e
in
di
vi
du
al
ha
s
un
fe
tte
re
d

po
we
rs
of
de
ci
si
on
-m
ak
in
g.

3.
1

Th
e
Ch
ai
rm
an

an
d
th
e
CE
O

ar
e

se
pa
ra
te

pe
rs
on
s
to

en
su
re

an
ap
pr
op
ri
at
e

ba
la
nc
e

of
po
we
r,

in
cr
ea
se
d

ac
co
un
ta
bi
lit
y,

an
d

gr
ea
te
r
ca
pa
ci
ty

of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
fo
r

in
de
pe
nd
en
td
ec
is
io
n
m
ak
in
g.

Th
er
e
is
a
cl
ea
rd
iv
is
io
n
of
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s
be
tw
ee
n
th
e
Ch
ai
rm
an
an
d
CE
O,
wh
ic
h
en
su
re
s
th
er
e

is
a
ba
la
nc
e
of
po
we
r
an
d
au
th
or
ity
,
su
ch

th
at
no

on
e
in
di
vi
du
al
re
pr
es
en
ts
a
co
ns
id
er
ab
le

co
nc
en
tra
tio
n
of
po
we
r.
M
rL
im
Si
an
g
Ka
i,
th
e
No
n-
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Ch
ai
rm
an
an
d
Le
ad
In
de
pe
nd
en
t

Di
re
ct
or
,a
nd
M
rO
ng
Yo
ke
En
,t
he
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
an
d
CE
O,
ar
e
no
tr
el
at
ed
to
ea
ch
ot
he
r.

3.
2

Th
e
Bo
ar
d

es
ta
bl
is
he
s
an
d

se
ts

ou
t
in

w
ri
tin
g

th
e
di
vi
si
on

of
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s

be
tw
ee
n

th
e

Ch
ai
rm
an
an
d
th
e
CE
O.

Th
e
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s
of
M
rO
ng

Yo
ke
En
,t
he
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
an
d
CE
O,
en
co
m
pa
ss
m
an
ag
in
g

th
e
da
y-
to
-d
ay
bu
sin
es
sa
ct
ivi
tie
so
ft
he
Gr
ou
p,
de
ve
lo
pi
ng
an
d
ex
ec
ut
in
g
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
ss
tra
te
gi
es
,

re
po
rti
ng

ba
ck

to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
on

th
e
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce

of
th
e
Gr
ou
p,
an
d
pr
ov
id
in
g
gu
id
an
ce

to
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
em
pl
oy
ee
s.
Th
e
CE
O
al
so

en
co
ur
ag
es

co
ns
tru
ct
iv
e
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n
be
tw
ee
n

M
an
ag
em
en
ta
nd
th
e
Bo
ar
d.

3.
3

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
ha
s
a
le
ad

in
de
pe
nd
en
t

di
re
ct
or

to
pr
ov
id
e
le
ad
er
sh
ip

in
si
tu
at
io
ns

wh
er
e
th
e
Ch
ai
rm
an

is
co
nf
lic
te
d,

an
d
es
pe
ci
al
ly

wh
en

th
e
Ch
ai
rm
an

is
no
t
in
de
pe
nd
en
t.

Th
e
le
ad

in
de
pe
nd
en
t
di
re
ct
or

is
av
ai
la
bl
e
to
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
wh
er
e
th
ey

ha
ve
co
nc
er
ns
an
d
fo
rw
hi
ch
co
nt
ac
t

th
ro
ug
h
th
e
no
rm
al

ch
an
ne
ls

of
co
m
m
un
ica
tio
n
wi
th

th
e
Ch
ai
rm
an

or
M
an
ag
em
en
ta
re
in
ap
pr
op
ria
te
or

in
ad
eq
ua
te
.

M
rL
im
Si
an
g
Ka
i,
th
e
No
n-
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Ch
ai
rm
an
an
d
Le
ad
In
de
pe
nd
en
tD
ire
ct
or
le
ad
s
th
e
Bo
ar
d

di
sc
us
si
on

an
d
al
so
en
su
re
s
th
at
Bo
ar
d
m
ee
tin
gs
ar
e
co
nv
en
ed

wh
en

ne
ce
ss
ar
y.
He

se
ts
th
e

Bo
ar
d’
s
m
ee
tin
g
ag
en
da
an
d
en
su
re
s
th
at
Di
re
ct
or
s
ar
e
pr
ov
id
ed
wi
th
co
m
pl
et
e,
ad
eq
ua
te
an
d

tim
el
y
in
fo
rm
at
io
n.
He

ch
ai
rs
th
e
Bo
ar
d
m
ee
tin
gs
an
d
en
su
re
s
th
at
ad
eq
ua
te
tim

e
is
av
ai
la
bl
e

fo
r
di
sc
us
si
on

of
al
la
ge
nd
a
ite
m
s,
in
pa
rti
cu
la
r
st
ra
te
gi
c
is
su
es
,
an
d
pr
om
ot
es
a
cu
ltu
re
of

op
en
ne
ss
an
d
di
sc
us
si
on

at
th
e
Bo
ar
d.
He

al
so
fa
ci
lit
at
es
th
e
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
co
nt
rib
ut
io
n
of
No
n-

Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
s
an
d
pr
om
ot
es

hi
gh

st
an
da
rd
s
of
co
rp
or
at
e
go
ve
rn
an
ce
.
He

en
co
ur
ag
es

co
ns
tru
ct
iv
e
re
la
tio
ns
wi
th
in
th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
be
tw
ee
n
th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
th
e
M
an
ag
em
en
t,
as
we
ll

en
su
re
se
ffe
ct
iv
e
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
be
tw
ee
n
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
an
d
its
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
.H
e
is
th
e
co
nt
ac
t

pe
rs
on
fo
rs
ha
re
ho
ld
er
s
in
si
tu
at
io
ns
wh
er
e
th
er
e
ar
e
co
nc
er
ns
or
is
su
es
wh
ic
h
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n

th
ro
ug
h
no
rm
al
ch
an
ne
ls
wi
th
th
e
CE
O
an
d/
or
Fi
na
nc
ia
lC
on
tro
lle
r
(“F
C”
)h
as
no

re
so
lu
tio
n
or

wh
er
e
su
ch
co
m
m
un
ica
tio
n
is
in
ap
pr
op
ria
te
.H
e
wi
ll
al
so
ta
ke
th
e
le
ad
in
en
su
rin
g
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e

wi
th
th
e
Co
de
.
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P
ro
vi
si
on

Co
de

D
es
cr
ip
ti
on

Co
m
pa

ny
’s

Co
m
pl
ia
nc

e
or

Ex
pl
an

at
io
n

Bo
ar
d
M
em

be
rs
hi
p

Pr
in
ci
pl
e
4:
Th
e
Bo
ar
d
ha
s
a
fo
rm
al
an
d
tra
ns
pa
re
nt
pr
oc
es
sf
or
th
e
ap
po
in
tm
en
ta
nd
re
-a
pp
oi
nt
m
en
to
fd
ire
ct
or
s,
ta
ki
ng
in
to
ac
co
un
tt
he
ne
ed
fo
r

pr
og
re
ss
iv
e
re
ne
wa
lo
ft
he
Bo
ar
d.

4.
1

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
es
ta
bl
is
he
s
a
NC

to
m
ak
e

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns

to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
on

re
le
va
nt
m
at
te
rs
re
la
tin
g
to
:

(a)
th
e
re
vi
ew

of
su
cc
es
si
on
pl
an
s

fo
r
di
re
ct
or
s,

in
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar

th
e

ap
po
in
tm
en
t
an
d/
or

re
pl
ac
em
en
to
ft
he
Ch
ai
rm
an
,

th
e
CE
O
an
d
ke
y
m
an
ag
em
en
t

pe
rs
on
ne
l;

(b
)

th
e

pr
oc
es
s

an
d

cr
ite
ri
a

fo
r

ev
al
ua
ti
on

of
th
e

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce

of
th
e
Bo
ar
d,

its
bo
ar
d

co
m
m
itt
ee
s
an
d

di
re
ct
or
s;

(c)
th
e
re
vi
ew

of
tra
in
in
g
an
d

pr
of
es
si
on
al

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t

pr
og
ra
m
m
es

fo
r
th
e
Bo
ar
d

an
d
its
di
re
ct
or
s;
an
d

Th
e
NC

co
m
pr
is
es
th
e
In
de
pe
nd
en
tD
ire
ct
or
s,
M
rL
im
Si
an
g
Ka
i,
M
rH
au
Ho
ck
Kh
un
an
d
M
rL
im

Ch
on
g
Hu
at
.T
he
Ch
ai
rm
an
of
th
e
NC

is
M
rL
im
Ch
on
g
Hu
at
.

Th
e
NC

ho
ld
sa
tl
ea
st
on
e
(1
)m
ee
tin
g
in
ea
ch
fin
an
ci
al
ye
ar
.T
he
te
rm
so
fr
ef
er
en
ce
an
d
th
e
ke
y

ro
le
s
of
th
e
NC

in
cl
ud
e,
in
te
ra
lia
:

(a)
re
vi
ew
in
g
an
d
ap
pr
ov
in
g
an
y
ne
w
em
pl
oy
m
en
to
fr
el
at
ed
pe
rs
on
s
an
d
pr
op
os
ed
te
rm
s
of

th
ei
re
m
pl
oy
m
en
t;

(b
)

re
co
m
m
en
di
ng

to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
on

Bo
ar
d
ap
po
in
tm
en
ts
,
in
cl
ud
in
g
th
e
re
-n
om
in
at
io
n
of

th
e
ex
is
tin
g
Di
re
ct
or
s
fo
rr
e-
el
ec
tio
n
in
ac
co
rd
an
ce
wi
th
th
e
Co
ns
tit
ut
io
n
at
ea
ch
an
nu
al

ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
g
an
d
ha
vi
ng
re
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.N
on
e
of

th
e
di
re
ct
or
s
ho
ld
sh
ar
es
in
th
e
su
bs
id
ia
rie
s
of
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
.

Di
re
ct
or
s
wh
o
ar
e
se
ek
in
g
re
-a
pp
oi
nt
m
en
ta
tt
he
fo
rth
co
m
in
g
AG
M
to
be
he
ld
on
30

Ju
ly
20
24

ar
e
st
at
ed
in
th
e
No
tic
e
of
AG
M
se
to
ut
on
pa
ge
s1
10
to
11
7
of
th
is
An
nu
al
Re
po
rt.
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sh
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m
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re
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Di
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is
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op
in
io
n
th
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se
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ng

a
fix
ed

nu
m
be
r
wo
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t
ad
eq
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te
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ke
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t
th
e
va
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d
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um
st
an
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s
of
ea
ch
Di
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ct
or
.T
he
NC

wi
ll
in
st
ea
d
fo
cu
s
on

wh
et
he
ra

Di
re
ct
or
ha
s
su
ffi
ci
en
t

tim
e
to
ad
eq
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te
ly
di
sc
ha
rg
e
hi
s
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tie
s
to
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
.T
he
NC

wo
ul
d
m
on
ito
ra
nd
de
te
rm
in
e

an
nu
al
ly,
on
a
ca
se
-b
y-
ca
se
ba
sis
,w
he
th
er
th
e
Di
re
ct
or
s
ha
ve
gi
ve
n
su
ffi
cie
nt
tim
e
an
d
at
te
nt
io
n

to
th
e
af
fa
irs
of
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
an
d
ad
eq
ua
te
ly
ca
rr
y
ou
th
is
du
tie
s
as
a
Di
re
ct
or
of
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
.

Th
e
NC

is
of
th
e
vi
ew

th
at
it
is
fo
r
ea
ch
Di
re
ct
or
to
as
se
ss
hi
s/
he
ro
wn

ca
pa
ci
ty
an
d
ab
ili
ty
to

un
de
rta
ke
ot
he
ro
bl
ig
at
io
ns
or
co
m
m
itm

en
ts
to
ge
th
er
wi
th
se
rv
in
g
on
th
e
Bo
ar
d
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y.
Al
l

Di
re
ct
or
s
ha
ve
de
cl
ar
ed
th
ei
rb
oa
rd
m
em
be
rs
hi
ps
as
an
d
wh
en
pr
ac
tic
ab
le
.

Bo
ar
d
Pe

rf
or
m
an

ce

Pr
in
ci
pl
e
5:
Th
e
Bo
ar
d
un
de
rta
ke
s
a
fo
rm
al
an
nu
al
as
se
ss
m
en
t
of
its

ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
as
a
wh
ol
e,
an
d
th
at
of
ea
ch
of
its

bo
ar
d
co
m
m
itt
ee
s
an
d

in
di
vi
du
al
di
re
ct
or
s.

5.
1

Th
e
NC

re
co
m
m
en
ds
fo
rt
he
Bo
ar
d’
s

ap
pr
ov
al
th
e
ob
je
ct
iv
e
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce

cr
ite
ri
a

an
d

pr
oc
es
s

fo
r
th
e

ev
al
ua
tio
n
of

th
e
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
of

th
e
Bo
ar
d
as
a
wh
ol
e,
an
d
of
ea
ch

bo
ar
d
co
m
m
itt
ee
se
pa
ra
te
ly
,a
s
we
ll

as
th
e
co
nt
rib
ut
io
n
by
th
e
Ch
ai
rm
an

an
d
ea
ch

in
di
vi
du
al
di
re
ct
or
to
th
e

Bo
ar
d.

NC
es
ta
bl
is
he
d
a
pr
oc
es
s
fo
ra
ss
es
si
ng

th
e
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
as
a
wh
ol
e
an
d
its
Bo
ar
d

Co
m
m
itt
ee
s
an
d
fo
ra
ss
es
si
ng

th
e
co
nt
rib
ut
io
n
of
ea
ch
in
di
vi
du
al
Di
re
ct
or
to
th
e
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s

of
th
e
Bo
ar
d.
Th
is
as
se
ss
m
en
ti
s
co
nd
uc
te
d
by
th
e
NC

at
le
as
to
nc
e
a
ye
ar
by
wa
y
of
a
Bo
ar
d

ev
al
ua
tio
n
wh
er
e
th
e
Di
re
ct
or
s
co
m
pl
et
e
a
qu
es
tio
nn
ai
re

se
ek
in
g
th
ei
r
vi
ew
s
on

va
rio
us

as
pe
ct
s
of
Bo
ar
d
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
,
su
ch

as
Bo
ar
d
co
m
po
si
tio
n,
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
an
d
pr
oc
es
s.
Ea
ch

m
em
be
r
of
th
e
NC

sh
al
la
bs
ta
in
fro
m
vo
tin
g
on

an
y
re
so
lu
tio
ns
in
re
sp
ec
to
ft
he

as
se
ss
m
en
t

of
hi
s/
he
rp
er
fo
rm
an
ce
or
re
-n
om
in
at
io
n
as
a
Di
re
ct
or
.T
he
Bo
ar
d
wi
ll
ac
to
n
th
e
re
su
lts
of
th
e

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
ev
al
ua
tio
n,
an
d
in
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n
wi
th
th
e
NC
,p
ro
po
se
,w
he
re
ap
pr
op
ria
te
,t
ha
tn
ew

m
em
be
rs
be
ap
po
in
te
d
to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
or
se
ek
th
e
re
sig
na
tio
n
of
Di
re
ct
or
s.

Ob
je
ct
iv
e
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce

cr
ite
ria

us
ed

to
as
se
ss

th
e
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce

of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
in
cl
ud
e
bo
th

qu
an
tit
at
iv
e
an
d
qu
al
ita
tiv
e
cr
ite
ria
.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
th
e
NC

be
lie
ve
th
at
th
e
fin
an
ci
al
in
di
ca
to
rs
ar
e
m
ai
nl
y
us
ed

to
m
ea
su
re
th
e

M
an
ag
em
en
t’s
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
an
d
he
nc
e
ar
e
le
ss
ap
pl
ic
ab
le
to
th
e
No
n-
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
s.

Th
e
NC

ha
d
co
nd
uc
te
d
th
e
Bo
ar
d’
s
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
ev
al
ua
tio
n
as
a
wh
ol
e
su
bs
eq
ue
nt
to
FY
20
24

to
ge
th
er
wi
th
th
e
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
ev
al
ua
tio
n
of
th
e
AR
C,
RC

an
d
NC
.T
he
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
cr
ite
ria
fo
r

th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
Bo
ar
d
Co
m
m
itt
ee
s’
ev
al
ua
tio
n,
as
de
te
rm
in
ed

by
th
e
NC
,c
ov
er
th
e
fo
llo
wi
ng

ar
ea
s:

a)
Co
m
po
sit
io
n
an
d
Si
ze

b)
Co
nd
uc
to
fM
ee
tin
g

c)
Ef
fe
ct
ive
ne
ss
an
d
tra
in
in
g

d)
Bo
ar
d
co
m
m
itt
ee
s

e)
Co
m
m
un
ica
tio
n
wi
th
Sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs

f)
Pr
ov
isi
on
of
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
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e
or

Ex
pl
an

at
io
n

g)
St
an
da
rd
so
fC
on
du
ct

h)
Fi
na
nc
ia
lp
er
fo
rm
an
ce

i)
Bo
ar
d
co
m
pe
ns
at
io
n

Th
e
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
cr
ite
ria
fo
rt
he
in
di
vid
ua
ld
ire
ct
or
co
ve
rt
he
fo
llo
wi
ng
ar
ea
s:

a)
At
te
nd
an
ce
in
m
ee
tin
gs

b)
Ad
eq
ua
cy
of
pr
ep
ar
at
io
n
fo
rm

ee
tin
gs

c)
Pa
rti
cip
at
io
n
in
di
sc
us
sio
ns

d)
Co
nt
rib
ut
io
n
in
ow
n
sp
ec
ia
lis
tr
el
ev
an
ta
re
a

e)
Ar
ea
of
ex
pe
rti
se

5.
2

Th
e
co
m
pa
ny
di
sc
lo
se
s
in
its
an
nu
al

re
po
rt
ho
w
th
e
as
se
ss
m
en
ts
of
th
e

Bo
ar
d,

its
bo
ar
d
co
m
m
itt
ee
s
an
d

ea
ch
di
re
ct
or
ha
ve
be
en
co
nd
uc
te
d,

in
cl
ud
in
g
th
e
id
en
tit
yo
fa
ny
ex
te
rn
al

fa
ci
lit
at
or

an
d
its

co
nn
ec
tio
n,

if
an
y,
wi
th
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
or
an
y
of
its

di
re
ct
or
s.

Fo
rF
Y2
02
4,
th
e
NC

ha
d
co
nd
uc
te
d
th
e
as
se
ss
m
en
tv
ia
a
qu
es
tio
nn
ai
re
wh
ich

is
co
m
pl
et
ed
by

ea
ch
Di
re
ct
or
fo
r
th
e
ev
al
ua
tio
n
of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
Bo
ar
d
Co
m
m
itt
ee
s.
Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
Se
cr
et
ar
y

co
m
pi
le
s
Di
re
ct
or
s’
re
sp
on
se
s
in
to
a
co
ns
ol
id
at
ed
su
m
m
ar
y
re
po
rt
wh
ic
h
wa
s
ci
rc
ul
at
ed
to
th
e

Bo
ar
d
vi
a
em
ai
l.
Ea
ch
Di
re
ct
or
al
so
co
m
pl
et
ed
a
se
lf-
as
se
ss
m
en
tf
or
m
to
as
se
ss
ea
ch
Di
re
ct
or
’s

co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns
to
th
e
Bo
ar
d’
s
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s.
Th
e
cr
ite
ria
fo
ra
ss
es
sm
en
ti
nc
lu
de
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce

of
pr
in
ci
pa
l
fu
nc
tio
ns

an
d
fid
uc
ia
ry
du
tie
s,
le
ve
l
of

pa
rti
ci
pa
tio
n
at
m
ee
tin
gs

an
d
in
di
vi
du
al

at
te
nd
an
ce
re
co
rd
.

Th
e
NC

ha
s
as
se
ss
ed
th
e
cu
rr
en
tB
oa
rd
’s
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
to
-d
at
e
an
d
is
of
th
e
vi
ew

th
at
th
e
Bo
ar
d

ha
s
m
et
its
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
ob
je
ct
iv
es
.

Fo
rF
Y2
02
4,
no
ex
te
rn
al
fa
cil
ita
to
rh
as
be
en
en
ga
ge
d
to
pe
rfo
rm

th
e
Bo
ar
d
as
se
ss
m
en
tp
ro
ce
ss
.

RE
M
U
N
ER

AT
IO
N

M
AT

TE
RS

Pr
oc

ed
ur
es

fo
r
De

ve
lo
pi
ng

Re
m
un

er
at
io
n
Po

lic
ie
s

Pr
in
ci
pl
e
6:
Th
e
Bo
ar
d
ha
s
a
fo
rm
al
an
d
tra
ns
pa
re
nt
pr
oc
ed
ur
e
fo
rd
ev
el
op
in
g
po
lic
ie
s
on
di
re
ct
or
an
d
ex
ec
ut
iv
e
re
m
un
er
at
io
n,
an
d
fo
rf

i
xi
ng
th
e

re
m
un
er
at
io
n
pa
ck
ag
es
of
in
di
vi
du
al
di
re
ct
or
sa
nd
ke
ym

an
ag
em
en
tp
er
so
nn
el
.N
o
di
re
ct
or
is
in
vo
lv
ed
in
de
ci
di
ng
hi
so
rh
er
ow
n
re
m
un
er
at
io
n.

6.
1

Th
e

Bo
ar
d

es
ta
bl
is
he
s

a
Re
m
un
er
at
io
n
Co
m
m
itt
ee

to
re
vi
ew

an
d
m
ak
e
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns

to
th
e

Bo
ar
d
on
:

(a)
a
fra
m
ew
or
k
of
re
m
un
er
at
io
n

fo
r

th
e

Bo
ar
d

an
d

ke
y

m
an
ag
em
en
tp
er
so
nn
el
;a
nd

(b
)

th
e
sp
ec
ifi
c
re
m
un
er
at
io
n

pa
ck
ag
es

fo
r
ea
ch

di
re
ct
or

as
w
el
l
as

fo
r
th
e

ke
y

m
an
ag
em
en
tp
er
so
nn
el
.

Th
e
RC

co
m
pr
is
es
th
e
In
de
pe
nd
en
tD
ire
ct
or
s,
M
rL
im
Si
an
g
Ka
i,
M
rH
au
Ho
ck
Kh
un
an
d
M
rL
im

Ch
on
g
Hu
at
.T
he
Ch
ai
rm
an
of
th
e
RC

is
M
rH
au
Ho
ck
Kh
un
.

Th
e
te
rm
so
fr
ef
er
en
ce
of
RC
in
clu
de
,i
nt
er

al
ia
,t
he
fo
llo
wi
ng
:

-
re
vi
ew
in
g
an
d
re
co
m
m
en
di
ng

to
th
e
Bo
ar
d,
a
fra
m
ew
or
k
of
re
m
un
er
at
io
n
po
lic
ie
s
to

de
te
rm
in
e
th
e
sp
ec
ifi
c
re
m
un
er
at
io
n
pa
ck
ag
es

an
d
te
rm
s
of

em
pl
oy
m
en
t
fo
r
ea
ch

Di
re
ct
or
,t
he
CE
O
an
d
ke
y
ex
ec
ut
iv
e
of
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
;a
nd

-
ca
rr
yi
ng

ou
t
its

du
tie
s
in
th
e
m
an
ne
r
th
at
it
de
em
s
ex
pe
di
en
t,
su
bj
ec
t
al
wa
ys
to
an
y

re
st
ric
tio
ns
th
at
m
ay
be
im
po
se
d
up
on
th
e
RC

by
th
e
Bo
ar
d
fro
m
tim

e
to
tim

e.
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1.
4
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Al
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C
m
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ar
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e
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al
an
d
tra
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ur
e
is
in
pl
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e
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g
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e
re
m
un
er
at
io
n

pa
ck
ag
es

of
in
di
vi
du
al
Di
re
ct
or

an
d
ke
y
ex
ec
ut
iv
es
.
Th
e
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns

of
th
e
RC

ar
e

su
bm
itt
ed
to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
fo
re
nd
or
se
m
en
t.
Al
la
sp
ec
ts
of
re
m
un
er
at
io
n,
in
cl
ud
in
g,
bu
tn
ot
lim
ite
d

to
,D
ire
ct
or
s’
fe
es
,s
al
ar
ie
s,
al
lo
wa
nc
es
,b
on
us
es
,o
pt
io
ns
an
d
be
ne
fit
s-
in
-k
in
d
ar
e
re
vi
ew
ed
by

th
e
RC
.T
he
Di
re
ct
or
s
ar
e
no
ti
nv
ol
ve
d
in
de
ci
di
ng
th
ei
ro
wn

re
m
un
er
at
io
n.
Ea
ch
m
em
be
ro
ft
he

RC
ab
st
ai
ns
fro
m
vo
tin
g
on
an
y
re
so
lu
tio
ns
in
re
sp
ec
to
fh
is
re
m
un
er
at
io
n
pa
ck
ag
e.

Th
er
e
we
re
no
te
rm
in
at
io
n
or
re
tir
em
en
tb
en
ef
its
,a
sw
el
la
sp
os
t-
em
pl
oy
m
en
tb
en
ef
its
gr
an
te
d
to

th
e
Di
re
ct
or
s.

6.
4

Th
e

co
m
pa
ny

di
sc
lo
se
s

th
e

en
ga
ge
m
en
t
of

an
y
re
m
un
er
at
io
n

co
ns
ul
ta
nt
s
an
d
th
ei
r
in
de
pe
nd
en
ce

in
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
’s
an
nu
al
re
po
rt.

No
re
m
un
er
at
io
n
co
ns
ul
ta
nt
sw
er
e
en
ga
ge
d
by
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
du
rin
g
FY
20
24
.

Le
ve

la
nd

M
ix

of
Re

m
un

er
at
io
n

Pr
in
ci
pl
e
7:
Th
e
le
ve
la
nd

st
ru
ct
ur
e
of
re
m
un
er
at
io
n
of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
ke
y
m
an
ag
em
en
t
pe
rs
on
ne
la
re
ap
pr
op
ria
te
an
d
pr
op
or
tio
na
te
to
th
e

su
st
ai
ne
d
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
an
d
va
lu
e
cr
ea
tio
n
of
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
,t
ak
in
g
in
to
ac
co
un
tt
he
st
ra
te
gi
co
bj
ec
tiv
es
of
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
.

7.
1

A
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt

an
d

ap
pr
op
ri
at
e

pr
op
or
tio
n
of

ex
ec
ut
iv
e
di
re
ct
or
s’

an
d
ke
y
m
an
ag
em
en
t
pe
rs
on
ne
l’s

re
m
un
er
at
io
n

is
st
ru
ct
ur
ed

so
as

to
lin
k
re
wa
rd
s
to

co
rp
or
at
e

an
d

in
di
vi
du
al

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
.

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
-r
el
at
ed

r e
m
un
er
at
io
n

is
al
ig
ne
d

w
ith

th
e

in
te
re
st
s

of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs

an
d

ot
he
r

st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs

an
d
pr
om
ot
es

th
e

lo
ng
-t
er
m
su
cc
es
s
of
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
.

In
re
vi
ew
in
g
an
d
de
te
rm
in
in
g
th
e
re
m
un
er
at
io
n
pa
ck
ag
es

of
th
e
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
s
an
d

th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
ke
y
m
an
ag
em
en
t
pe
rs
on
ne
l,
th
e
RC

co
ns
id
er
s
th
e
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
s’
an
d
ke
y

m
an
ag
em
en
t
pe
rs
on
ne
l’s

re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
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rfo
rm
an
ce
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p.

Fu
rth
er
de
ta
ils
of
th
e
ES
OS
an
d
PS
P
ar
e
se
to
ut
in
pa
ge
s5
4
to
55
of
th
is
An
nu
al
Re
po
rt.

AC
CO

U
N
TA

BI
LI
TY

AN
D

AU
DI
T

Ri
sk

M
an

ag
em

en
t
an

d
In
te
rn
al

Co
nt
ro
ls

Pr
in
ci
pl
e
9:
Th
e
Bo
ar
d
is
re
sp
on
si
bl
e
fo
rt
he
go
ve
rn
an
ce
of
ris
k
an
d
en
su
re
s
th
at
M
an
ag
em
en
tm

ai
nt
ai
ns
a
so
un
d
sy
st
em

of
ris
k
m
an
ag
em
en
ta
nd

in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
ls
,t
o
sa
fe
gu
ar
d
th
e
in
te
re
st
s
of
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
an
d
its
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
.

9.
1

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
de
te
rm
in
es

th
e
na
tu
re

an
d
ex
te
nt
of
th
e
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
ris
ks

wh
ic
h
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
is
wi
lli
ng
to
ta
ke

in
ac
hi
ev
in
g
its

st
ra
te
gi
c
ob
je
ct
iv
es

an
d

va
lu
e
cr
ea
tio
n.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d

se
ts

up
a
Bo
ar
d
Ri
sk

Co
m
m
itt
ee

to
sp
ec
ifi
ca
lly

ad
dr
es
s
th
is
,
if

ap
pr
op
ria
te
.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
re
vi
ew
s
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
bu
si
ne
ss

an
d
op
er
at
io
na
l
ac
tiv
iti
es

to
id
en
tif
y
ar
ea
s
of

si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
bu
si
ne
ss
ris
k
as
we
ll
as
th
e
m
ea
su
re
s
in
pl
ac
e
to
co
nt
ro
la
nd

m
iti
ga
te
th
es
e
ris
ks

wi
th
in
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
po
lic
ie
s
an
d
bu
si
ne
ss
st
ra
te
gi
es
.T
he
ris
k
as
se
ss
m
en
te
xe
rc
is
e
al
so
in
cl
ud
es

id
en
tif
yi
ng
an
d
as
se
ss
in
g
ke
y
ris
k
ar
ea
s
to
th
e
Gr
ou
p
su
ch
as
fin
an
ci
al
,o
pe
ra
tio
na
l,
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e

an
d
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
te
ch
no
lo
gy
ris
ks
ba
se
d
on

th
e
fe
ed
ba
ck
of
th
e
in
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
an
d
ex
te
rn
al

au
di
to
rs
.T
he
Bo
ar
d
al
so
ov
er
se
es
th
e
M
an
ag
em
en
ti
n
im
pl
em
en
tin
g
th
e
ris
k
m
an
ag
em
en
ta
nd

in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
ls
sy
st
em
.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
is
al
so

re
sp
on
si
bl
e
fo
r
go
ve
rn
an
ce

of
ris
k
m
an
ag
em
en
t
an
d
de
te
rm
in
in
g
th
e

Co
m
pa
ny
’s
le
ve
ls
of
ris
k
to
le
ra
nc
e
an
d
ris
k
po
lic
ie
s.
Th
e
Bo
ar
d
co
ns
ul
ts
wi
th
th
e
ex
te
rn
al

au
di
to
rs
an
d
in
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
to
de
te
rm
in
e
th
e
ris
k
to
le
ra
nc
e
le
ve
la
nd

co
rr
es
po
nd
in
g
ris
k

po
lic
ie
s.

Th
e
AR
C
ev
al
ua
te
s
th
e
fin
di
ng
s
of
th
e
ex
te
rn
al
an
d
in
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
on

th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
in
te
rn
al

co
nt
ro
ls
an
nu
al
ly
.

Al
th
ou
gh

th
e
Bo
ar
d
ac
kn
ow
le
dg
es

th
at

it
is
re
sp
on
si
bl
e
fo
r
th
e
ov
er
al
l
in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
l

fra
m
ew
or
k,
it
al
so
re
co
gn
ise
s
th
at
no

co
st
-e
ffe
ct
iv
e
in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
ls
ys
te
m
wi
ll
pr
ec
lu
de

al
l

er
ro
rs
an
d
irr
eg
ul
ar
iti
es
.A
sy
st
em

is
de
si
gn
ed
to
m
an
ag
e
ra
th
er
th
an
el
im
in
at
e
th
e
ris
k
of
fa
ilu
re

to
ac
hi
ev
e
bu
si
ne
ss
ob
je
ct
iv
es
an
d
ca
n
pr
ov
id
e
on
ly
re
as
on
ab
le
an
d
no
t
ab
so
lu
te
as
su
ra
nc
e

ag
ai
ns
tm

at
er
ia
lm
is
st
at
em
en
to
rl
os
s.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
ha
s
no
t
es
ta
bl
is
he
d
a
sp
ec
ifi
c
Bo
ar
d
Ri
sk
Co
m
m
itt
ee
,b
ut
fo
r
th
e
pu
rp
os
es
of
ris
k

m
an
ag
em
en
ta
nd
in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
ls
,i
s
as
si
st
ed
by
th
e
AR
C
an
d
re
lie
s
on
in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
lp
ol
ic
ie
s

an
d
pr
oc
ed
ur
es
es
ta
bl
is
he
d
an
d
m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d
by
th
e
Gr
ou
p,
an
d
th
e
re
gu
la
r
au
di
ts
,m

on
ito
rin
g

an
d
re
vi
ew
s
pe
rfo
rm
ed
by
th
e
in
te
rn
al
an
d
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
in
ca
rr
yi
ng
ou
ti
ts
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y
of

ov
er
se
ei
ng
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
’s
ris
k
m
an
ag
em
en
ta
nd
po
lic
ie
s.
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P
ro
vi
si
on

Co
de

D
es
cr
ip
ti
on

Co
m
pa

ny
’s

Co
m
pl
ia
nc

e
or

Ex
pl
an

at
io
n

9.
2

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
re
qu
ire
s
an
d
di
sc
lo
se
s
in

th
e
co
m
pa
ny
’s
an
nu
al
re
po
rt
th
at
it

ha
s
re
ce
iv
ed
as
su
ra
nc
e
fro
m
:

(a)
th
e
CE
O
an
d
th
e
FC

th
at
th
e

fin
an
ci
al
re
co
rd
s
ha
ve

be
en

pr
op
er
ly
m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d
an
d
th
e

fin
an
ci
al

st
at
em

en
ts

gi
ve

a
tru
e
an
d
fa
ir
vi
ew

of
th
e

co
m
pa
ny
’s

op
er
at
io
ns

an
d

fin
an
ce
s;
an
d

(b
)

th
e

CE
O

an
d

ot
he
r

ke
y

m
an
ag
em
en
t
pe
rs
on
ne
l
wh
o

ar
e
re
sp
on
si
bl
e,
re
ga
rd
in
g
th
e

ad
eq
ua
cy

an
d
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s

of
th
e

co
m
pa
ny
’s

ris
k

m
an
ag
em
en
t
an
d

in
te
rn
al

co
nt
ro
ls
ys
te
m
s.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
wi
th
th
e
co
nc
ur
re
nc
e
of
th
e
AR
C,
is
of
th
e
vi
ew

th
at
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
’s
in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
ls

(in
cl
ud
in
g
fin
an
ci
al
,
op
er
at
io
na
l,
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
an
d
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
te
ch
no
lo
gy

co
nt
ro
ls
)
an
d
ris
k

m
an
ag
em
en
ts
ys
te
m
s
we
re
ad
eq
ua
te
an
d
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
fo
rF
Y2
02
4.

Th
e
ba
si
sf
or
th
eB
oa
rd
’s
vi
ew
ar
e
as
fo
llo
ws
:


As
su
ra
nc
e
ha
sb
ee
n
re
ce
ive
d
fro
m
th
e
CE
O,
FC
an
d
in
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
;


Ke
y
m
an
ag
em
en
t
pe
rs
on
ne
lr
eg
ul
ar
ly
ev
al
ua
te
s,
m
on
ito
rs
an
d
re
po
rts

to
th
e
AR
C
on

m
at
er
ia
lr
is
ks
;a
nd


Di
sc
us
si
on
s
we
re

he
ld
be
tw
ee
n
th
e
AR
C
an
d
au
di
to
rs
in
th
e
ab
se
nc
e
of

th
e
ke
y

m
an
ag
em
en
tp
er
so
nn
el
to
re
vi
ew

an
d
ad
dr
es
s
an
y
po
te
nt
ia
lc
on
ce
rn
s.

An
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
t
wa
s
pe
rfo
rm
ed

by
th
e
in
de
pe
nd
en
t
au
di
to
rs
an
d
co
nt
ro
lg
ap
s
in
fin
an
ci
al

co
nt
ro
ls
we
re
hi
gh
lig
ht
ed
to
th
e
AR
C
an
d
ke
y
m
an
ag
em
en
tp
er
so
nn
el
we
re
pr
op
er
ly
ad
dr
es
se
d.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
ha
so
bt
ai
ne
d
as
su
ra
nc
e
fro
m
th
e
CE
O
an
d
FC
in
re
sp
ec
to
fF
Y2
02
4
th
at
:

(a)
th
e
fin
an
ci
al
re
co
rd
sh
av
e
be
en
pr
op
er
ly
m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d
an
d
th
e
fin
an
ci
al
st
at
em
en
ts
gi
ve
a

tru
e
an
d
fa
ir
vi
ew
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
op
er
at
io
ns
an
d
fin
an
ce
s;
an
d

(b
)

th
e
Gr
ou
p’
sr
isk

m
an
ag
em
en
ta
nd
in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
ls
ys
te
m
sa
re
ad
eq
ua
te
an
d
ef
fe
ct
ive
.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d
ha
s
re
lie
d
on

th
e
in
de
pe
nd
en
ta
ud
ito
rs
’r
ep
or
ta
s
se
to
ut
in
th
is
An
nu
al
Re
po
rt
as

as
su
ra
nc
e
th
at
th
e
fin
an
cia
lr
ec
or
ds
ha
ve
be
en
pr
op
er
ly
m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d
an
d
th
e
fin
an
cia
ls
ta
te
m
en
ts

gi
ve
tru
e
an
d
fa
ir
vi
ew
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
so
pe
ra
tio
ns
an
d
fin
an
ce
s.

Th
e
Bo
a r
d
ha
s
ad
di
tio
na
lly
re
lie
d
on
ye
ar
ly
re
vi
ew

do
ne
by
in
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
’r
ep
or
ts
to
en
su
re

th
at
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
sr
is
k
m
an
ag
em
en
ta
nd
in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
ls
ys
te
m
sa
re
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
an
d
ad
eq
ua
te
.

Au
di
t
Co

m
m
itt
ee

Pr
in
cip
le
10
:T
he
Bo
ar
d
ha
sa
n
Au
di
tC
om
m
itt
ee
wh
ich

di
sc
ha
rg
es
its
du
tie
so
bj
ec
tiv
el
y.

10
.1

Th
ed
ut
ie
so
ft
he
AC

in
clu
de
:

(a)
re
vi
ew
in
g

th
e
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt

fin
an
cia
lr
ep
or
tin
g
iss
ue
s
an
d

ju
dg
em
en
ts
so

as
to
en
su
re

th
e
in
te
gr
ity

of
th
e
fin
an
ci
al

st
at
em
en
ts

of
th
e
co
m
pa
ny

an
d

an
y

an
no
un
ce
m
en
ts

re
la
tin
g
to

th
e
co
m
pa
ny
’s

fin
an
ci
al
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
;

Th
e
Di
re
ct
or
s
re
co
gn
ise

th
e
im
po
rta
nc
e
of
co
rp
or
at
e
go
ve
rn
an
ce

an
d
th
e
of
fe
rin
g
of
hi
gh

st
an
da
rd
s
of
ac
co
un
ta
bi
lit
y
to
th
e
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
.
Th
e
AR
C
m
ee
ts
pe
rio
di
ca
lly

to
pe
rfo
rm

th
e

fo
llo
wi
ng
fu
nc
tio
ns
,a
m
on
gs
to
th
er
s:

(a)
as
sis
tt
he
Bo
ar
d
in
th
e
di
sc
ha
rg
e
of
its
re
sp
on
sib
ili
tie
so
n
fin
an
cia
lr
ep
or
tin
g
m
at
te
rs
;
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m
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ny
’s
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m
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e
or

Ex
pl
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(b
)

re
v
ie
w
in
g

a
t

le
a
s
t

an
nu
al
ly

th
e

ad
eq
ua
cy

an
d

ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s

of
th
e

co
m
pa
ny
’s

in
te
rn
al

co
nt
ro
ls

an
d

ris
k

m
an
ag
em

en
t

sy
st
em
s;

(c)
re
vi
ew
in
g
th
e
as
su
ra
nc
e
fro
m

th
e
CE
O
an
d
th
e
FC

on
th
e

fin
an
cia
l
re
co
rd
s
an
d
fin
an
cia
l

st
at
em
en
ts
;

(d
)

m
ak
in
g
re
co
m
m
en
da
ti
on
s

to
th
e
Bo
ar
d

on
:
(i)

th
e

pr
op
os
al
s
to
th
e
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs

on
th
e
ap
po
in
tm
en
t
an
d

re
m
ov
al
of
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
;

an
d
(ii
)t
he
re
m
un
er
at
io
n
an
d

te
rm
s
of
en
ga
ge
m
en
t
of
th
e

ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
;

(e)
re
vi
ew
in
g

th
e

ad
eq
ua
cy
,

ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s,

in
de
pe
nd
en
ce
,

sc
op
e
an
d
re
su
lts

of
th
e

ex
te
rn
al

au
di
t

an
d

th
e

co
m
pa
ny
’s

in
te
rn
al

au
di
t

fu
nc
tio
n;
an
d

(f)
re
vi
ew
in
g

th
e
po
lic
y

an
d

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts

fo
r
co
nc
er
ns

ab
ou
t
po
ss
ib
le
im
pr
op
rie
tie
s

in
fin
an
cia
lr
ep
or
tin
g
or
ot
he
r

m
at
te
rs
to

be
sa
fe
ly
ra
is
ed
,

in
de
pe
nd
en
tly

in
ve
st
ig
at
ed

an
d

ap
pr
op
ria
te
ly

fo
llo
we
d

up
on
.

Th
e

co
m
pa
ny

pu
bl
ic
ly

di
sc
lo
se
s,

an
d

cl
ea
rl
y

co
m
m
un
ic
at
es

to
em
pl
oy
ee
s,
th
e
ex
is
te
nc
e
of

a
wh
ist
le
-b
lo
wi
ng

po
lic
y
an
d

pr
oc
ed
ur
es

fo
r
ra
is
in
g
su
ch

co
nc
er
ns
.

(b
)

re
vi
ew
,
wi
th
th
e
in
te
rn
al
an
d
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
,
th
e
au
di
t
pl
an
s,
sc
op
e
of
wo
rk
,
th
ei
r

ev
al
ua
tio
n
of
th
e
sy
st
em

of
in
te
rn
al
ac
co
un
tin
g
co
nt
ro
ls
,t
he
ir
m
an
ag
em
en
tl
et
te
ra
nd
th
e

m
an
ag
em
en
t’s
re
sp
on
se
,a
nd
re
su
lts
of
th
e
au
di
ts
co
m
pi
le
d
by
th
e
in
te
rn
al
an
d
ex
te
rn
al

au
di
to
rs
;r
ev
ie
w
th
e
in
te
rim

an
d
an
nu
al
fin
an
ci
al
st
at
em
en
ts
an
d
re
su
lts
an
no
un
ce
m
en
ts

be
fo
re
su
bm
is
si
on

to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
fo
r
ap
pr
ov
al
,
fo
cu
si
ng

in
pa
rti
cu
la
r,
on

ch
an
ge
s
in

ac
co
un
tin
g
po
lic
ie
s
an
d
pr
ac
tic
es
,m
aj
or
ris
k
ar
ea
s,
sig
ni
fic
an
ta
dj
us
tm
en
ts
re
su
lti
ng
fro
m

th
e
au
di
t,
th
e
go
in
g
co
nc
er
n
st
at
em
en
t,
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
wi
th
fin
an
ci
al
re
po
rti
ng

st
an
da
rd
s

as
we
ll
as

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
wi
th

th
e
Ca
ta
lis
t
Ru
le
s
an
d
an
y
ot
he
r
st
at
ut
or
y/
re
gu
la
to
ry

re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
;

(c)
re
vi
ew

th
e
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
an
d
ad
eq
ua
cy

of
th
e
in
te
rn
al
co
nt
ro
ls
,
in
cl
ud
in
g
fin
an
ci
al
,

op
er
at
io
na
l,
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
an
d
in
fo
rm
at
io
na
lt
ec
hn
ol
og
y
co
nt
ro
ls
,
an
d
ris
k
m
an
ag
em
en
t

sy
st
em
s
an
d
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su
re
co
or
di
na
tio
n
be
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ee
n
th
e
in
te
rn
al
an
d
ex
te
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al
au
di
to
rs
,
an
d
th
e

m
an
ag
em
en
t,
re
vi
ew
in
g
th
e
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si
st
an
ce
gi
ve
n
by

th
e
m
an
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em
en
t
to
th
e
au
di
to
rs
,a
nd

di
sc
us
s
pr
ob
le
m
s
an
d
co
nc
er
ns
,i
fa
ny
,a
ris
in
g
fro
m
th
e
in
te
rim

an
d
fin
al
au
di
ts
,a
nd
an
y

m
at
te
rs
wh
ic
h
th
e
au
di
to
rs
m
ay
wi
sh

to
di
sc
us
s
(in

th
e
ab
se
nc
e
of
th
e
m
an
ag
em
en
t

wh
er
e
ne
ce
ss
ar
y)
;

(d
)

re
vi
ew

th
e
sc
op
e
an
d
re
su
lts
of
th
e
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
t,
an
d
th
e
in
de
pe
nd
en
ce
an
d
ob
je
ct
iv
ity

of
th
e
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
;

(e)
re
vi
ew

an
d
di
sc
us
s
wi
th
th
e
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
an
y
su
sp
ec
te
d
fra
ud

or
irr
eg
ul
ar
ity
,
or

su
sp
ec
te
d
in
fri
ng
em
en
to
fa
ny
re
le
va
nt
la
ws
,r
ul
es
or
re
gu
la
tio
ns
,w
hi
ch
ha
s
or
is
lik
el
y

to
ha
ve
a
m
at
er
ia
li
m
pa
ct
on
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
op
er
at
in
g
re
su
lts
or
fin
an
ci
al
po
si
tio
n,
an
d
th
e

m
an
ag
em
en
t’s
re
sp
on
se
;

(f)
m
ak
e
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns

to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
on

th
e
pr
op
os
al
s
to
th
e
Sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
on

th
e

ap
po
in
tm
en
t,
re
-
ap
po
in
tm
en
ta
nd

re
m
ov
al
of
th
e
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
,a
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ap
pr
ov
in
g
th
e

re
m
un
er
at
io
n
an
d
te
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s
of
en
ga
ge
m
en
to
ft
he
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
;

(g
)

re
vie
w
sig
ni
fic
an
tf
in
an
cia
lr
ep
or
tin
g
iss
ue
s
an
d
ju
dg
em
en
ts
wi
th
th
e
FC
an
d
th
e
ex
te
rn
al

au
di
to
rs
so
as
to
en
su
re
th
e
in
te
gr
ity
of
th
e
fin
an
ci
al
st
at
em
en
ts
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p
an
d
an
y

fo
rm
al
an
no
un
ce
m
en
ts

re
la
tin
g
to

th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
fin
an
ci
al
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce

be
fo
re

th
ei
r

su
bm
is
si
on
to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
of
Di
re
ct
or
s;

(h
)

to
re
vi
ew

an
d
re
po
rt
to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
at
le
as
ta
nn
ua
lly
th
e
ad
eq
ua
cy
an
d
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
of
th
e

Gr
ou
p’
s
m
at
er
ia
li
nt
er
na
lc
on
tro
ls
wi
th
th
e
FC

an
d
th
e
in
te
rn
al
an
d
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
,

in
clu
di
ng
fin
an
cia
l,
op
er
at
io
na
l,
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
an
d
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
te
ch
no
lo
gy
co
nt
ro
ls,
an
d
ris
k

m
an
ag
em
en
ts
ys
te
m
s
vi
a
re
vi
ew
s
ca
rr
ie
d
ou
tb
y
IA
;

(i)
m
on
ito
ra
nd

re
vi
ew

th
e
im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n
of
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
fro
m
ex
te
rn
al
an
d
in
te
rn
al

au
di
to
rs
,i
fa
ny
,t
o
ad
dr
es
s
an
y
co
nt
ro
lw
ea
kn
es
s;

(j)
re
vi
ew

an
d
ap
pr
ov
e
tra
ns
ac
tio
ns
fa
lli
ng
wi
th
in
th
e
sc
op
e
of
Ch
ap
te
r9

an
d
Ch
ap
te
r1
0
of

th
e
Ca
ta
lis
tR
ul
es
(if
an
y)
;
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ip
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m
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nc

e
or

Ex
pl
an
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io
n

(k
)

re
vie
w
an
y
po
te
nt
ial
co
nf
lic
ts
of
in
te
re
sts
;

(l)
re
vi
ew
an
d
ap
pr
ov
e
al
lh
ed
gi
ng
po
lic
ie
sa
nd
in
st
ru
m
en
ts
(if
an
y)
to
be
im
pl
em
en
te
d
by
th
e

Gr
ou
p;

(m
)

un
de
rta
ke
su
ch
ot
he
rr
ev
ie
ws

an
d
pr
oj
ec
ts
as
m
ay
be
re
qu
es
te
d
by
th
e
Bo
ar
d
an
d
re
po
rt

to
th
e
Bo
ar
d
its
fin
di
ng
s
fro
m
tim

e
to
tim

e
on
m
at
te
rs
ar
is
in
g
an
d
re
qu
iri
ng
th
e
at
te
nt
io
n

of
th
e
AR
C;

(n
)

re
vi
ew

an
d
es
ta
bl
is
h
pr
oc
ed
ur
es

fo
r
re
ce
ip
t,
re
te
nt
io
n
an
d
tre
at
m
en
t
of

co
m
pl
ai
nt
s

re
ce
iv
ed

by
ou
r
Gr
ou
p
pe
rta
in
in
g
to
,a
m
on
gs
t
ot
he
rs
,c
rim

in
al
of
fe
ns
es
,i
nv
ol
vi
ng

ou
r

Gr
ou
p
or
its

em
pl
oy
ee
s,
qu
es
tio
na
bl
e
ac
co
un
tin
g,
au
di
tin
g,
bu
si
ne
ss
,
sa
fe
ty
or
ot
he
r

m
at
te
rs
th
at
im
pa
ct
ne
ga
tiv
el
y
on
ou
rG
ro
up
;a
nd

(o
)

ge
ne
ra
lly
to
un
de
rta
ke
su
ch
ot
he
rf
un
ct
io
ns
an
d
du
tie
s
as
m
ay
be
re
qu
ire
d
by
st
at
ut
e
or

th
e
Ca
ta
lis
tR
ul
es
,a
nd
by
su
ch
am
en
dm
en
ts
m
ad
e
th
er
et
o
fro
m
tim

e
to
tim

e.

AR
C
ov
er
se
es
th
e
ris
k
m
an
ag
em
en
t
fu
nc
tio
ns

th
ro
ug
h
its

Ri
sk

M
an
ag
em
en
t
W
or
ki
ng

Gr
ou
p

(“R
M
W
G”
)
in
or
de
r
to
m
an
ag
e
th
e
ov
er
al
l
ris
k
ex
po
su
re
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p.
RM
W
G
co
m
pr
is
ed

of
th
e
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e
Di
re
ct
or
s
an
d
M
an
ag
em
en
tt
ea
m
.F
C
wh
o
ha
s
ex
pe
rie
nc
e
in
ris
k
m
an
ag
em
en
ti
s

ap
po
in
te
d
to
pr
ov
id
e
ex
ec
ut
iv
e
ov
er
si
gh
ta
nd

co
-o
rd
in
at
io
n
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
ris
k
m
an
ag
em
en
t

ef
fo
rts
.R
M
W
G
sh
al
la
ss
is
tt
he
AR
C
wi
th
th
e
m
at
te
rs
co
nt
em
pl
at
ed
be
lo
w
an
d
sh
al
lr
ep
or
ta
nd

m
ak
e
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
to
th
e
AR
C
th
er
eo
n:

i)
co
nd
uc
ta

ris
k
as
se
ss
m
en
tr
ev
ie
w
on

th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
op
er
at
io
n
at
le
as
to
nc
e
in
a
ye
ar
an
d

sh
al
lt
ab
le
th
e
ris
k
as
se
ss
m
en
t
re
vi
ew

re
po
rt
to
AR
C
fo
r
re
vi
ew

an
d
ap
pr
ov
al
in
ev
er
y

fin
an
ci
al
ye
ar
en
d
m
ee
tin
g;

ii)
ov
er
se
es
th
ee
ffe
ct
ive
ne
ss
of
th
er
isk
m
an
ag
em
en
ts
ys
te
m
an
d
pr
ac
tic
es
;

iii)
sp
ea
rh
ea
ds
ris
k
m
an
ag
em
en
ti
ni
tia
tiv
es
;

iv)
re
vie
ws
an
d
m
on
ito
rs
Gr
ou
p
ris
k
pr
of
ile
an
d
ac
tio
n
pl
an
s;
an
d

v)
un
de
rta
ke
pe
rio
di
c
en
vi
ro
nm
en
ta
lr
ev
ie
w
to
de
te
rm
in
e
if
th
er
e
is
an
y
po
ss
ib
le
im
pa
ct
on

th
e
ris
k
pr
of
ile
of
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
.

Th
e
Gr
ou
p
ha
s
es
ta
bl
is
he
d
a
wh
is
tle
-b
lo
wi
ng

po
lic
y,
he
ad
ed

by
th
e
AR
C’
s
ch
ai
rp
er
so
n
an
d

co
m
pr
is
in
g
of
AR
C
m
em
be
rs
,w
hi
ch
pr
ov
id
es
th
e
ch
an
ne
lf
or
em
pl
oy
ee
s
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p
or
an
y

ot
he
r
pe
rs
on
s
to

ra
is
e
an
d
re
po
rt
ge
nu
in
e
co
nc
er
ns

ab
ou
t
po
ss
ib
le
im
pr
op
rie
tie
s
to

th
e

AR
C
m
em
be
rs
di
re
ct
ly
,
in
m
at
te
r
of
fin
an
ci
al
re
po
rti
ng
,
m
is
co
nd
uc
t,
wr
on
gd
oi
ng
,
or
ot
he
r

m
al
pr
ac
tic
es
re
lat
in
g
to
th
e
Gr
ou
p
an
d
its
of
fic
er
s,
in
go
od
fa
ith
an
d
in
co
nf
id
en
ce
.T
he
Co
m
pa
ny
is

co
m
m
itt
ed

to
en
su
re

th
at

an
y
wh
is
tle
-b
lo
we
r
is
pr
ot
ec
te
d
ag
ai
ns
t
de
tri
m
en
ta
l
or

un
fa
ir

tre
at
m
en
t.
Th
e
wh
is
tle
-b
lo
we
r
m
us
t
id
en
tif
y
hi
m
se
lf/
he
rs
el
f
wh
en

su
bm
itt
in
g
a
co
m
pl
ai
nt
or

di
sc
lo
su
re
,w
he
re
he
/s
he
wi
ll
be
pr
ot
ec
te
d
fro
m
an
y
re
pr
is
al
wi
th
in
or
fro
m
th
e
Gr
ou
p
as
a
di
re
ct

co
ns
eq
ue
nc
e
of
th
e
di
sc
lo
su
re
.T
he
wh
is
tle
-b
lo
we
r’s

id
en
tit
y
sh
al
lb
e
ke
pt
co
nf
id
en
tia
lu
nl
es
s

ot
he
rw
is
e
re
qu
ire
d
by
ap
pl
ic
ab
le
la
ws
an
d
re
gu
la
tio
ns
or
fo
rp
ur
po
se
s
of
an
y
pr
oc
ee
di
ng
s
by
or

ag
ai
ns
tt
he
Co
m
pa
ny
.T
he
AR
C
is
re
sp
on
si
bl
e
fo
rt
he
ov
er
si
gh
ta
nd

m
on
ito
rin
g
of
th
e
wh
is
tle
-

bl
ow
in
g
po
lic
y
an
d
en
su
rin
g
th
at
it
is
pr
op
er
ly
ad
m
in
is
te
re
d.
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e
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Ex
pl
an
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io
n

De
ta
ils
of
th
e
wh
ist
le
-b
lo
wi
ng
po
lic
y
ar
e
gi
ve
n
to
al
ls
ta
ff
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p
an
d
ne
w
re
cr
ui
ts
du
rin
g

or
ie
nt
at
io
n.
Th
e
st
af
fm
ay
,i
n
co
nf
id
en
ce
,s
ub
m
itt
in
g
a
co
m
pl
ai
nt
or
di
sc
lo
su
re
in
wr
iti
ng

to
th
e

an
y
of
AR
C
m
em
be
rs
vi
a
th
e
fo
llo
wi
ng
wh
is
tle
bl
ow
@
sa
m
ur
ai
pa
in
t.j
p.

Th
er
e
we
re
no
wh
ist
le
-b
lo
wi
ng
re
po
rts
re
ce
ive
d
in
FY
20
24
.

10
.2

Th
e
AC

co
m
pr
is
es

at
le
as
t
th
re
e

di
re
ct
or
s,

al
l
of

wh
om

ar
e
no
n-

ex
ec
ut
iv
e
an
d
th
e
m
aj
or
ity
of
wh
om
,

in
cl
ud
in
g
th
e
AC

Ch
ai
rm
an
,
ar
e

in
de
pe
nd
en
t.
At
le
as
tt
wo

m
em
be
rs
,

in
cl
ud
in
g
th
e
AC

Ch
ai
rm
an
,
ha
ve

re
ce
nt

an
d

re
le
va
nt

ac
co
un
tin
g

or
re
la
te
d

fin
an
ci
al

m
an
ag
em
en
t

ex
pe
rti
se
or
ex
pe
rie
nc
e.

Pl
ea
se
re
fe
r
to
pr
ov
is
io
n
1.
4
fo
r
th
e
co
m
po
si
tio
n
of
th
e
AR
C.
Th
e
AR
C
ha
s
at
le
as
t
tw
o
(2
)

m
em
be
rs
,i
nc
lu
di
ng
th
e
AR
C
Ch
ai
rm
an
,w
ho
ha
ve
th
e
re
le
va
nt
ac
co
un
tin
g
an
d
re
la
te
d
fin
an
ci
al

m
an
ag
em
en
t
ex
pe
rti
se
an
d
ex
pe
rie
nc
e
to
di
sc
ha
rg
e
th
ei
r
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s.
Th
ey

ar
e
M
r
Li
m

Si
an
g
Ka
ia
nd
M
rL
im
Ch
on
g
Hu
at
.A
ll
th
e
AR
C
m
em
be
rs
ar
e
in
de
pe
nd
en
t.

10
.3

Th
e
AC

do
es

no
t
co
m
pr
is
e
fo
rm
er

pa
rt
ne
rs

or
di
re
ct
or
s

of
th
e

co
m
pa
ny
’s

ex
is
tin
g
au
di
tin
g
fir
m

or
au
di
tin
g
co
rp
or
at
io
n:
(a
)
wi
th
in

a
pe
rio
d
of
tw
o
ye
ar
s
co
m
m
en
ci
ng

on
th
e
da
te
of
th
ei
r
ce
as
in
g
to
be

a
pa
rtn
er

of
th
e
au
di
tin
g
fir
m

or
di
re
ct
or
of
th
e
au
di
tin
g
co
rp
or
at
io
n;

an
d
in
an
y
ca
se
,
(b
)
fo
r
as
lo
ng

as
th
ey

ha
ve

an
y
fin
an
ci
al

in
te
re
st

in
th
e
au
di
tin
g
fir
m

or
au
di
tin
g

co
rp
or
at
io
n.

No
ne
of
th
e
AR
C
m
em
be
rs
is
a
fo
rm
er
pa
rtn
er
or
di
re
ct
or
of
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
’s
ex
is
tin
g
au
di
tin
g

fir
m
or
au
di
tin
g
co
rp
or
at
io
n
(i)
wi
th
in
a
pe
rio
d
of
tw
o
(2
)y
ea
rs
co
m
m
en
ci
ng
on
th
e
da
te
of
th
ei
r

ce
as
in
g
to
be
a
pa
rtn
er
of
th
e
au
di
tin
g
fir
m
or
di
re
ct
or
of
th
e
au
di
tin
g
co
rp
or
at
io
n;
an
d
(ii
)h
ol
ds

an
yf
in
an
cia
li
nt
er
es
ti
n
th
e
au
di
tin
g
fir
m
or
au
di
tin
g
co
rp
or
at
io
n.

10
.4

Th
e
pr
im
ar
y
re
po
rti
ng

lin
e
of

th
e

in
te
rn
al

au
di
t
fu
nc
tio
n
is

to
th
e

AC
,
wh
ich

al
so

de
ci
de
s
on

th
e

ap
po
in
tm
en
t,

te
rm
in
at
io
n

an
d

re
m
un
er
at
io
n
of

th
e
he
ad

of
th
e

in
te
rn
al
au
di
tf
un
ct
io
n.
Th
e
in
te
rn
al

au
di
t
fu
nc
tio
n

ha
s
un
fe
tt
er
ed

ac
ce
ss

to
al
l
th
e

co
m
pa
ny
’s

do
cu
m
en
ts
,r
ec
or
ds
,p
ro
pe
rti
es
an
d

pe
rs
on
ne
l,
in
cl
ud
in
g
th
e
AC
,
an
d

ha
s
ap
pr
op
ria
te
st
an
di
ng

wi
th
in
th
e

co
m
pa
ny
.

Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
’s
in
te
rn
al
au
di
tf
un
ct
io
n
is
ou
ts
ou
rc
ed
to
CL
A
Gl
ob
al
TS
Ri
sk
Ad
vi
so
ry
Pt
e.
Lt
d;
a

co
m
pa
ny

of
CL
A
Gl
ob
al
TS

Ho
ld
in
gs
Pt
e.
Lt
d,
th
at
re
po
rts

di
re
ct
ly
to
th
e
AR
C
Ch
ai
rm
an

an
d

ad
m
in
is
tra
tiv
el
y
to
th
e
CE
O
an
d
FC
.T
he
in
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
ha
ve
fu
ll
ac
ce
ss
to
al
lt
he
Co
m
pa
ny
’s

do
cu
m
en
ts
,r
ec
or
ds
,p
ro
pe
rti
es
an
d
pe
rs
on
ne
li
nc
lu
di
ng

ac
ce
ss
to
th
e
AR
C.
Th
e
AR
C
re
vi
ew
s

an
d
ap
pr
ov
es
th
e
in
te
rn
al
au
di
tp
la
n
to
en
su
re
th
e
ad
eq
ua
cy
of
th
e
sc
op
e
of
au
di
t.

Th
e
AR
C
is
sa
tis
fie
d
th
at
th
e
IA
is
ad
eq
ua
te
ly
qu
al
ifi
ed
an
d
re
so
ur
ce
d,
an
d
ha
s
th
e
ap
pr
op
ria
te

st
an
di
ng

in
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny

to
di
sc
ha
rg
e
its

du
tie
s
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y
an
d
gu
id
ed

by
In
te
rn
at
io
na
l

Pr
of
es
si
on
al
Pr
ac
tic
es
Fr
am
ew
or
k
pr
om
ul
ga
te
d
by
Th
e
In
st
itu
te
of
In
te
rn
al
Au
di
to
r s
.

Th
e
AR
C
de
ci
de
s
on
th
e
ap
po
in
tm
en
t,
te
rm
in
at
io
n
an
d
re
m
un
er
at
io
n
of
th
e
ou
ts
ou
rc
ed
in
te
rn
al

au
di
tf
un
ct
io
n.
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e
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Ex
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10
.5

Th
e
AC

m
ee
ts

wi
th

th
e
ex
te
rn
al

au
di
to
rs
,
an
d
wi
th

th
e
in
te
rn
al

au
di
to
rs
,
in
ea
ch

ca
se

wi
th
ou
t
th
e

pr
es
en
ce

of
M
an
ag
em
en
t,
at
le
as
t

an
nu
al
ly.

Th
e
AR
C
ha
s
m
et
wi
th
th
e
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
an
d
in
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
in
th
e
ab
se
nc
e
of
ke
y

m
an
ag
em
en
tp
er
so
nn
el
in
FY
20
24
.

ST
AK

EH
O
LD

ER
RI
GH

TS
AN

D
EN

GA
GE

M
EN

T

Sh
ar
eh

ol
de

rs
’
Ri
gh

ts

Pr
in
ci
pl
e
11
:
Th
e
co
m
pa
ny

tre
at
s
al
ls
ha
re
ho
ld
er
s
fa
irl
y
an
d
eq
ui
ta
bl
y
in
or
de
r
to
en
ab
le
th
em

to
ex
er
ci
se
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
’r
ig
ht
s
an
d
ha
ve
th
e

op
po
rtu
ni
ty
to
co
m
m
un
ic
at
e
th
ei
r
vi
ew
s
on

m
at
te
rs
af
fe
ct
in
g
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
.
Th
e
co
m
pa
ny

gi
ve
s
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
a
ba
la
nc
ed

an
d
un
de
rs
ta
nd
ab
le

as
se
ss
m
en
to
fi
ts
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
,p
os
iti
on
an
d
pr
os
pe
ct
s.

11
.1

Th
e
co
m
pa
ny
pr
ov
id
es
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs

wi
th
th
e
op
po
rtu
ni
ty
to
pa
rti
ci
pa
te

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y
in

an
d
vo
te

at
ge
ne
ra
l

m
ee
tin
gs

of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs

an
d

in
fo
rm
s
th
em

of
th
e
ru
le
s
go
ve
rn
in
g

ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
gs
of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
.

Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
’s
co
rp
or
at
e
go
ve
rn
an
ce
pr
ac
tic
es
pr
om
ot
e
th
e
fa
ir
an
d
eq
ui
ta
bl
e
tre
at
m
en
t
to

al
ls
ha
re
ho
ld
er
s.
To

fa
ci
lit
at
e
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
’
ow
ne
rs
hi
p
rig
ht
s,
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny

en
su
re
s
th
at
al
l

m
at
er
ia
li
nf
or
m
at
io
n
is
di
sc
lo
se
d
on

a
co
m
pr
eh
en
siv
e,
ac
cu
ra
te
an
d
tim

el
y
ba
si
s
vi
a
SG
XN
ET
,

es
pe
ci
al
ly
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
pe
rta
in
in
g
to

th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
’s
bu
si
ne
ss

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t
an
d
fin
an
ci
al

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
wh
ic
h
co
ul
d
ha
ve
a
m
at
er
ia
li
m
pa
ct
on

th
e
pr
ic
e
or
va
lu
e
of
its
sh
ar
es
,s
o
as
to

en
ab
le
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
to
m
ak
e
in
fo
rm
ed
de
ci
si
on
si
n
re
sp
ec
to
ft
he
ir
in
ve
st
m
en
ts
in
th
eC
om
pa
ny
.

Th
e
Co
ns
tit
ut
io
n
al
lo
ws

al
l
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
to
ap
po
in
t
pr
ox
ie
s
to
at
te
nd

ge
ne
ra
l
m
ee
tin
g
an
d

vo
te
on

th
ei
r
be
ha
lf.
As

th
e
au
th
en
tic
at
io
n
of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
r
id
en
tit
y
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
an
d
ot
he
r

re
la
te
d
se
cu
rit
y
is
su
es
st
ill
re
m
ai
n
a
co
nc
er
n,
th
e
Gr
ou
p
ha
s
de
ci
de
d,
fo
rt
he
tim

e
be
in
g,
no
tt
o

im
pl
em
en
tv
ot
in
g
in
ab
se
nt
ia
by
m
ai
l,
em
ai
lo
rf
ax
.
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P
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vi
si
on

Co
de

D
es
cr
ip
ti
on

Co
m
pa

ny
’s

Co
m
pl
ia
nc

e
or

Ex
pl
an

at
io
n

11
.2

Th
e

co
m
pa
ny

ta
bl
es

se
pa
ra
te

re
so
lu
tio
ns

at
ge
ne
ra
l
m
ee
tin
gs

of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
on

ea
ch

su
bs
ta
nt
ia
lly

se
pa
ra
te

is
su
e
un
le
ss

th
e
is
su
es

ar
e
in
te
rd
ep
en
de
nt

an
d
lin
ke
d
so

as
to
fo
rm

on
e
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
pr
op
os
al
.

W
he
re
th
e
re
so
lu
tio
ns
ar
e
“b
un
dl
ed
”,

th
e
co
m
pa
ny

ex
pl
ai
ns

th
e
re
as
on
s

an
d
m
at
er
ia
l
im
pl
ic
at
io
ns

in
th
e

no
tic
e
of
m
ee
tin
g.

Sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
ar
e
in
fo
rm
ed

of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
’
m
ee
tin
gs

th
ro
ug
h
no
tic
es

co
nt
ai
ne
d
in
an
nu
al

re
po
rts

or
ci
rc
ul
ar
s
po
st
ed
on
to
th
e
SG
XN
ET
.

Th
e
no
tic
e
of
AG
M
,t
og
et
he
r
wi
th
th
e
an
nu
al
re
po
rt,
is
pu
bl
is
he
d
to
al
ls
ha
re
ho
ld
er
s
at
le
as
t

fo
ur
te
en

(1
4)
da
ys
be
fo
re
th
e
sc
he
du
le
d
AG
M
da
te
.
Sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
ar
e
in
vi
te
d
to
at
te
nd

th
e

ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
gs
to
pu
tf
or
th
an
y
qu
es
tio
ns
th
ey
m
ay
ha
ve
on

th
e
m
ot
io
ns
to
be
de
ba
te
d
an
d

de
ci
de
d
up
on
.

Al
l
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
ar
e
en
tit
le
d
to
vo
te
in
ac
co
rd
an
ce

wi
th
th
e
es
ta
bl
is
he
d
vo
tin
g
ru
le
s
an
d

pr
oc
ed
ur
es
.
Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny

co
nd
uc
ts
po
ll
vo
tin
g
fo
r
al
l
re
so
lu
tio
ns

ta
bl
ed

at
th
e
ge
ne
ra
l

m
ee
tin
gs
.
Th
e
ru
le
s,
in
cl
ud
in
g
th
e
vo
tin
g
pr
oc
es
s,
ar
e
ex
pl
ai
ne
d
by

th
e
sc
ru
tin
ee
rs
at
su
ch

ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
gs
.

Ev
er
y
m
at
te
rr
eq
ui
rin
g
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
’a
pp
ro
va
li
s
pr
op
os
ed
as
a
se
pa
ra
te
re
so
lu
tio
n.
W
he
re
th
e

re
so
lu
tio
ns
ar
e
“b
un
dl
ed
”,
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
ex
pl
ai
ns
th
e
re
as
on
s
an
d
m
at
er
ia
li
m
pl
ic
at
io
ns
in
th
e

no
tic
e
of
m
ee
tin
g.

11
.3

Al
l

di
re
ct
or
s

at
te
nd

ge
ne
ra
l

m
ee
tin
gs

of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
,
an
d
th
e

ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs
ar
e
al
so

pr
es
en
t

to
ad
dr
es
s
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
’
qu
er
ie
s

ab
ou
t
th
e
co
nd
uc
t
of

au
di
t
an
d

th
e
pr
ep
ar
at
io
n

an
d

co
nt
en
t
of

th
e
au
di
to
rs
’
re
po
rt
.
Di
re
ct
or
s’

at
te
nd
an
ce

at
su
ch

m
ee
tin
gs

he
ld

du
rin
g
th
e
fin
an
cia
ly
ea
r
is
di
sc
lo
se
d

in
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
’s
an
nu
al
re
po
rt.

Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
re
qu
ire
sa
ll
Di
re
ct
or
s(
in
cl
ud
in
g
th
e
re
sp
ec
tiv
e
ch
ai
rm
an
of
th
e
Bo
ar
d
Co
m
m
itt
ee
s)

to
be
pr
es
en
ta
ta
ll
ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
gs
of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
,u
nl
es
so
fe
xi
ge
nc
ie
s.
Th
e
ex
te
rn
al
au
di
to
rs

ar
e
al
so
re
qu
ire
d
to
be
pr
es
en
tt
o
ad
dr
es
s
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
’q
ue
rie
s
ab
ou
tt
he
co
nd
uc
to
fa
ud
it
an
d

th
e
pr
ep
ar
at
io
n
an
d
co
nt
en
to
ft
he
in
de
pe
nd
en
ta
ud
ito
r’s
re
po
rt.

Pl
ea
se
re
fe
rt
o
Pr
ov
isi
on
1.
5
fo
rt
he
di
re
ct
or
’s
at
te
nd
an
ce
fo
rg
en
er
al
m
ee
tin
gs
in
FY
20
24
.

11
.4

Th
e

Co
ns
ti
tu
ti
on

(o
r

ot
he
r

co
ns
tit
ut
iv
e
do
cu
m
en
ts
)
al
lo
w
fo
r

ab
se
nt
ia
vo
tin
g
at
ge
ne
ra
lm

ee
tin
gs

of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
.

Th
e
Co
ns
tit
ut
io
n
al
lo
ws

an
in
di
vi
du
al
Sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rt
o
ap
po
in
tn
ot
m
or
e
th
an
tw
o
(2
)p
ro
xi
es
to

at
te
nd
an
d
vo
te
on
hi
s
or
he
rb
eh
al
fa
tt
he
ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
gs
.

A
m
em
be
rw
ho
is
a
re
le
va
nt
in
te
rm
ed
ia
rie
sm

ay
ap
po
in
tm
or
e
th
an
tw
o
(2
)p
ro
xi
es
to
at
te
nd
an
d

sp
ea
k
at
th
e
ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
g
bu
te
ac
h
pr
ox
y
m
us
tb
e
ap
po
in
te
d
to
ex
er
ci
se
th
e
rig
ht
s
at
ta
ch
ed

to
di
ffe
re
nt
sh
ar
es
he
ld
by
su
ch
m
em
be
r.
W
he
re
su
ch
m
em
be
r’s

fo
rm

of
pr
ox
y
ap
po
in
ts
m
or
e

th
an
tw
o
(2
)p
ro
xi
es
,t
he
nu
m
be
ra
nd

cl
as
s
of
sh
ar
es
in
re
la
tio
n
to
wh
ic
h
ea
ch
pr
ox
y
ha
s
be
en

ap
po
in
te
d
sh
al
lb
e
sp
ec
ifi
ed
in
th
e
fo
rm

of
pr
ox
y.

As
th
e
au
th
en
tic
at
io
n
of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
r
id
en
tit
y
in
fo
r m
at
io
n
an
d
ot
he
r
re
la
te
d
se
cu
rit
y
is
su
es

st
ill
re
m
ai
n
a
co
nc
er
n,
th
e
Gr
ou
p
ha
s
de
ci
de
d,
fo
rt
he
tim

e
be
in
g,
no
tt
o
im
pl
em
en
tv
ot
in
g
in

ab
se
nt
ia
by
m
ai
l,
em
ai
lo
rf
ax
.
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ti
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m
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’s

Co
m
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e
or

Ex
pl
an
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io
n

11
.5

Th
e
co
m
pa
ny

pu
bl
is
he
s
m
in
ut
es
of

ge
ne
ra
l
m
ee
tin
gs

of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs

on
its

co
rp
or
at
e
we
bs
ite

as
so
on

as
pr
ac
tic
ab
le
.
Th
e
m
in
ut
es
re
co
rd

su
bs
ta
nt
ia
l
an
d
re
le
va
nt
co
m
m
en
ts

or
qu
er
ie
s

fr
om

sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs

re
la
tin
g
to
th
e
ag
en
da
of
th
e
ge
ne
ra
l

m
ee
tin
g,

an
d
re
sp
on
se
s
fro
m

th
e

Bo
ar
d
an
d
M
an
ag
em
en
t.

Al
lr
es
ol
ut
io
ns
ar
e
pu
tt
o
vo
te
by
po
ll,
an
d
th
ei
rd
et
ai
le
d
re
su
lts
wi
ll
be
an
no
un
ce
d
vi
a
SG
XN
ET

af
te
rt
he
co
nc
lu
si
on
of
th
e
ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
g.

Al
lm
in
ut
es
of
ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
gs
fo
rF
Y2
02
4
ar
e
m
ad
e
av
ai
la
bl
e
to
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
via
SG
XN
ET
.

11
.6

Th
e

co
m
pa
ny

ha
s
a
di
vi
de
nd

po
lic
y
an
d
co
m
m
un
ic
at
es

it
to

sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
.

Th
eC
om
pa
ny
cu
rre
nt
ly
do
es
no
th
av
ea
fix
ed
di
vid
en
d
po
lic
y.

In
co
ns
id
er
in
g
th
e
fo
rm
,f
re
qu
en
cy
an
d
am
ou
nt
of
fu
tu
re
di
vi
de
nd
s
in
re
sp
ec
to
fa
ny
pa
rti
cu
la
r

fin
an
cia
ly
ea
ro
rp
er
io
d,
th
e
Di
re
ct
or
sw
ill
ta
ke
in
to
ac
co
un
tt
he
fo
llo
wi
ng
fa
ct
or
s:

(a)
th
e
fin
an
cia
lp
os
iti
on
,r
es
ul
ts
of
op
er
at
io
ns
an
d
ca
sh
flo
w
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p;

(b
)

th
e
ab
ili
ty
of
th
e
su
bs
id
ia
rie
st
o
m
ak
e
di
vid
en
d
pa
ym
en
tt
o
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
;

(c)
th
e
ex
pe
ct
ed
wo
rk
in
g
ca
pi
ta
lr
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
an
d
ge
ne
ra
lf
in
an
cin
g
co
nd
iti
on
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p;

(d
)

th
e
ac
tu
al
an
d
pr
oj
ec
te
d
fin
an
cia
lp
er
fo
rm
an
ce
of
th
e
Gr
ou
p;
an
d

(e)
an
yo
th
er
fa
ct
or
sd
ee
m
ed
re
le
va
nt
by
th
e
Di
re
ct
or
s.

In
FY
20
24
,
th
e
bo
ar
d
di
d
no
t
de
cl
ar
e
an
y
di
vi
de
nd

gi
ve
n
th
e
Gr
ou
p
co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
am
on
g

ot
he
rf
ac
to
rs
,t
he
Gr
ou
p’
s
bu
si
ne
ss
pl
an
s,
ca
sh
flo
ws
a n
d
ca
sh
po
si
tio
n.
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’s

Co
m
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e
or

Ex
pl
an
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io
n

En
ga

ge
m
en

t
w
ith

Sh
ar
eh

ol
de

rs

Pr
in
ci
pl
e
12
:T
he
co
m
pa
ny
co
m
m
un
ic
at
es
re
gu
la
rly
wi
th
its
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
an
d
fa
ci
lit
at
es
th
e
pa
rti
ci
pa
tio
n
of
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
du
rin
g
ge
ne
ra
lm
ee
tin
gs

an
d
ot
he
rd
ia
lo
gu
es
to
al
lo
w
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
to
co
m
m
un
ic
at
e
th
ei
rv
ie
ws
on
va
rio
us
m
at
te
rs
af
fe
ct
in
g
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
.

12
.1

Th
e
co
m
pa
ny

pr
ov
id
es
av
en
ue
s
fo
r

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n
be
tw
ee
n
th
e
Bo
ar
d

an
d
al
ls
ha
re
ho
ld
er
sa
nd
di
sc
lo
se
si
n

its
an
nu
al
re
po
rt
th
e
st
ep
s
ta
ke
n
to

so
lic
it
an
d
un
de
rs
ta
nd

th
e
vi
ew
s
of

sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
.

Th
e
Bo
ar
d’
sp
ol
ic
yi
st
ha
ta
ll
Sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
sh
ou
ld
be
in
fo
rm
ed
si
m
ul
ta
ne
ou
sl
yi
n
an
ac
cu
ra
te
an
d

co
m
pr
eh
en
siv
e
m
an
ne
rr
eg
ar
di
ng
al
lm
at
er
ia
ld
ev
el
op
m
en
ts
th
at
im
pa
ct
th
e
Gr
ou
p
vi
a
SG
XN
ET

on
an
im
m
ed
ia
te
ba
si
s,
in
lin
e
wi
th
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
di
sc
lo
su
re
ob
lig
at
io
ns
pu
rs
ua
nt
to
th
e
Ca
ta
lis
t

Ru
le
sa
nd
th
e
Co
m
pa
ni
es
Ac
t.
Fo
rt
he
fin
an
ci
al
ye
ar
un
de
rr
ev
ie
w,
th
e
Bo
ar
d
wa
so
ft
he
vi
ew

th
at

th
e
cu
rr
en
tc
om
m
un
ica
tio
n
ch
an
ne
ls
ar
e
su
ffi
cie
nt
an
d
co
st
ef
fe
ct
ive
.

12
.2

Th
e

co
m
pa
ny

ha
s
in

pl
ac
e

an
in
ve
st
or

re
la
tio
ns

po
lic
y
w
hi
ch

al
lo
ws

fo
r
an

on
go
in
g
ex
ch
an
ge

of
vi
ew
s
so

as
to
ac
tiv
el
y
en
ga
ge

an
d

pr
om
ot
e
re
gu
la
r,
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
an
d
fa
ir

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n
wi
th
sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
.

Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny

do
es
no
t
ha
ve
an

In
ve
st
or
Re
la
tio
ns

Po
lic
y.
Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
’s
in
ve
st
or
re
la
tio
ns

fu
nc
tio
n
is
le
d
by
Fi
na
nc
ia
lC
on
tro
lle
r
(“F
C”
)w
ho

ha
s
th
e
st
ra
te
gi
c
m
an
ag
em
en
tr
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty

to
in
te
gr
at
e
fin
an
ce
,a
cc
ou
nt
in
g,
co
rp
or
at
e
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n
to
en
ab
le
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n

be
tw
ee
n
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
an
d
a l
ls
ha
re
ho
ld
er
s,
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
,a
na
ly
st
s
an
d
m
ed
ia
.

12
.3

Th
e
co
m
pa
ny
’s

in
ve
st
or

re
la
tio
ns

po
lic
y

se
ts

ou
t
th
e
m
ec
ha
ni
sm

th
ro
ug
h
wh
ich

sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs

m
ay

co
nt
ac
tt
he
co
m
pa
ny
wi
th
qu
es
tio
ns

an
d
th
ro
ug
h
wh
ic
h
th
e
co
m
pa
ny

m
ay
re
sp
on
d
to
su
ch
qu
es
tio
ns
.

Th
e
Gr
ou
p
ha
d
pu
bl
is
he
d
th
e
in
ve
st
or
re
la
tio
n’
se
m
ai
la
dd
re
ss
th
ro
ug
h
ou
rc
or
po
ra
te
we
bs
ite
as

we
ll
as
so
ci
al
m
ed
ia
pl
at
fo
rm
s.
Sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
m
ay
co
nt
ac
tu
s
at
ir@
sa
m
ur
ai
pa
in
t.j
p
sh
ou
ld
th
ey

ha
ve
an
y
en
qu
iri
es
.T
he
in
ve
st
or
pe
rs
on
ne
lw
ill
re
sp
on
d
on
th
e
en
qu
iri
es
ac
co
rd
in
gl
y.

M
AN

AG
IN
G

ST
AK

EH
O
LD

ER
RE

LA
TI
ON

SH
IP
S

En
ga

ge
m
en

t
w
ith

St
ak

eh
ol
de

rs

Pr
in
ci
pl
e
13
:T
he
Bo
ar
d
ad
op
ts
an
in
cl
us
iv
e
ap
pr
oa
ch
by
co
ns
id
er
in
g
an
d
ba
la
nc
in
g
th
e
ne
ed
s
an
d
in
te
re
st
s
of
m
at
er
ia
ls
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s,
as
pa
rt
of
its

ov
er
al
lr
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
to
en
su
re
th
at
th
e
be
st
in
te
re
st
s
of
th
e
co
m
pa
ny
ar
e
se
rv
ed
.

13
.1

Th
e
co
m
pa
ny

ha
s
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
in

pl
ac
e
to
id
en
tif
y
an
d
en
ga
ge
wi
th
its

m
at
er
ia
ls
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
gr
ou
ps
an
d
to

m
an
ag
e
its

re
la
tio
ns
hi
ps

wi
th
su
ch

gr
ou
ps
.

Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny

do
es

no
t
pr
ac
tic
e
se
le
ct
iv
e
di
sc
lo
su
re
.
In

lin
e
wi
th

co
nt
in
uo
us

di
sc
lo
su
re

o b
lig
at
io
ns
of
th
e
Co
m
pa
ny
pu
rs
ua
nt
to
th
e
Ca
ta
lis
tR
ul
es
an
d
th
e
Co
m
pa
ni
es
Ac
t,
th
e
Bo
ar
d’
s

po
lic
y
is
th
at
al
ls
ha
re
ho
ld
er
s
sh
ou
ld
be
eq
ua
lly
an
d
tim

el
y
in
fo
rm
ed
of
al
lm
aj
or
de
ve
lo
pm
en
ts

th
at
im
pa
ct
th
e
Gr
ou
p.
Th
e
Co
m
pa
ny

al
so
va
lu
es
th
e
fe
ed
ba
ck
ar
is
in
g
fro
m
ou
r
st
ak
eh
ol
de
r

en
ga
ge
m
en
ts
as

it
ha
s
he
lp
ed

st
re
ng
th
en

th
e
re
le
va
nc
e
of
ou
r
re
po
rti
ng

an
d
ap
pr
oa
ch

to
m
an
ag
in
g
th
e
Gr
ou
p’
s
m
at
er
ia
li
ss
ue
s.
W
e
be
lie
ve
th
at
m
ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
a
cl
os
e
re
la
tio
ns
hi
p
wi
th
ou
r

st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
is
cr
uc
ia
la
s
th
ey
su
pp
or
tu
s
in
ad
dr
es
si
ng
su
st
ai
na
bi
lit
y
ch
al
le
ng
es
.T
he
re
fo
re
,t
o

en
su
re
th
at
we

ca
n
co
nt
in
uo
us
ly
im
pr
ov
e,
we
al
wa
ys
en
ga
ge
wi
th
an
d
co
ns
ul
to
ur
di
ve
rs
e
gr
ou
ps

of
st
ak
eh
ol
de
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Mr Hau Hock Khun and Dato’ Chang Chor Choong are the Directors seeking re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be convened on 30 July 2024 (“AAGGMM”) (collectively, the “RReettiirriinngg
DDiirreeccttoorrss” and each a “RReettiirriinngg DDiirreeccttoorr”).

Pursuant to Rule 720(5) of the SGX-ST Catalist Rules, the information as set out in Appendix 7F relating to the
Retiring Directors to be put forward for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting is disclosed
below:

MR HAU HOCK KHUN DATO’ CHANG CHOR CHOONG
Date of Appointment 16 December 2016 16 December 2016
Date of last re-appointment 28 July 2021 28 July 2021
Age 52 50
Country of principal residence Malaysia Malaysia
The Board’s comments on this
appointment (including
rationale, selection criteria,
board diversity consideration,
and the search and nomination
process)

The Board of Directors of the
Company has considered,
among others, the
recommendation of Nominating
Committee (“NNCC”) and has
reviewed and considered the
contribution and performance,
attendance, preparedness,
participation, candour and
suitability of Mr Hau Hock Khun
for re-appointment as
Independent Director of the
Company. The Board has
reviewed and concluded Mr Hau
Hock Khun possess the
experience, expertise,
knowledge, and skills to
contribute towards the core
competencies of the Board.

The Board of Directors of the Company
has considered, among others, the
recommendation of NC and has
reviewed and considered the
contribution and performance,
attendance, preparedness,
participation, candour and suitability
of Dato’ Chang Chor Choong for re-
appointment as Non-Executive
Director of the Company. The Board
has reviewed and concluded that Dato’
Chang Chor Choong possess the
experience, expertise, knowledge and
skills to contribute towards the core
competencies of the Board.

Whether appointment is
executive, and if so, the area of
responsibility

Non-Executive Non-Executive

Job Title (e.g. Lead ID, AC
Chairman, AC Member etc.)

Independent Director, Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee,
Member of the Audit and Risk
Committee and Nominating
Committee

Non-Executive Director

Professional qualifications Nil Nil

Working experience and
occupation(s) during the past

8/2008-Present
Kumpulan H & L High-Tech

10/2012-Present
SBL Worldwide Trading Pte Ltd
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10 years Berhad (Independent Director)
09/2014-Present
HPI International Pte Ltd
12/2023-Present
Agape International Training
Centre Plt

09/2012-Present
Rejo Beverage Pte Ltd
07/2014-Present
Pembinaan Silih Kasih Sdn Bhd
11/2013-Present
Otachi Holdings Sdn Bhd
10/2013-Present
LSS F&B Trading (M) Sdn Bhd
06/2010-Present
Deluxe Percent Sdn. Bhd.
09/2009-Present
Wisdom Power Sdn Bhd
10/2011- Present
Fossil Food & Beverage Sdn. Bhd.
06/2011-01/2016
Exbe Marketing Sdn Bhd

Shareholding interest in the
listed issuer and its subsidiaries

No 12,750,000 ordinary shares

Any relationship (including
immediate family relationships)
with any existing director,
existing executive officer, the
issuer and/or substantial
shareholder of the listed issuer
or of any of its principal
subsidiaries.

No Yes, Dato’ Chang Chor Choong and
Dato’ Loh Shin Siong (who is also a
Non-Executive Director of the
Company), are the directors of LSS F&B
Trading (M) Sdn Bhd and Pembinaan
Silih Kasih Sdn Bhd

Conflict of Interest (including
any competing business)

No No

Undertaking (in the format set
out in Appendix 7H) under Rule
720(1) has been submitted to
the listed issuer

Yes Yes

Other Principal Commitments
Including Directorships
Past (for the last 5 years) Nil Nil
Present Kumpulan H & L High-Tech

Berhad
HTG Energy Sdn. Bhd.
Majestic Treasure Sdn. Bhd.
HPI International Sdn. Bhd.
H&C Bio Industry Sdn. Bhd.
Idone Etech Sdn. Bhd.
Eluminas Bio Industry Sdn. Bhd.
Agape International Training
Centre Plt

SBL Worldwide Trading Pte Ltd
Rejo Beverage Pte Ltd
Pembinaan Silih Kasih Sdn Bhd
Otachi Holdings Sdn Bhd
LSS F&B Trading (M) Sdn Bhd
Deluxe Percent Sdn. Bhd.
Wisdom Power Sdn Bhd
Fossil Food & Beverage Sdn. Bhd.
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DDiisscclloossee tthhee ffoolllloowwiinngg mmaatttteerrss ccoonncceerrnniinngg aann aappppooiinnttmmeenntt ooff ddiirreeccttoorr,, cchhiieeff eexxeeccuuttiivvee ooffffiicceerr,, cchhiieeff ffiinnaanncciiaall
ooffffiicceerr,, cchhiieeff ooppeerraattiinngg ooffffiicceerr,, ggeenneerraall mmaannaaggeerr oorr ootthheerr ooffffiicceerr ooff eeqquuiivvaalleenntt rraannkk.. IIff tthhee aannsswweerr ttoo aannyy
qquueessttiioonn iiss ““yyeess””,, ffuullll ddeettaaiillss mmuusstt bbee ggiivveenn..

a) Whether at any time during
the last 10 years, an application
or a petition under any
bankruptcy law of any
jurisdiction was filed against him
or against a partnership of which
he was a partner at the time
when he was a partner or at any
time within 2 years from the
date he ceased to be a partner?

No No

b) Whether at any time during
the last 10 years, an application
or a petition under any law of
any jurisdiction was filed against
an entity (not being a
partnership) of which he was a
director or an equivalent person
or a key executive, at the time
when he was a director or an
equivalent person or a key
executive of that entity or at any
time within 2 years from the
date he ceased to be a director
or an equivalent person or a key
executive of that entity, for the
winding up or dissolution of that
entity or where that entity is the
trustee of a business trust, that
business trust, on the ground of
insolvency?

No No

c) Whether there is any
unsatisfied judgement against
him?

No No

d) Whether he has ever been
convicted of any offence, in
Singapore or elsewhere,
involving fraud of dishonesty

No No
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which is punishable with
imprisonment, or has been the
subject of any criminal
proceedings (including any
pending criminal proceedings of
which he is aware) for such
purpose?

e) Whether he has ever been
convicted of any offence, in
Singapore or elsewhere,
involving a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement that
relates to the securities or
futures industry in Singapore or
elsewhere, or has been the
subject of any criminal
proceedings (including any
pending criminal proceedings of
which he is aware) for such
breach?

No No

f) Whether at any time during
the last 10 years, judgement has
been entered against him in any
civil proceedings in Singapore or
elsewhere involving a breach of
any law of regulatory
requirement that relates to the
securities or futures industry in
Singapore or elsewhere, or a
finding of fraud,
misrepresentation or dishonesty
on his part, or he has been the
subject of any civil proceedings
(including any pending civil
proceedings of which he is
aware) involving an allegation of
fraud, misrepresentation of
dishonesty on his part?

No No

g) Whether he has ever been
convicted in Singapore or
elsewhere of any offence in
connection with the formation or
management of any entity or
business trust?

No No
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h) Whether he has ever been
disqualified from acting as a
director or an equivalent person
of any entity (including the
trustee of a business trust), or
from taking part directly or
indirectly in the management of
any entity or business trust?

No No

i) Whether he has ever been the
subject of any order, judgment
or ruling of any court, tribunal
or governmental body,
permanently or temporarily
enjoining him from engaging in
any type of
business practice or activity?

No No

j) Whether he has ever, to his
knowledge, been concerned
with the management or
conduct, in Singapore or
elsewhere, of the affairs of:–
i. any corporation which has

been investigated for a
breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing corporations in
Singapore or elsewhere; or

ii. any entity (not being a
corporation) which has
been investigated for a
breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing such entities
in Singapore or
elsewhere; or

iii. any business trust which
has been investigated
for a breach of any law
or regulatory requirement
governing business trusts
in Singapore or elsewhere;
or

No No
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iv. any entity or business
trust which has been
investigated for a breach
of any law or regulatory
requirement that
relates to the securities or
futures industry in
Singapore or elsewhere

in connection with any matter
occurring or arising during that
period when he was so
concerned with the entity or
business trust?

k) Whether he has been the
subject of any current or past
investigation or disciplinary
proceedings, or has been
reprimanded or issued any
warning, by the Monetary
Authority of Singapore or any
other regulatory authority,
exchange, professional body or
government agency, whether in
Singapore or elsewhere?

No No

DDiisscclloossuurree aapppplliiccaabbllee ttoo tthhee aappppooiinnttmmeenntt ooff DDiirreeccttoorr oonnllyy..
Any prior experience as a
director of an issuer listed on
the Exchange?

If Yes, Please provide details of
prior experience

Not applicable Not applicable

Please provide details of relevant
experience and the nominating
committee's reasons for not
requiring the director to
undergo training as prescribed
by the Exchange (if applicable)

Not applicable Not applicable

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
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The directors are pleased to present their statement to the members together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and the
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended
31 March 2024.

In the opinion of the directors:

(i) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and statement of
changes in equity of the Company as set out on pages 61 to 107 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2024 and of the financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the
financial year then ended in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International); and

(ii) at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay
its debts as and when they fall due.

DDiirreeccttoorrss

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Ong Yoke En
Lim Lay Yong
Lim Siang Kai
Dato’ Chang Chor Choong
Hau Hock Khun
Dato’ Loh Shin Siong
Lim Chong Huat

AArrrraannggeemmeenntt ttoo eennaabbllee ddiirreeccttoorrss ttoo aaccqquuiirree bbeenneeffiittss

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement
whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate other than as
disclosed under “Share options and awards” in this statement.

DDiirreeccttoorrss’’ iinntteerreesstt iinn sshhaarreess oorr ddeebbeennttuurreess

The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the shares or
debentures of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings
kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Act except as follows:

NNuummbbeerr ooff oorrddiinnaarryy sshhaarreess
SShhaarreehhoollddiinnggss rreeggiisstteerreedd iinn

tthhee nnaammee ooff ddiirreeccttoorrss
AAtt AAtt

11..44..22002233 3311..33..22002244

TThhee CCoommppaannyy
Ong Yoke En 139,152,000 139,152,000
Lim Lay Yong 45,000,000 45,000,000
Dato’ Chang Chor Choong 12,750,000 12,750,000
Dato’ Loh Shin Siong 12,750,000 -
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DDiirreeccttoorrss’’ iinntteerreesstt iinn sshhaarreess oorr ddeebbeennttuurreess ((ccoonntt’’dd))

The director, Ong Yoke En, by virtue of Section 7 of the Act is deemed to have an interest in the shares held by
the Company in its wholly-owned subsidiary corporations and in the shares held by the Company in the
following subsidiary not wholly-owned by the Group:

NNuummbbeerr ooff oorrddiinnaarryy sshhaarreess
AAtt AAtt

11..44..22002233 3311..33..22002244

PT Samurai Paint 2,010 2,010

The directors’ interest in the ordinary shares of the Company as at 21 April 2024 were the same as those as at
31 March 2024.

SShhaarree ooppttiioonnss aanndd aawwaarrddss

The Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited’s Performance Share Plan (the “Plan”) and Employee Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”) were approved and adopted by the members at the shareholders’ meeting held on 16 December 2016
and will continue to remain in force until 15 December 2026, unless terminated in accordance with the rules of
the Plan and Scheme. The Plan and Scheme provide for the grant of shares and share options to employees and
directors of the Group.

The Plan and Scheme are administered by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, comprising of Mr Hau
Hock Khun (Chairman), Mr Lim Siang Kai and Mr Lim Chong Huat. A member of the Remuneration Committee
who is also a participant of the Plan and Scheme must not be involved in its deliberation in respect of awards
and options granted or to be granted to him.

The aggregate number of shares and share options which may be issued or transferred pursuant to awards
granted under the Plan and Scheme on any date, when aggregated with the aggregate number of shares over
which awards or options are granted under any other share option schemes or share schemes of the Company,
shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding shares held by the Company as treasury
shares) on the day preceding that date.

Movement in the number of options granted by the Company under the Scheme for the Group’s employees are
as follows:

NNoo.. ooff ooppttiioonnss uunnddeerr tthhee SScchheemmee

BBeeggiinnnniinngg ooff
ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr

GGrraanntteedd
dduurriinngg

ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr
FFoorrffeeiitteedd dduurriinngg
ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr

VVeesstteedd
dduurriinngg

ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr
EEnndd ooff

ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr

22002244
3 June 2019 330099,,000000 – ((7755,,000000)) – 223344,,000000
31 May 2021 11,,884455,,000000 – ((557700,,000000)) – 11,,227755,,000000

There were no options exercised during the financial year.

The details of the outstanding number of options at the end of the financial year was:

EExxeerrcciissee pprriiccee GGrraanntt ddaattee EExxeerrcciissee ppeerriioodd
22002244

NNuummbbeerr ooff ooppttiioonnss

SGD0.305 3 June 2019 3 June 2022 to 2 June 2029 234,000
SGD0.347 31 May 2021 31 May 2024 to 30 May 2031 1,275,000
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SShhaarree ooppttiioonnss aanndd aawwaarrddss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

No participant has received 5% or more of the total number of shares under option available under the Scheme.

There were no options granted to directors, controlling shareholders and their associates except as disclosed
below:

NNoo.. ooff uunniissssuueedd oorrddiinnaarryy sshhaarreess ooff tthhee CCoommppaannyy uunnddeerr ooppttiioonn

GGrraanntteedd
dduurriinngg

ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr
eennddeedd

3311..33..22002244

AAggggrreeggaattee
ggrraanntteedd ssiinnccee
ccoommmmeenncceemmeenntt
ooff SScchheemmee ttoo
3311..33..22002244

AAggggrreeggaattee
eexxeerrcciisseedd ssiinnccee
ccoommmmeenncceemmeenntt
ooff SScchheemmee ttoo
3311..33..22002244

AAggggrreeggaattee
oouuttssttaannddiinngg

aass aatt
3311..33..22002244

Ong How En(1) – 60,000 – 60,000

(1) Brother of Mr Ong Yoke En, director and controlling shareholder, and the brother-in-law of Ms Lim Lay
Yong, director. He is employed as the technical manager of Samurai 2K Aerosol Sdn. Bhd.

AAuuddiitt aanndd RRiisskk CCoommmmiitttteeee

The members of the Audit and Risk Committee during the financial year and at the date of this statement are:

Lim Siang Kai (Chairman)
Hau Hock Khun
Lim Chong Huat

The Audit and Risk Committee carried out its functions in accordance with Section 201B(5) of the Act. Their
functions are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit and Risk Committee also:

(a) reviewed the independence and objectivity of the independent auditor;

(b) reviewed the audit plan and scope of work carried out by the independent auditor and also met with the
independent auditor to discuss the results of their audit and their evaluation of the system of internal
accounting controls;

(c) reviewed the overall scope and timing of the work to be carried out by the internal auditor and also met
with internal auditor to discuss the results of their internal audit procedures;

(d) reviewed the financial statements of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 31 March
2024 and the independent auditor’s report thereon; and

(e) reviewed interested person transactions.

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the independent auditor and
has recommended to the Board that Baker Tilly TFW LLP be nominated for re-appointment as independent
auditor of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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IInnddeeppeennddeenntt aauuddiittoorr

The independent auditor, Baker Tilly TFW LLP, has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the directors

Ong Yoke En Lim Lay Yong
Director Director

15 July 2024
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RReeppoorrtt oonn tthhee AAuuddiitt ooff tthhee FFiinnaanncciiaall SSttaatteemmeennttss

OOppiinniioonn

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), as set out on pages 61 to 107, which comprise the statements of financial position of
the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
of the Group and the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial
position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International)
[“SFRS(I)”] so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial
position of the Company as at 31 March 2024 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and of the changes in equity of the Company for the
financial year ended on that date.

BBaassiiss ffoorr OOppiinniioonn

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting
Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

EEmmpphhaassiiss ooff MMaatttteerr

We draw attention to Note 29 to the financial statements with respect to the subsequent event that occurred
after the reporting period. Subsequent to the financial year end, certain properties of the Group were affected by
a fire incident. As the investigations are still on-going at the time these financial statements are authorised for
issue, details of the effects on the Group’s financial statements for the subsequent financial years ended after
31 March 2024 are not disclosed. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KKeeyy AAuuddiitt MMaatttteerr

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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RReeppoorrtt oonn tthhee AAuuddiitt ooff tthhee FFiinnaanncciiaall SSttaatteemmeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

KKeeyy AAuuddiitt MMaatttteerr ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s trade receivables of RM15,662,000 (2023: RM15,261,000) represents
approximately 12% (2023: 12%) of the Group’s total assets.

The Group determines the expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade receivables by applying the simplified
approach to recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the end of the reporting period. The Group
determined the lifetime ECL of trade receivables by performing an ECL assessment for each debtor by
considering the effects of the macroeconomic uncertainties, historical loss rate, recent payments, ongoing
business relationship, creditworthiness of each debtor and their ability to repay.

As the ECL assessment of trade receivables involves significant estimates and assumptions by the Group, we
have identified the allowance for ECL of trade receivables as a key audit matter.

The significant estimates and assumptions applied in the ECL assessment and details of ECL measurement are
disclosed in Note 3 and Note 25(b) to the financial statements.

Procedures performed by component auditor and us to address the key audit matter

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s credit policy and credit assessment procedures, including client’s
control to follow up on payments from customers and to monitor the credit limits, and evaluated the Group’s
ECL assessment for trade receivables. In testing the significant assumptions and reasonableness of the Group’s
ECL assessment, we tested the aging of trade receivables at the end of the reporting period on a sample basis,
verified historical loss rates of major trade debtors to historical payment trends, recent payments, information
relating to the Group’s ongoing business relationships and performed subsequent receipt test for major trade
debtors up to audit report date.

We have also assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the disclosures made in the financial statements.

OOtthheerr IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report 2024, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RReeppoorrtt oonn tthhee AAuuddiitt ooff tthhee FFiinnaanncciiaall SSttaatteemmeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

RReessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess ooff MMaannaaggeemmeenntt aanndd DDiirreeccttoorrss ffoorr tthhee FFiinnaanncciiaall SSttaatteemmeennttss

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and SFRS(I), and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as
necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AAuuddiittoorr’’ss RReessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess ffoorr tthhee AAuuddiitt ooff tthhee FFiinnaanncciiaall SSttaatteemmeennttss

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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RReeppoorrtt oonn tthhee AAuuddiitt ooff tthhee FFiinnaanncciiaall SSttaatteemmeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

AAuuddiittoorr’’ss RReessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess ffoorr tthhee AAuuddiitt ooff tthhee FFiinnaanncciiaall SSttaatteemmeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

RReeppoorrtt oonn OOtthheerr LLeeggaall aanndd RReegguullaattoorryy RReeqquuiirreemmeennttss

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by the
subsidiary corporation incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lee Chee Sum Gilbert.

Baker Tilly TFW LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

15 July 2024
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22002244 2023
Note RRMM’’000000 RM’000

RReevveennuuee 4 7799,,882233 70,268
Cost of sales ((4455,,119922)) (49,299)

Gross profit 3344,,663311 20,969

Other income 5 11,,775511 1,133
Administrative expenses ((2200,,006677)) (17,542)
Marketing and distribution expenses ((99,,557700)) (13,607)
Finance costs 6 ((11,,666666)) (1,232)

PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) bbeeffoorree ttaaxx 7 55,,007799 (10,279)

Tax expense 9 ((33,,554422)) (1,166)

PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) ffoorr tthhee ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr 11,,553377 (11,445)

OOtthheerr ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee lloossss ffoorr tthhee ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr,,
nneett ooff ttaaxx::
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences arising from
consolidation ((4433)) (195)

TToottaall ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee iinnccoommee//((lloossss)) ffoorr tthhee
ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr 11,,449944 (11,640)

PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) aattttrriibbuuttaabbllee ttoo::
Equity holders of the Company 11,,553388 (11,445)
Non-controlling interest ((11)) –

11,,553377 (11,445)

TToottaall ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee iinnccoommee//((lloossss)) aattttrriibbuuttaabbllee ttoo::
Equity holders of the Company 11,,449988 (11,639)
Non-controlling interest ((44)) (1)

11,,449944 (11,640)

EEaarrnniinnggss//((lloossss)) ppeerr sshhaarree ffoorr pprrooffiitt//((lloossss)) aattttrriibbuuttaabbllee
ttoo eeqquuiittyy hhoollddeerrss ooff tthhee CCoommppaannyy ((RRMM sseenn ppeerr
sshhaarree))
Basic and diluted 10 00..4466 (3.42)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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22002244 2023
Note RRMM’’000000 RM’000

RReevveennuuee 4 7799,,882233 70,268
Cost of sales ((4455,,119922)) (49,299)

Gross profit 3344,,663311 20,969

Other income 5 11,,775511 1,133
Administrative expenses ((2200,,006677)) (17,542)
Marketing and distribution expenses ((99,,557700)) (13,607)
Finance costs 6 ((11,,666666)) (1,232)

PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) bbeeffoorree ttaaxx 7 55,,007799 (10,279)

Tax expense 9 ((33,,554422)) (1,166)

PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) ffoorr tthhee ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr 11,,553377 (11,445)

OOtthheerr ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee lloossss ffoorr tthhee ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr,,
nneett ooff ttaaxx::
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences arising from
consolidation ((4433)) (195)

TToottaall ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee iinnccoommee//((lloossss)) ffoorr tthhee
ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr 11,,449944 (11,640)

PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) aattttrriibbuuttaabbllee ttoo::
Equity holders of the Company 11,,553388 (11,445)
Non-controlling interest ((11)) –

11,,553377 (11,445)

TToottaall ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee iinnccoommee//((lloossss)) aattttrriibbuuttaabbllee ttoo::
Equity holders of the Company 11,,449988 (11,639)
Non-controlling interest ((44)) (1)

11,,449944 (11,640)

EEaarrnniinnggss//((lloossss)) ppeerr sshhaarree ffoorr pprrooffiitt//((lloossss)) aattttrriibbuuttaabbllee
ttoo eeqquuiittyy hhoollddeerrss ooff tthhee CCoommppaannyy ((RRMM sseenn ppeerr
sshhaarree))
Basic and diluted 10 00..4466 (3.42)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024



GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy
22002244 2023 22002244 2023

Note RRMM’’000000 RM’000 RRMM’’000000 RM’000
NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt aasssseettss
Property, plant and equipment 11 5522,,003399 47,820 –– –
Intangible assets 12 22,,442277 2,364 –– –
Investment in subsidiaries 13 –– – 1177,,665533 18,363
Deferred tax assets 14 7788 78 –– –
Trade and other receivables 16 33,,445555 4,764 –– –
TToottaall nnoonn--ccuurrrreenntt aasssseettss 5577,,999999 55,026 1177,,665533 18,363
CCuurrrreenntt aasssseettss
Inventories 15 1177,,778855 16,831 –– –
Trade and other receivables 16 1199,,001177 17,960 3355,,004411 33,785
Tax receivable 55,,339977 4,035 –– –
Cash and bank balances 17 3311,,559911 34,488 111199 1,703
TToottaall ccuurrrreenntt aasssseettss 7733,,779900 73,314 3355,,116600 35,488

TToottaall aasssseettss 113311,,778899 128,340 5522,,881133 53,851

NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt lliiaabbiilliittiieess
Borrowings 18 2222,,339977 20,175 –– –
Deferred tax liabilities 14 11,,998866 1,786 –– –
Other payables 19 9966 94 –– –

TToottaall nnoonn--ccuurrrreenntt lliiaabbiilliittiieess 2244,,447799 22,055 –– –

CCuurrrreenntt lliiaabbiilliittiieess
Trade and other payables 19 1177,,114455 17,648 33,,666699 4,518
Borrowings 18 1122,,220055 12,754 –– –
Tax payable 11,,228833 737 772222 182

TToottaall ccuurrrreenntt lliiaabbiilliittiieess 3300,,663333 31,139 44,,339911 4,700

TToottaall lliiaabbiilliittiieess 5555,,111122 53,194 44,,339911 4,700

NNeett aasssseettss 7766,,667777 75,146 4488,,442222 49,151

EEqquuiittyy
Share capital 20 5577,,116655 57,165 5577,,116655 57,165
Treasury shares 20 ((6644)) (64) ((6644)) (64)
Share option reserve 22 668888 651 668888 651
Retained
earnings/(accumulated
losses) 2288,,999999 27,461 ((99,,336677)) (8,601)
Currency translation reserve ((552299)) (489) –– –
Merger reserve 23 ((99,,336688)) (9,368) –– –

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 7766,,889911 75,356 4488,,442222 49,151
Non-controlling interest ((221144)) (210) –– –

TToottaall eeqquuiittyy 7766,,667777 75,146 4488,,442222 49,151

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
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22002244 2023
Note RRMM’’000000 RM’000

RReevveennuuee 4 7799,,882233 70,268
Cost of sales ((4455,,119922)) (49,299)

Gross profit 3344,,663311 20,969

Other income 5 11,,775511 1,133
Administrative expenses ((2200,,006677)) (17,542)
Marketing and distribution expenses ((99,,557700)) (13,607)
Finance costs 6 ((11,,666666)) (1,232)

PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) bbeeffoorree ttaaxx 7 55,,007799 (10,279)

Tax expense 9 ((33,,554422)) (1,166)

PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) ffoorr tthhee ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr 11,,553377 (11,445)

OOtthheerr ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee lloossss ffoorr tthhee ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr,,
nneett ooff ttaaxx::
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences arising from
consolidation ((4433)) (195)

TToottaall ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee iinnccoommee//((lloossss)) ffoorr tthhee
ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr 11,,449944 (11,640)

PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) aattttrriibbuuttaabbllee ttoo::
Equity holders of the Company 11,,553388 (11,445)
Non-controlling interest ((11)) –

11,,553377 (11,445)

TToottaall ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee iinnccoommee//((lloossss)) aattttrriibbuuttaabbllee ttoo::
Equity holders of the Company 11,,449988 (11,639)
Non-controlling interest ((44)) (1)

11,,449944 (11,640)

EEaarrnniinnggss//((lloossss)) ppeerr sshhaarree ffoorr pprrooffiitt//((lloossss)) aattttrriibbuuttaabbllee
ttoo eeqquuiittyy hhoollddeerrss ooff tthhee CCoommppaannyy ((RRMM sseenn ppeerr
sshhaarree))
Basic and diluted 10 00..4466 (3.42)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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((AAccccuummuullaatteedd
SShhaarree lloosssseess))//

SShhaarree TTrreeaassuurryy ooppttiioonn rreettaaiinneedd TToottaall
ccaappiittaall sshhaarreess rreesseerrvvee eeaarrnniinnggss eeqquuiittyy
RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

CCoommppaannyy

Balance at 1 April 2023 57,165 (64) 651 (8,601) 49,151
Loss for the financial year – – – (766) (766)
Employee share option scheme
(Note 22) – – 37 – 37

BBaallaannccee aatt 3311 MMaarrcchh 22002244 5577,,116655 ((6644)) 668888 ((99,,336677)) 4488,,442222

Balance at 1 April 2022 57,165 (64) 448 9,288 66,837
Dividend paid (Note 21) – – – (6,479) (6,479)
Loss for the financial year – – – (11,410) (11,410)
Employee share option scheme
(Note 22) – – 203 – 203

Balance at 31 March 2023 57,165 (64) 651 (8,601) 49,151

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
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22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

CCaasshh fflloowwss ffrroomm ooppeerraattiinngg aaccttiivviittiieess
Profit/(loss) before tax 55,,007799 (10,279)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 44,,990099 5,241
Amortisation of intangible assets 334411 301
Employee share option expense 3377 203
Interest expenses 11,,666666 1,232
Interest income ((776611)) (683)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain ((443311)) (287)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 1100,,884400 (4,272)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Inventories ((995544)) 815
Receivables ((664499)) 4,612
Payables ((550011)) (10,560)
Currency translation adjustments ((6611)) (229)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 88,,667755 (9,634)
Income tax paid ((44,,115599)) (5,311)
Interest received 3344 63
NNeett ccaasshh ggeenneerraatteedd ffrroomm//((uusseedd iinn)) ooppeerraattiinngg aaccttiivviittiieess 44,,555500 (14,882)

CCaasshh fflloowwss ffrroomm iinnvveessttiinngg aaccttiivviittiieess
Purchase of intangible assets ((440044)) (1,849)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [Note 11(ii)] ((66,,886611)) (23,131)
Interest received 772277 620
Prepayment of intangible assets ((221199)) (758)
NNeett ccaasshh uusseedd iinn iinnvveessttiinngg aaccttiivviittiieess ((66,,775577)) (25,118)

CCaasshh fflloowwss ffrroomm ffiinnaanncciinngg aaccttiivviittiieess
Dividend paid –– (6,479)
Deposits pledged ((1188)) (55)
Repayment of banker’s acceptance ((11,,662288)) (359)
Drawdown of bank borrowings 33,,772233 16,400
Repayment of bank borrowings ((880022)) (6,002)
Repayment of lease liabilities ((11,,110033)) (878)
Interest paid ((11,,666666)) (1,232)
Prepayment of hire purchase agreement –– (67)
Prepayment of right-of-use assets ((7766)) ––
NNeett ccaasshh ((uusseedd iinn))//ggeenneerraatteedd ffrroomm ffiinnaanncciinngg aaccttiivviittiieess ((11,,557700)) 1,328
NNeett ddeeccrreeaassee iinn ccaasshh aanndd ccaasshh eeqquuiivvaalleennttss ((33,,777777)) (38,672)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 3333,,226644 71,942
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2200 (6)
CCaasshh aanndd ccaasshh eeqquuiivvaalleennttss aatt eenndd ooff tthhee ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr
((NNoottee 1177)) 2299,,550077 33,264



These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

11 CCoorrppoorraattee iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn

Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited (the “Company”) (Co. Reg. No. 201606168C) is incorporated as a private limited
company and domiciled in Singapore on 9 March 2016. It was converted into a public company limited by
shares on 16 December 2016 and is listed on the Catalist board of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”).

The registered office of the Company is at 133 North Bridge Road, #08-03 Chinatown Point,
Singapore 059413. The principal place of business of the Company is located at No. 6, Jalan Dato Yunus 1,
Kawasan Perindustrian Dato Yunus Sulaiman, Lima Kedai, 81120 Skudai, Johor, Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 13.

22 MMaatteerriiaall aaccccoouunnttiinngg ppoolliicciieess

aa)) BBaassiiss ooff pprreeppaarraattiioonn

The financial statements are presented in Malaysia Ringgit and are rounded to the nearest thousand
(RM’000) except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
1967 and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) [“SFRS(I)”]. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with SFRS(I) requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the financial year. Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions and historical experiences and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement in applying accounting policies, or areas where
assumptions and estimates have a significant risk of resulting in material adjustment within the next
financial year are disclosed in Note 3.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, trade and other current receivables and payables
approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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22 MMaatteerriiaall aaccccoouunnttiinngg ppoolliicciieess ((ccoonntt’’dd))

aa)) BBaassiiss ooff pprreeppaarraattiioonn ((ccoonntt’’dd))

New and revised standards that are adopted

In the current financial year, the Group and the Company have adopted all new and revised SFRS(I) and
SFRS(I) Interpretations [“SFRS(I) INT”] that are effective for the current financial year. Changes to the
Group’s accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance with the transitional provisions
in the respective SFRS(I) and SFRS(I) INT.

The application of these new and revised SFRS(I) and SFRS(I) INT did not have any material effect on the
financial results or position of the Group and the Company except as disclosed below:

AAmmeennddmmeennttss ttoo SSFFRRSS((II)) 11--11 aanndd SSFFRRSS((II)) PPrraaccttiiccee SSttaatteemmeenntt 22:: DDiisscclloossuurree ooff AAccccoouunnttiinngg PPoolliicciieess

The amendments to SFRS(I) 1-1 and SFRS(I) Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide
guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures.
The amendments require entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies, and provide guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The Group has adopted the amendments to SFRS(I) 1-1 on disclosures of accounting policies. The
amendments have no impact on the measurement, recognition and presentation of any items in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.

New and revised standards not yet effective

New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that have been issued at the reporting
date but are not yet effective for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 have not been applied in
preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to have a significant effect on the
financial statements of the Group and the Company.

bb)) SSuubbssiiddiiaarriieess

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. On disposal of the investments, the difference between
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the investments are recognised in profit or loss.

cc)) PPrrooppeerrttyy,, ppllaanntt aanndd eeqquuiippmmeenntt

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the asset. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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22 MMaatteerriiaall aaccccoouunnttiinngg ppoolliicciieess ((ccoonntt’’dd))

cc)) PPrrooppeerrttyy,, ppllaanntt aanndd eeqquuiippmmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Depreciation for other items of property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis to
allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful lives of the asset. The useful lives for
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

YYeeaarrss
Freehold properties 50
Leasehold properties 1 - 6
Furniture, fittings and equipment 4 - 12
Motor vehicles 8 - 10
Plant and machinery 8
Renovation 10

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction for production are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss until construction is completed. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

dd)) IInnttaannggiibbllee aasssseettss

Acquired computer software licenses

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Direct expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of
computer software beyond its original specifications and which can be reliably measured, is recognised
as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software. Costs associated with
maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Acquired computer software licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. These costs are amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to successfully register patents
and trademarks in various countries. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of patents and trademarks over 10 to 20 years, based on the shorter of their estimated
useful lives and periods of contractual rights.

ee)) FFiinnaanncciiaall aasssseettss

Debt instruments include cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables [excluding advance
payment to suppliers, prepayments, goods and services tax (“GST”) receivables and tax receivable]. The
Group’s debt instruments are measured at amortised cost.

IImmppaaiirrmmeenntt

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for financial assets carried at
amortised cost. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.
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22 MMaatteerriiaall aaccccoouunnttiinngg ppoolliicciieess ((ccoonntt’’dd))

ee)) FFiinnaanncciiaall aasssseettss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

IImmppaaiirrmmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a “12-month ECL”). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a “lifetime
ECL”).

For trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component, the Group applies a simplified
approach to recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
determined the lifetime ECL of trade receivables by performing an ECL assessment for each debtor by
considering the historical loss rate, recent payments, ongoing business relationship, creditworthiness of
each debtor and their ability to repay.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in
the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

ff)) IInnvveennttoorriieess

Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads based on normal operating capacity
but excludes borrowing costs.

gg)) FFiinnaanncciiaall lliiaabbiilliittiieess

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings. Financial liabilities are recognised
on the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished. Gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised and through the
amortisation process.

hh)) RReevveennuuee rreeccooggnniittiioonn

Sale of aerosol spray paints

The Group manufactures and sell aerosol spray paints. Sales is recognised when the goods have been
delivered and control of the goods has been transferred to its customer. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that there will be no significant reversal when the uncertainty is resolved. No element
of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30 to 120 days, which is
consistent with market practice. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.
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22 MMaatteerriiaall aaccccoouunnttiinngg ppoolliicciieess ((ccoonntt’’dd))

hh)) RReevveennuuee rreeccooggnniittiioonn ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income

Rental income from operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii)) LLeeaasseess

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

WWhheenn aa GGrroouupp eennttiittyy iiss tthhee lleesssseeee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases (i.e. for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). For these exempted leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted by using the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilities comprise fixed lease payments
(including in-substance fixed payments). Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

The lease liabilities are presented within “borrowings” in the statements of financial position.

The lease liabilities are subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liabilities using the effective interest method, and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-
of-use asset) whenever there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement date, initial direct
cost, less any lease incentive received.
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ii)) LLeeaasseess ((ccoonntt’’dd))

WWhheenn aa GGrroouupp eennttiittyy iiss tthhee lleesssseeee ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Right-of-use assets (cont’d)

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter period of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The right-of-use assets are presented within “property, plant and equipment” in the
statements of financial position.

The Group applies SFRS(I) 1-36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is
impaired.

jj)) EEmmppllooyyeeee bbeenneeffiittss

Share-based compensation

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share options as consideration for services
rendered. The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the
fair value of the share options on the date of the grant. This cost is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding increase in the share option reserve, over the vesting period. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in the estimation of the number of shares that are expected to vest on the
vesting date. At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares that are
expected to vest on the vesting date and recognises the impact of the revision of the estimates in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve over the remaining vesting period.

When the share options are exercised, the related balance previously recognised in the share option
reserve and the proceeds received (net of transaction costs) are credited to the share capital account
when new ordinary shares are issued. If the share options are not exercised by the expiry date, the
balance in the share option reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

kk)) BBoorrrroowwiinngg ccoossttss

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

33 CCrriittiiccaall aaccccoouunnttiinngg jjuuddggeemmeennttss aanndd kkeeyy ssoouurrcceess ooff eessttiimmaattiioonn uunncceerrttaaiinnttyy

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management has
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

CCrriittiiccaall jjuuddggeemmeennttss iinn aappppllyyiinngg tthhee GGrroouupp’’ss aaccccoouunnttiinngg ppoolliicciieess

Functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in the respective functional currencies of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In determining the functional currencies of the entities in the Group, judgement is
required by management to determine the primary economic environment in which the entities operate, the
entities’ process of determining sales prices and the currency of the country whose competitive forces and
regulations mainly influences the prices of its goods and services.
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33 CCrriittiiccaall aaccccoouunnttiinngg jjuuddggeemmeennttss aanndd kkeeyy ssoouurrcceess ooff eessttiimmaattiioonn uunncceerrttaaiinnttyy ((ccoonntt’’dd))

CCrriittiiccaall jjuuddggeemmeennttss iinn aappppllyyiinngg tthhee GGrroouupp’’ss aaccccoouunnttiinngg ppoolliicciieess ((ccoonntt’’dd))
Functional currency (cont’d)
Management has assessed that prices are mainly denominated and settled in the respective local currency
of the entities of the Group. In addition, most of the entities’ cost base is mainly denominated in their
respective local currency. Therefore, management concluded that the functional currency of the entities of
the Group is their respective local currency.
In view of the financial reliance of the Company on the operations of its major subsidiary in Malaysia, the
management determined that RM is the functional currency of the Company.
KKeeyy ssoouurrcceess ooff eessttiimmaattiioonn uunncceerrttaaiinnttyy

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables

Management determines the expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade receivables by applying the simplified
approach to recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the end of the reporting period. The Group
determined the lifetime ECL of trade receivables by performing an ECL assessment for each debtor by
considering the effects of the macroeconomic uncertainties, the historical loss rate, recent payments,
ongoing business relationship, creditworthiness of each debtor and their ability to repay.

As the ECL assessment of trade receivables is subject to assumptions and forecasts, any changes to these
estimations will affect the amounts of loss allowance recognised and the carrying amounts of trade
receivables. Details of ECL measurement and carrying amount of trade receivables are disclosed in Note
25(b) and Note 16 respectively.

Write down of inventories

Where necessary, inventories are written down to net realisable value for estimated losses where the cost of
inventories may not be recoverable. The Group estimates the write down based upon an analysis of the
physical conditions of the products, product demand, anticipated selling prices and usability of the raw
materials and packaging materials. Adjustments to the carrying amount of inventories may be made in
future periods in the event that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable resulting from future loss
events.

The carrying amount of the Group’s inventories at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
Note 15.

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there are any indicators of impairment
for investment in subsidiaries. Investment in subsidiaries are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
amount of the investment exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, management carried out a review of the recoverable
amounts of the Company’s investments in Samurai 2K USA Inc, Samurai 2K India Private Limited and
Orientus (Singapore) Pte Ltd due to indications of impairment loss where these subsidiaries have been
persistently making losses since incorporation. The recoverable amount of these investments were
determined based on fair value less cost to sell method. The fair value was determined as the adjusted value
of assets upon disposal and realisation of liabilities. This fair value measurement is categorised as Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Impairment losses of RM747,000 were recognised to write down the carrying values
of the investments to their recoverable amounts of RMNil. Based on management’s assessment, no further
impairment on the Company’s investments in the other subsidiaries are necessary at the end of the
reporting period.
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33 CCrriittiiccaall aaccccoouunnttiinngg jjuuddggeemmeennttss aanndd kkeeyy ssoouurrcceess ooff eessttiimmaattiioonn uunncceerrttaaiinnttyy ((ccoonntt’’dd))

KKeeyy ssoouurrcceess ooff eessttiimmaattiioonn uunncceerrttaaiinnttyy ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, management carried out a review of the recoverable
amount of one of the Company’s investment in Samurai 2K USA Inc due to indications of impairment loss
where the subsidiary has been persistently making losses since incorporation. The recoverable amount of
the investment in subsidiary was determined based on fair value less cost to sell method. The fair value was
determined as the adjusted value of assets upon disposal and realisation of liabilities. This fair value
measurement is categorised as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. An impairment loss of RM648,000 was
recognised to write down the carrying value of the investment to its recoverable amount of RMNil. Based on
management’s assessment, no further impairment on the Company’s investments in the other subsidiaries
are necessary at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of investment in subsidiaries is disclosed in Note 13.

44 RReevveennuuee
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

TTiimmiinngg ooff rreevveennuuee rreeccooggnniittiioonn
Sale of goods - At a point in time 7799,,882233 70,268

55 OOtthheerr iinnccoommee
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Foreign exchange gain, net 779966 263
Interest income 776611 683
Rental income 118800 180
Other income 1144 7

11,,775511 1,133
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66 FFiinnaannccee ccoossttss
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Interest expenses:
- Lease liabilities 115555 89
- Term loans 996611 541
- Banker’s acceptance 555500 602

11,,666666 1,232

77 PPrrooffiitt//((lloossss)) bbeeffoorree ttaaxx GGrroouupp
22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

This is arrived at after charging:

Audit fees paid/payable to:
- Auditor of the Company 221100 168
- Other auditors – network firms 8899 102
Fees for non-audit services paid/payable to:
- Auditor of the Company 1166 14
- Other auditors – non-network firms 112299 101
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 44,,990099 5,241
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 12) 334411 301
Marketing and promotional expenses 99,,557700 12,212
Rental expenses (Note 18) 440077 154
Personnel expenses (Note 8) 1144,,773322 15,088

88 PPeerrssoonnnneell eexxppeennsseess
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Key management personnel
- Salaries, bonus and other benefits 44,,221100 4,624
- Defined contribution plan 118833 235
- Employee share option scheme 9955 102

44,,448888 4,961

Other personnel
- Salaries, bonus and other benefits 99,,442266 9,185
- Defined contribution plan 773399 841
- Employee share option scheme 7799 101

1100,,224444 10,127

1144,,773322 15,088
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99 TTaaxx eexxppeennssee
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Withholding tax 554400 –

Income tax:
- Current year 22,,559988 –
- Under provision in respect of previous years 220044 692

22,,880022 692

Deferred tax (Note 14):
- Current year ((111100)) (56)
- Under provision of deferred tax in respect of previous years 331100 530

220000 474

33,,554422 1,166
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99 TTaaxx eexxppeennssee ((ccoonntt’’dd))

The income tax expense on the results of the financial year differs from the amount of income tax
determined by applying the domestic income tax rates applicable to profit/(loss) in the countries where the
Group operates due to the following factors:

GGrroouupp
22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Profit/(loss) before tax 55,,007799 (10,279)

Tax at the domestic income tax rates applicable to profit/(loss)
in the countries where the Group operates 11,,009988 (2,173)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 331166 1,090
Non-taxable income – (3)
Under provision of income tax in respect of previous years 220044 692
Under provision of deferred tax in respect of previous years 331100 530
Deferred tax asset not recognised 11,,113366 1,106
Withholding tax 554400 –
Singapore statutory stepped income exemption ((6611)) (45)
Others ((11)) (31)

33,,554422 1,166

The above tax reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national
jurisdiction.

The income tax rate applicable to companies incorporated in Singapore and foreign subsidiaries of the
Group are 17% (2023: 17%) and 17% to 26% (2023: 17% to 26%) respectively for the financial year ended 31
March 2024.

1100 EEaarrnniinnggss//((lloossss)) ppeerr sshhaarree

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the ordinary
equity holders of the Company is based on the following data:

GGrroouupp
22002244 2023

Profit/(loss) for the financial year attributable to equity holders
of the Company (RM’000) 11,,553388 (11,445)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (’000) 333344,,662200 334,620
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for effect
of treasury shares held (’000) 333344,,556655 334,565

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share (RM sen per share) 00..4466 (3.42)

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Group’s potential ordinary shares comprise employee share
options. The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share does not adjust for the effects of the potential
ordinary shares from employee share options as these did not have a dilutive effect on the earnings/(loss)
per share calculation since the exercise price of the options exceeds the average market price of ordinary
shares during the financial year.
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1111 PPrrooppeerrttyy,, ppllaanntt aanndd eeqquuiippmmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

i) Included in property, plant and equipment are right-of-use assets of RM2,017,000 (2023: RM1,964,000)
(Note 18).

ii) Net cash outflow for purchase of property, plant and equipment.
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Aggregate cost of property, plant and equipment acquired 99,,115500 24,274
Less: additions to right-of-use assets (Note 18) ((668855)) (1,143)
Less: prepayment of right-of-use assets ((7766)) –
Less: purchases paid in previous financial years ((11,,552288)) –

Net cash outflow for purchase of property, plant and equipment 66,,886611 23,131

iii) Assets pledged as security

The Group’s freehold land and properties with a carrying amount of RM28,183,000
(2023: RM28,670,000) are pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 18).

1122 IInnttaannggiibbllee aasssseettss
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Acquired computer software license [Note (a)] 11,,996666 2,014
Patents and trademarks [Note (b)] 446611 350

22,,442277 2,364

a) Acquired computer software licenses
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

CCoosstt
At 1 April 22,,995522 1,108
Additions 226644 1,844

At 31 March 33,,221166 2,952

AAmmoorrttiissaattiioonn
At 1 April 993388 666
Amortisation charge 331122 272

At 31 March 11,,225500 938

NNeett ccaarrrryyiinngg aammoouunntt
At 31 March 11,,996666 2,0141111
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1111 PPrrooppeerrttyy,, ppllaanntt aanndd eeqquuiippmmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

i) Included in property, plant and equipment are right-of-use assets of RM2,017,000 (2023: RM1,964,000)
(Note 18).

ii) Net cash outflow for purchase of property, plant and equipment.
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Aggregate cost of property, plant and equipment acquired 99,,115500 24,274
Less: additions to right-of-use assets (Note 18) ((668855)) (1,143)
Less: prepayment of right-of-use assets ((7766)) –
Less: purchases paid in previous financial years ((11,,552288)) –

Net cash outflow for purchase of property, plant and equipment 66,,886611 23,131

iii) Assets pledged as security

The Group’s freehold land and properties with a carrying amount of RM28,183,000
(2023: RM28,670,000) are pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 18).

1122 IInnttaannggiibbllee aasssseettss
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Acquired computer software license [Note (a)] 11,,996666 2,014
Patents and trademarks [Note (b)] 446611 350

22,,442277 2,364

a) Acquired computer software licenses
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

CCoosstt
At 1 April 22,,995522 1,108
Additions 226644 1,844

At 31 March 33,,221166 2,952

AAmmoorrttiissaattiioonn
At 1 April 993388 666
Amortisation charge 331122 272

At 31 March 11,,225500 938

NNeett ccaarrrryyiinngg aammoouunntt
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1111 PPrrooppeerrttyy,, ppllaanntt aanndd eeqquuiippmmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

i) Included in property, plant and equipment are right-of-use assets of RM2,017,000 (2023: RM1,964,000)
(Note 18).

ii) Net cash outflow for purchase of property, plant and equipment.
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Aggregate cost of property, plant and equipment acquired 99,,115500 24,274
Less: additions to right-of-use assets (Note 18) ((668855)) (1,143)
Less: prepayment of right-of-use assets ((7766)) –
Less: purchases paid in previous financial years ((11,,552288)) –

Net cash outflow for purchase of property, plant and equipment 66,,886611 23,131

iii) Assets pledged as security

The Group’s freehold land and properties with a carrying amount of RM28,183,000
(2023: RM28,670,000) are pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 18).

1122 IInnttaannggiibbllee aasssseettss
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Acquired computer software license [Note (a)] 11,,996666 2,014
Patents and trademarks [Note (b)] 446611 350

22,,442277 2,364

a) Acquired computer software licenses
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

CCoosstt
At 1 April 22,,995522 1,108
Additions 226644 1,844

At 31 March 33,,221166 2,952

AAmmoorrttiissaattiioonn
At 1 April 993388 666
Amortisation charge 331122 272

At 31 March 11,,225500 938

NNeett ccaarrrryyiinngg aammoouunntt
At 31 March 11,,996666 2,014
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1122 IInnttaannggiibbllee aasssseettss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

b) Patent and trademarks

GGrroouupp
22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

CCoosstt
At 1 April 443300 425
Additions 114400 5

At 31 March 557700 430

AAmmoorrttiissaattiioonn
At 1 April 8800 51
Amortisation charge 2299 29

At 31 March 110099 80

NNeett ccaarrrryyiinngg aammoouunntt
At 31 March 446611 350

1133 IInnvveessttmmeenntt iinn ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess
CCoommppaannyy

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

UUnnqquuootteedd sshhaarreess,, aatt ccoosstt
Balance at beginning of financial year 1199,,775566 16,403
Addition due to incorporation of subsidiary – 3,150
Addition due to share options issued to employees of
its subsidiaries (Note 22) 3377 203

1199,,779933 19,756
Less: Allowance for impairment loss ((22,,114400)) (1,393)

Balance at end of financial year 1177,,665533 18,363

Allowance for impairment loss
Balance at beginning of financial year 11,,339933 745
Impairment charge 774477 648

Balance at end of financial year 22,,114400 1,393
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1133 IInnvveessttmmeenntt iinn ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess ((ccoonntt’’dd))

i) Details of the subsidiaries are:
PPrrooppoorrttiioonn ooff

PPrriinncciippaall oowwnneerrsshhiipp
ppllaaccee ooff PPrriinncciippaall iinntteerreesstt

NNaammee ooff ssuubbssiiddiiaarryy bbuussiinneessss bbuussiinneessss aaccttiivviittiieess 22002244 2023
%% %

Held by the Company
Samurai 2K Aerosol Sdn. Bhd.(1) Malaysia Manufacturing and

sales of aerosol spray
paints and related
material

110000 100

PT Samurai Paint (2) Indonesia Dormant 6677 67

Samurai 2K USA Inc (2) United
States of
America

Import aerosol paint
products and
wholesales

110000 100

Orientus Singapore Pte Ltd (3) Singapore Trading of aerosol
spray paints and
related material

110000 100

Samurai 2U Sdn. Bhd. (1) Malaysia To carry business of
E-Commerce for all
type of goods

110000 100

Samurai 2K India Private
Limited (2)

India Import aerosol paint
products and
wholesales

110000 # 100 #

PT Samurai Kurobushi
Indonesia (2) (4)

Indonesia Dormant 110000 ## 110000 ##

(1) Audited by independent overseas member firm of Baker Tilly International.

(2) Not required to be audited by law of country of incorporation.

(3) Audited by Baker Tilly TFW LLP, Singapore.

(4) Incorporated during the financial year ended 31 March 2023 with share capital of Indonesian Rupiah
(“IDR”) 10,500,000,000 (equivalent to RM3,150,000).

# In Samurai 2K India Private Limited, 99.9998% equity interest is held by the Company and 0.0002%
equity interest is held in trust for the Company by an individual. Effectively, the Company holds
100% of the voting rights of Samurai 2K India Private Limited.

## In PT Samurai Kurobushi Indonesia, 99% equity interest is held by the Company and 1% equity
interest is held in trust for the Company by an individual. Effectively, the Company holds 100% of
the voting rights of PT Samurai Kurobushi Indonesia.

ii) At the end of the reporting period, there are no subsidiaries with non-controlling interests that are
considered by management to be material to the Group. Accordingly, the summarised financial
information of the subsidiaries is not being disclosed.
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1133 IInnvveessttmmeenntt iinn ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess ((ccoonntt’’dd))

iii) During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Company fully impaired the cost of investment in
PT Samurai Paint as there were no business plans for PT Samurai Paint. For the financial year ended 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023, there were no changes in plans for PT Samurai Paint. Accordingly, no
reversal of impairment was made.

1144 DDeeffeerrrreedd ttaaxx

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The movements in the deferred tax accounts are as follows:

GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy
22002244 2023 22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000 RRMM’’000000 RM’000

At 1 April 11,,770088 1,265 –– –
Tax charged to profit or loss
(Note 9) 220000 474 –– –
Currency translation difference –– (31) –– –

At 31 March 11,,990088 1,708 –– –

Representing:
Deferred tax assets ((7788)) (78) –– –
Deferred tax liabilities 11,,998866 1,786 –– –

11,,990088 1,708 –– –

Representing deferred tax (assets)/liabilities arising from:

GGrroouupp
22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Accelerated tax depreciation 11,,996600 2,562
Right-of-use assets 444444 432
Lease liabilities ((441188)) (519)
Tax losses ((7788)) (767)

11,,990088 1,708

At the reporting date, the Group has unutilised tax losses of RM14,398,000 (2023: RM10,245,000) that are
available for carry forward to offset against future taxable income subject to the agreement of the tax
authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation to the respective countries in which
companies operate. Unutilised tax losses of RM709,000 (2023: RM623,000) are available for carry forward
until 2037 and unutilised tax losses of RM13,689,000 (2023: RM9,622,000) are available for carry forward
indefinitely.
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1155 IInnvveennttoorriieess
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Raw materials 66,,994488 9,189
Work-in-progress 66,,554411 5,229
Finished goods 44,,229966 2,413

1177,,778855 16,831

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales amounted to RM32,130,000
(2023: RM38,990,000).

1166 TTrraaddee aanndd ootthheerr rreecceeiivvaabblleess
GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy

22002244 2023 22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000 RRMM’’000000 RM’000

NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt
Prepayments 33,,445555 4,764 –– –

CCuurrrreenntt
Trade receivables 1155,,666622 15,261 –– –
Advance payment to suppliers 11,,554466 585 –– –
Amount due from subsidiaries –– – 4444,,881100 41,691
Deposits 11,,117722 1,100 –– –
GST receivables 337744 266 –– –
Prepayments 226633 748 77 142

1199,,001177 17,960 4444,,881177 41,833
Less: Allowance for impairment –– – ((99,,777766)) (8,048)

1199,,001177 17,960 3355,,004411 33,785

Total trade and other receivables 2222,,447722 22,724 3355,,004411 33,785

Amount due from subsidiaries are interest-free, non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on demand.

1177 CCaasshh aanndd bbaannkk bbaallaanncceess
GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy

22002244 2023 22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000 RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Cash in hand and at bank 66,,110088 3,421 111199 1,703
Fixed deposits 2255,,448833 31,067 – –

Cash and bank balances 3311,,559911 34,488 111199 1,703
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1177 CCaasshh aanndd bbaannkk bbaallaanncceess ((ccoonntt’’dd))

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following at the end of the reporting period:

GGrroouupp
22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Cash and bank balances 3311,,559911 34,488
Less: Pledged fixed deposits ((11,,224422)) (1,224)
Less: Bank overdraft (Note 18) ((884422)) –

Cash and cash equivalents 2299,,550077 33,264

Fixed deposits amounting to RM1,242,000 (2023: RM1,224,000) are pledged to banks as collateral for
banking facilities granted (Note 18).

1188 BBoorrrroowwiinnggss
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
Repayment period RRMM’’000000 RM’000

NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt
Loan 1 - 2.1% per annum below
bank Base Lend Rate (“BLR”)

180 monthly instalments from
August 2016 11,,331111 1,540

Loan 2 - 2.1% per annum below BLR 180 monthly instalments from
August 2016 11,,224499 1,419

Loan 3 - 0.5% per annum above BLR 180 monthly instalments from
August 2016 5511 57

Loan 4 - 0.51% per annum above BLR 240 monthly instalments from
October 2022 33,,888800 4,027

Loan 5 - 1.42% per annum above BLR 300 monthly instalments from
September 2022 33,,882211 3,915

Loan 6 - 1.42% per annum above BLR 300 monthly instalments from
September 2022 33,,882211 3,915

Loan 7 - 1.42% per annum above BLR 300 monthly instalments from
September 2022 33,,882211 3,915

Loan 8 - 1.25% per annum above BLR 120 monthly instalments from
November 2024 33,,550044 –

Lease liabilities 993399 1,387

2222,,339977 20,175
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1188 BBoorrrroowwiinnggss ((ccoonntt’’dd)) GGrroouupp
22002244 2023

Repayment period RRMM’’000000 RM’000

CCuurrrreenntt
Loan 1 - 2.1% per annum below BLR 180 monthly instalments from

August 2016 117755 167

Loan 2 - 2.1% per annum below BLR 180 monthly instalments from
August 2016 117766 169

Loan 3 - 0.5% per annum above BLR 180 monthly instalments
from August 2016 66 6

Loan 4 - 0.51% per annum above BLR 240 monthly instalments from
October 2022 116655 160

Loan 5 - 1.42% per annum above BLR 300 monthly instalments from
September 2022 111100 106

Loan 6 - 1.42% per annum above BLR 300 monthly instalments from
September 2022 111100 106

Loan 7 - 1.42% per annum above BLR 300 monthly instalments from
September 2022 111100 106

Loan 8 - 1.25% per annum above BLR 120 monthly instalments from
November 2024 221199 –

Banker’s acceptance - 1.1% to 3.20%
(2023: 1.40% to 3.20%) above bank
Cost of Funds Rate 99,,333322 10,960

Bank overdraft 884422 –

Lease liabilities 996600 974

1122,,220055 12,754

3344,,660022 32,929

The loans, banker’s acceptance and bank overdraft are secured by:

(i) Fixed deposits placed with the bank (Note 17);
(ii) Freehold land and properties of the Group (Note 11);
(iii) Corporate guarantee issued by the Company; and
(iv) A business loan reducing term assurance covered for the joint life of the guarantors.

Determination of fair value of borrowings (except for lease liabilities)

The carrying amounts of borrowings (except for lease liabilities) approximate their fair values at the end of
the reporting period.

The fair values of the borrowings, determined from discounted cash flow analysis using the market lending
rate that the directors expect would be available to the Group at the end of the reporting period, are
reasonable approximation of carrying amounts as they are floating rate instruments that are repriced to
market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period. The fair value measurement for disclosure
purposes is categorised in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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1188 BBoorrrroowwiinnggss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Lease liabilities

Nature of the Group’s leasing activities

The Group’s leasing activities comprise the following:

i) The Group leases various warehouses and motor vehicles from non-related parties. The leases have an
average tenure of between three to ten years.

ii) The Group leases hostels for employees with contractual tenure of less than one year.
iii) The Group leases machineries from non-related parties with contractual tenure of less than one year.

The maturity analysis of the lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 25(b).

Carrying amount of right-of-use assets
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Classified within property, plant and equipment
Leasehold properties 779933 672
Motor vehicles 11,,222244 1,292

22,,001177 1,964

Additions to right-of-use assets
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Amount recognised in profit or loss
GGrroouupp

22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Leasehold properties 668855 481
Motor vehicles –– 662

668855 1,143

Depreciation charge for the financial year
Leasehold properties 553388 1,486
Motor vehicles 116644 157

770022 1,643

Lease expense not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities
Lease expense - short-term leases 330011 91
Variable lease payments which do not depends on an index
or rate 110066 63

TToottaall ((NNoottee 77)) 440077 154

Interest expense on lease liabilities 115555 89
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1188 BBoorrrroowwiinnggss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Lease liabilities (cont’d)

Amount recognised in profit or loss (cont’d)

Total cash flows for leases amounted to RM1,665,000 (2023: RM1,121,000).

Future cash outflow which are not capitalised in lease liabilities

Variable lease payments

The lease of a warehouse contains variable lease payments that is based on a percentage of the expenses
incurred by the landlord in connection with the operation, ownership, management, repair or maintenance
of the building. Overall, the variable payments constitute up to 6.3% (2023: 5.6%) of the Group’s entire lease
payments. These variable lease payments are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Extension options

The lease of a warehouse contains an extension option, for which the related lease payments had not been
included in the lease liabilities as the Group is not reasonably certain to extend the lease. This lease is used
to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the asset used in the Group’s operations.

Reconciliation movement of liabilities to cash flow arising from financing activities:

LLeeaassee BBaannkk
lliiaabbiilliittiieess bboorrrroowwiinnggss TToottaall
RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

Balance at 1 April 2022 1,206 20,529 21,735

Changes from financing cash flows:
- Proceeds – 16,400 16,400
- Repayments (878) (6,361) (7,239)
- Interest paid (89) (1,143) (1,232)

Non-cash changes:
- Interest expense 89 1,143 1,232
- Additions of new leases 1,076 – 1,076
- Modification of leases 951 – 951
- Currency translation differences 6 – 6

Balance at 31 March 2023 2,361 30,568 32,929
Changes from financing cash flows:
- Proceeds – 3,723 3,723
- Repayments (1,103) (2,430) (3,533)
- Interest paid (155) (1,511) (1,666)

Non-cash changes:
- Interest expense 155 1,511 1,666
- Additions of new leases 685 – 685
- Termination of leases (26) – (26)
- Currency translation differences (18) – (18)

BBaallaannccee aatt 3311 MMaarrcchh 22002244 11,,889999 3311,,886611 3333,,776600
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1199 TTrraaddee aanndd ootthheerr ppaayyaabblleess
GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy

22002244 2023 22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000 RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Amount due to subsidiaries are interest-free, non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Included within accrued expenses are accrued payroll costs relating to the key management personnel
amounting to RM3,618,000 (2023: RM3,458,000) for the Group and RM962,000 (2023: RM802,000) for the
Company.

2200 SShhaarree ccaappiittaall
22002244 2023

NNoo.. ooff sshhaarreess No. of shares
’’000000 RRMM’’000000 ’000 RM’000

All issued shares are fully paid ordinary shares with no par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All
ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions.

2211 DDiivviiddeennddss
GGrroouupp aanndd CCoommppaannyy
22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Current
Trade payables
- Third parties 1122,,775511 13,161 –– –

Other payables
- Third parties 1199 305 4422 261

Accrued expenses 44,,337755 4,182 11,,333300 1,066
Amount due to subsidiaries –– – 22,,229977 3,191

1177,,114455 17,648 33,,666699 4,518

Non-current
Other payables 9966 94 –– –

GGrroouupp aanndd CCoommppaannyy
OOrrddiinnaarryy sshhaarreess
At beginning and end of
financial year 333344,,662200 5577,,116655 334,620 57,165

TTrreeaassuurryy sshhaarreess
At beginning and end of
financial year 5555 6644 55 64

Final exempt dividend of SGD0.002 per share paid
in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2022 –– 2,160
Special exempt dividend of SGD0.004 per share paid
in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2022 –– 4,319

–– 6,479
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2222 SShhaarree ooppttiioonn rreesseerrvvee

The Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited’s Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) were approved and
adopted by the members at the shareholders’ meeting held on 16 December 2016 and will continue to
remain in force until 15 December 2026, unless terminated in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The
Scheme provide for the grant of share options to employees and directors of the Group.

The Scheme are administered by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, comprising of Mr Hau Hock
Khun (Chairman), Mr Lim Siang Kai and Mr Lim Chong Huat. A member of the Remuneration Committee who
is also a participant of the Scheme must not be involved in its deliberation in respect of awards and options
granted or to be granted to him.

The aggregate number of share options which may be issued or transferred pursuant to awards granted
under the Scheme on any date, when aggregated with the aggregate number of shares over which awards
and options are granted under any other share option schemes or share schemes of the Company, shall not
exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding shares held by the Company as treasury shares)
on the day preceding that date.

The aggregate number of shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted under the Scheme
available to the controlling shareholders and their associates shall not exceed 25% of the total number of
shares available under the Scheme.

The aggregate number of shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted under the Scheme
available to each controlling shareholder or his associates shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares available under the Scheme.

Options granted with the exercise price set at market price shall only be exercisable, in whole or in part
(provided that an option may be exercised in part only in respect of 100 shares or any multiple thereof), at
any time, by a participant after the first anniversary of the offer date of that option, provided always that the
options shall be exercised before the tenth anniversary of the relevant offer date, or such earlier and later
date as may be determined by the Remuneration Committee, failing which all unexercised options shall
immediately lapse and become null and void and a participant shall have no claim against the Company.

Options granted with the exercise price set at a discount to market price shall only be exercisable, in whole
or in part (provided that an option may be exercised in part only in respect of 100 shares or any multiple
thereof), at any time, by a participant after the second anniversary from the offer date of that option,
provided always that the options shall be exercised before the tenth anniversary of the relevant offer date,
or such earlier and later date as may be determined by the Remuneration Committee, failing which all
unexercised options shall immediately lapse and become null and void and a participant shall have no claim
against the Company.

An option shall, to the extent unexercised, immediately lapse and become null and void and a participant
shall have no claim against the Company:

a) subject to the rules of the Schemes, upon the participant ceasing to be in employment of the Company
or any of the companies within the Group for any reason whatsoever;

b) upon the bankruptcy of the participant or the happening of any other event which result in his being
deprived of the legal or beneficial ownership of such option; or

c) in the event of misconduct on the part of the participant, as determined by the Remuneration
Committee.
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2222 SShhaarree ooppttiioonn rreesseerrvvee ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Movement in the number of options granted by the Company under the Scheme for the Group’s employees
are as follows:

NNoo.. ooff ooppttiioonnss uunnddeerr tthhee SScchheemmee

BBeeggiinnnniinngg
ooff ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr

GGrraanntteedd dduurriinngg
ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr

FFoorrffeeiitteedd dduurriinngg
ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr

VVeesstteedd
dduurriinngg ffiinnaanncciiaall

yyeeaarr

EEnndd
ooff

ffiinnaanncciiaall yyeeaarr

22002244
3 June 2019 330099,,000000 –– ((7755,,000000)) –– 223344,,000000
31 May 2021 11,,884455,,000000 –– ((557700,,000000)) –– 11,,227755,,000000

2023
3 June 2019 345,000 – (36,000) – 309,000
31 May 2021 2,505,000 – (660,000) – 1,845,000

The details of the outstanding number of options at the end of the reporting period was:

EExxeerrcciissee pprriiccee((11)) GGrraanntt ddaattee EExxeerrcciissee ppeerriioodd
SGD0.305 3 June 2019 3 June 2022 to 2 June 2029
SGD0.347 31 May 2021 31 May 2024 to 30 May 2031

(1) Based on the new exercise price after the share split exercise in FY2022

The share options outstanding as at the end of the financial year have a remaining contractual life of 5.17 to
7.16 (2023: 6.17 to 8.16) years.

The fair value of each option granted on 3 June 2019 (“FY2020 Grant”) and 31 May 2021
(“FY2022 Grant”) was RM0.40 and RM0.47 respectively. The estimate of the fair value of each option issued
on grant date was based on the Binomial Options Pricing model. In order to approximate the expectations
that would be reflected in a current market or negotiated exchange price for these options, the calculation
takes into consideration factors like behavioural considerations and non-transferability of the options
granted.

The Binomial Options Pricing model used the following assumptions:

FFYY22002200 GGrraanntt FFYY22002222 GGrraanntt

Underlying share price (SGD) 0.910 1.070
Exercise price (SGD) 0.916 1.042
Dividend yield expected 0.50% 0.97%
Risk-free annual interest rates 1.96% 1.05%
Expected life 6.5 years 6.5 years
Expected volatility 43.31% 45.01%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company’s share price from
date of initial public offering to the grant date which was compared against the historical volatility range of
the comparable companies for the period of 6.5 years prior to the valuation date. The expected lives used in
the model have been adjusted, based on management best estimates, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.
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2233 MMeerrggeerr rreesseerrvvee

Merger reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid by the Company and the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired under common control.

2244 CCoonnttiinnggeenntt lliiaabbiilliittiieess

The Company has provided corporate guarantees of RM62,931,000 (2023: RM55,931,000) to banks for
bank borrowings of RM32,703,000 (2023: RM30,568,000) drawn down by its subsidiary at the end of
reporting period.

2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss

aa)) CCaatteeggoorriieess ooff ffiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss

Financial instruments at their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy
22002244 2023 22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000 RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Financial assets
Financial assets at
amortised cost 4488,,442255 50,849 3355,,115533 35,346

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost 5511,,884433 50,671 33,,666699 4,518

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of
financial instruments. The key financial risks include foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below. The directors
review and agree policies and procedures for the management of these risks.

There has been no change to the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to these financial risks or the
manner in which the Group and the Company manage and measure financial risks.

FFoorreeiiggnn ccuurrrreennccyy rriisskk

The Group and the Company have currency exposures arising from transactions, assets and liabilities
that are denominated in currencies other than their respective functional currencies of entities in the
Group. The foreign currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the United States Dollar (“USD”),
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”), Singapore Dollar (“SGD”), British Pound Sterling (“GBP”), Chinese Yuan
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Indian Rupee (“INR”).

There is no formal hedging policy with respect to foreign currency exposure. Exposure to foreign
currency risk is monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group endeavours to keep the net exposure at a
level that is deemed acceptable by management.
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

FFoorreeiiggnn ccuurrrreennccyy rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd))

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company have the following financial assets and
financial liabilities denominated in foreign currencies based on information provided to key
management:

NNeett
ffiinnaanncciiaall
aasssseettss//
((lliiaabbiilliittiieess))

TTrraaddee CCaasshh TTrraaddee ddeennoommiinnaatteedd
aanndd aanndd aanndd iinn
ootthheerr ccaasshh ootthheerr IInnttrraaggrroouupp IInnttrraaggrroouupp ffoorreeiiggnn

rreecceeiivvaabblleess eeqquuiivvaalleennttss ppaayyaabblleess rreecceeiivvaabblleess ppaayyaabblleess ccuurrrreenncciieess
RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

GGrroouupp
22002244
Denominated
in/respective
functional
currency
USD/RM 115544 11,,119977 ((2233)) 2211,,449999 ((44,,664455)) 1188,,118822
SGD/RM –– 228877 ((11,,336666)) 1111,,776622 ((1111,,776622)) ((11,,007799))
GBP/RM 111100 6666 –– –– –– 117766
RMB/RM –– 332233 ((119955)) –– –– 112288
IDR/RM 1122,,112211 11,,116677 ((11,,556699)) 558899 ((22,,334400)) 99,,996688
INR/RM –– 661188 –– 119900 –– 880088

2023
Denominated
in/respective
functional
currency
USD/RM 2,832 88 (363) 11,384 (1,273) 12,668
SGD/RM – 1,946 – 12,302 (12,302) 1,946
GBP/RM 159 55 – – – 214
IDR/RM 10,657 – (1,310) 353 (3,150) 6,550
INR/RM – 348 (1,933) 190 – (1,395)
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

FFoorreeiiggnn ccuurrrreennccyy rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd)) UUSSDD SSGGDD IIDDRR
RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

CCoommppaannyy
22002244
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 11 – –
Cash and bank balances 2 117 –

13 117 –

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables – (1,329) (2,340)

NNeett ffiinnaanncciiaall aasssseettss//((lliiaabbiilliittiieess)) ddeennoommiinnaatteedd iinn
ffoorreeiiggnn ccuurrrreenncciieess 1133 ((11,,221122)) ((22,,334400))

2023
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 11 – –
Cash and bank balances 2 1,701 –

13 1,701 –

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables – (1,310) (3,150)

Net financial assets/(liabilities) denominated in
foreign currencies 13 391 (3,150)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD, IDR, SGD,
GBP, RMB and INR exchange rates against the respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax:

GGrroouupp
iinnccrreeaassee//((ddeeccrreeaassee))
iinn pprrooffiitt aafftteerr ttaaxx
22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

USD/RM
- strengthened 10% (2023: 10%) 11,,445500 984
- weakened 10% (2023: 10%) ((11,,445500)) (984)

IDR/RM
- strengthened 10% (2023: 10%) 777766 575
- weakened 10% (2023: 10%) ((777766)) (575)

SGD/RM
- strengthened 10% (2023: 10%) ((117722)) 34
- weakened 10% (2023: 10%) 117722 (34)

GBP/RM
- strengthened 10% (2023: 10%) 1133 16
- weakened 10% (2023: 10%) ((1133)) (16)

RMB/RM
- strengthened 10% (2023: 10%) 1100 –
- weakened 10% (2023: 10%) ((1100)) –

INR/RM
- strengthened 10% (2023: 10%) 6600 (132)
- weakened 10% (2023: 10%) ((6600)) 132
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

FFoorreeiiggnn ccuurrrreennccyy rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd))

CCoommppaannyy

If the SGD exchange rate against RM strengthened/weakened by 10%, with all other variables held
constant, the Company’s loss after tax will be higher/lower by RM101,000 (2023: lower/higher by
RM32,000). If the IDR exchange rate against RM strengthened/weakened by 10%, with all other variables
held constant, the Company’s loss after tax will be higher/lower by RM194,000 (2023: RM261,000).

The sensitivity analysis for USD is not disclosed as the impact on the Group’s and the Company’s profit
after tax is not significant.

IInntteerreesstt rraattee rriisskk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s and the
Company’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their borrowings and deposits placed
with the financial institutions at variable rates. Borrowings and deposits at variable rates expose the
Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate risk (i.e. the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates). The Group and the Company
do not utilise derivatives to mitigate its interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for
borrowings at the reporting date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the
financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in the case of borrowings that have
floating rates.

The Group’s borrowings at variable rates on which effective hedges have not been entered into, are
denominated mainly in RM. If the RM interest rates increase/decrease by 50 (2023: 50) basis points with
all other variables including tax rate being held constant, the profit after tax of the Group will be
higher/lower by RM121,000 (2023: RM116,000) as a result of higher/lower interest expense on these
borrowings.

CCrreeddiitt rriisskk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty
default on its obligations. The Group has credit policies in place and the exposure to credit risk is
monitored on an on-going basis by the management. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
primarily from trade and other receivables. Cash and bank balances are placed with banks with high
credit-ratings.

The Group does not have significant credit risk except that the Group’s trade receivables comprise 3
debtors (2023: 3 debtors) that collectively represented 84% (2023: 86%) of the trade receivables. The
Company has no significant concentration of credit risks except for the amount due from subsidiaries
as disclosed in Note 16.

As the Group and the Company do not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
carrying amount of each class of financial instruments presented on the statements of financial position.
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

CCrreeddiitt rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd))

The following sets out the Group’s internal credit evaluation practices and basis for recognition and
measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL”):

DDeessccrriippttiioonn ooff eevvaalluuaattiioonn ooff ffiinnaanncciiaall aasssseettss BBaassiiss ffoorr rreeccooggnniittiioonn aanndd mmeeaassuurreemmeenntt ooff
EECCLL

Counterparty has a low risk of default and does
not have any past due amounts

12-month ECL

Contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due or where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition

Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired

Contractual payments are more than 90 days
past due or there is evidence of credit
impairment

Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired

There is evidence indicating that the Group has
no reasonable expectation of recovery of
payments such as when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings

Write-off

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information, such as
future economic and industry outlook that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the Group considers the following information when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

• an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results/key financial performance
ratios of the debtor; and

• an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Regardless of the evaluation of the above factors, the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

CCrreeddiitt rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Significant increase in credit risk (cont’d)

The Group also assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understood definition, or the financial asset has a low risk of
default; the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Definition of default

The Group has determined the default events on a financial asset to be when there is evidence that the
borrower is experiencing liquidity issues or when there is a breach of contract, such as a default of
payment.

The Group considers the above as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred such as evidence that the borrower is
in significant financial difficulty, there is a breach of contract such as default or past due event; there is
information that it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses.
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

CCrreeddiitt rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Estimation techniques and significant assumptions

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
current financial year for recognition and measurement of credit loss allowances.

AAmmoouunntt
dduuee ffrroomm
ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess
RRMM’’000000

CCoommppaannyy
Balance at 1 April 2022 –

Loss allowance measured:
Lifetime ECL
- Significant increase in credit risk 8,048

Balance at 31 March 2023 8,048

Balance at 1 April 2023 8,048

Loss allowance measured:
Lifetime ECL
- Credit-impaired 1,728

Balance at 31 March 2024 99,,777766

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to measure the expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance for
trade receivables.

The Group determined the lifetime ECL of trade receivables by performing an ECL assessment for each
debtor by considering the effects of the macroeconomic uncertainties, historical loss rate, recent
payments, ongoing business relationship, creditworthiness of each debtor and their ability to repay.
Management assessed that there is immaterial loss allowance relating to trade receivables.
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

CCrreeddiitt rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Financial assets at amortised cost

22002244
GGrroouupp

1122--mmoonntthh
oorr lliiffeettiimmee EECCLL

GGrroossss
ccaarrrryyiinngg
aammoouunntt
RRMM’’000000

LLoossss
aalllloowwaannccee
RRMM’’000000

NNeett
ccaarrrryyiinngg
aammoouunntt
RRMM’’000000

Trade receivables Lifetime ECL 1155,,666622 –– 1155,,666622

Deposits Not applicable
(Exposure
limited)

11,,117722 –– 11,,117722

Cash and bank balances Not applicable
(Exposure
limited)

3311,,559911 –– 3311,,559911

22002244
CCoommppaannyy
Amount due from
subsidiaries

12-month ECL 3355,,003344 –– 3355,,003344

Amount due from
subsidiary

Lifetime ECL 99,,777766 ((99,,777766)) –

Cash and bank balances Not applicable
(Exposure
limited)

111199 –– 111199
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

CCrreeddiitt rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Financial assets at amortised cost (cont’d)

2023
GGrroouupp

1122--mmoonntthh
oorr lliiffeettiimmee EECCLL

GGrroossss
ccaarrrryyiinngg
aammoouunntt
RRMM’’000000

LLoossss
aalllloowwaannccee
RRMM’’000000

NNeett
ccaarrrryyiinngg
aammoouunntt
RRMM’’000000

Trade receivables Lifetime ECL 15,261 – 15,261

Deposits Not applicable
(Exposure
limited)

1,100 – 1,100

Cash and bank balances Not applicable
(Exposure
limited)

34,488 – 34,488

2023
CCoommppaannyy
Amount due from
subsidiaries

12-month ECL 33,643 – 33,643

Amount due from
subsidiary

Lifetime ECL 8,048 (8,048) –

Cash and bank balances Not applicable
(Exposure
limited)

1,703 – 1,703

Amount due from subsidiaries

For the amount due from subsidiaries where impairment loss allowance is measured using 12-month
ECL, the Company assessed the latest performance and financial position of the respective
counterparties, adjusted for the future outlook of the industry in which the counterparties operate in,
and concluded that there has been no significant increase in the credit risk since the initial recognition
of the financial assets. Accordingly, the Company measured the impairment loss allowance using 12-
month ECL and determined that the ECL is insignificant at the end of the reporting period.

For amount due from subsidiary where impairment loss allowance is measured at lifetime ECL as at 31
March 2024 and 2023, the Company assessed the latest performance and financial position of the
subsidiary, adjusted for the future outlook of the industry in which the counterparty operates in, and
concluded that the measurement of the impairment loss allowance using lifetime ECL is appropriate.
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

CCrreeddiitt rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd))

Financial guarantee

The Company has issued financial guarantees of RM62,931,000 (2023: RM55,931,000) to banks for
bank borrowings of RM32,703,000 (2023: RM30,568,000) drawn down by its subsidiary at the end of
reporting period. These guarantees are subject to the impairment requirements of SFRS(I) 9 Financial
Instruments. The Company has assessed that its subsidiary has strong financial capacity to meet the
contractual cash flow obligations and does not expect significant credit losses arising from these
guarantees.

LLiiqquuiiddiittyy rriisskk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the
Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of stand-by credit facilities. The Group and the Company manage the liquidity risk by maintaining
sufficient cash to enable them to meet their normal operating commitments and having an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities (Note 18).

The table below shows the contractual expiry by the maturity of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted repayment
obligations:

RReeppaayyaabbllee
oonn ddeemmaanndd WWiitthhiinn
oorr wwiitthhiinn 22 ttoo 55 OOvveerr
11 yyeeaarr yyeeaarrss 55 yyeeaarrss TToottaall
RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

GGrroouupp
22002244
Trade and other payables 1177,,224411 –– – 1177,,224411
Borrowings 1122,,442200 1100,,550099 1188,,227788 4411,,220077
Lease liabilities 11,,002244 997733 – 11,,999977

3300,,668855 1111,,448822 1188,,227788 6600,,444455

2023
Trade and other payables 17,742 – – 17,742
Borrowings 12,436 5,905 19,817 38,158
Lease liabilities 1,066 1,450 – 2,516

31,244 7,355 19,817 58,416
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2255 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss ((ccoonntt’’dd))

bb)) FFiinnaanncciiaall rriisskk mmaannaaggeemmeenntt ((ccoonntt’’dd))

LLiiqquuiiddiittyy rriisskk ((ccoonntt’’dd))

RReeppaayyaabbllee
oonn ddeemmaanndd WWiitthhiinn
oorr wwiitthhiinn 22 ttoo 55 OOvveerr
11 yyeeaarr yyeeaarrss 55 yyeeaarrss TToottaall
RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

CCoommppaannyy
22002244
Trade and other payables 33,,666699 –– –– 33,,666699
Financial guarantee
contracts* 3322,,770033 –– –– 3322,,770033

3366,,337722 –– –– 3366,,337722

2023
Trade and other payables 4,518 – – 4,518
Financial guarantee
contracts* 30,568 – – 30,568

35,086 – – 35,086

* At the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure of the Company in respect of the
intragroup financial guarantee (Note 24) based on facilities drawn down by the subsidiary is
RM32,703,000 (2023: RM30,568,000). The Company does not consider it probable that a claim will
be made against the Company under intragroup financial guarantee.

2266 FFaaiirr vvaalluueess ooff aasssseettss aanndd lliiaabbiilliittiieess

FFaaiirr vvaalluuee hhiieerraarrcchhyy

The tables below analyse the fair value measurements by the levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs to the valuation techniques. The different levels are defined as follows:

(i) Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
(ii) Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
(iii) Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

There has been no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the financial years ended
31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities (except for lease liabilities) are reasonable
approximation of fair values as they are short-term in nature and market interest rate instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company do not have any financial instruments
carried at fair value.
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2277 SSeeggmmeenntt iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its products, and have
three operating segments as follows:

(a) The paint - standard segment includes standard colour aerosol spray paint products.
(b) The paint - premium segment includes fluorescent, candy and metallic colour aerosol spray paint

products, high temperature aerosol spray paint products, primer products, epoxy products,
2K products and multi-colour one aerosol spray paint.

(c) The maintenance and others segment includes cosmetic products such as metal and paint polish and
maintenance products such as engine degreaser, chain oil, carburetor and gasket cleaner.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for making decisions about
allocation of resources and assessment of performances for each segment.

The segment information provided to management for the reportable segments are as follows:

PPaaiinntt --
SSttaannddaarrdd

PPaaiinntt --
PPrreemmiiuumm

MMaaiinntteennaannccee
aanndd ootthheerrss GGrroouupp

RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

22002244
SSeeggmmeenntt rreevveennuuee
Sales to external customers 4499,,883333 2299,,447766 551144 7799,,882233

SSeeggmmeenntt pprrooffiitt 11,,557733 44,,118899 222222 55,,998844

OOtthheerr sseeggmmeenntt iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 33,,223377 11,,664477 2255 44,,990099
Amortisation of intangible assets 221133 112266 22 334411

SSeeggmmeenntt aasssseettss 6622,,994488 3377,,223344 664499 110000,,883311
Unallocated assets
- Deferred tax assets 7788
- Fixed deposits 2255,,448833
- Tax recoverable 55,,339977

Total assets 113311,,778899

SSeeggmmeenntt aasssseettss iinncclluuddee::
Additions to non-current assets 55,,996655 33,,552288 6611 99,,555544

SSeeggmmeenntt lliiaabbiilliittiieess 1111,,994499 77,,006688 112233 1199,,114400
Unallocated liabilities
- Deferred tax liabilities 11,,998866
- Borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) 3322,,770033
- Tax payable 11,,228833

Total liabilities 5555,,111122
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2277 SSeeggmmeenntt iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn ((ccoonntt’’dd))

The segment information provided to management for the reportable segments are as follows (cont’d):

Paint -
Standard

Paint -
Premium

Maintenance
and others Group

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2023
Segment revenue
Sales to external customers 42,154 27,678 436 70,268

Segment loss (5,837) (3,833) (60) (9,730)

Other segment information
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 3,755 1,457 29 5,241
Amortisation of intangible assets 180 119 2 301

Segment assets 55,887 36,695 578 93,160
Unallocated assets
- Deferred tax assets 78
- Fixed deposits 31,067
- Tax recoverable 4,035

Total assets 128,340

Segment assets include:
Additions to non-current assets 15,672 10,289 162 26,123

Segment liabilities 12,060 7,918 125 20,103
Unallocated liabilities
- Deferred tax liabilities 1,786
- Borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) 30,568
- Tax payable 737

Total liabilities 53,194
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2277 SSeeggmmeenntt iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn ((ccoonntt’’dd))

SSeeggmmeenntt rreessuullttss

Performance of each segment is evaluated based on segment profit or loss which is measured differently
from the net profit or loss before tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Interest income and finance costs are not allocated to segments as Group’s
financing is managed on a Group basis.

A reconciliation of segment profit to the consolidated profit/(loss) before tax is as follows:

GGrroouupp
22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Segment profit/(loss) 55,,998844 (9,730)
Interest income 776611 683
Finance costs ((11,,666666)) (1,232)

Profit/(loss) before tax 55,,007799 (10,279)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
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2277 SSeeggmmeenntt iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn ((ccoonntt’’dd))

SSeeggmmeenntt aasssseettss

The amounts provided to the management with respect to total assets are measured in a manner consistent
with that of the consolidated financial statements. Management monitors the assets attributable to each
segment for the purposes of monitoring segment performance and for allocating resources between
segments. All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than deferred tax assets, tax recoverable
and fixed deposits which are classified as unallocated assets.

SSeeggmmeenntt lliiaabbiilliittiieess

The amounts provided to management with respect to total liabilities are measured in a manner consistent
with that of the consolidated financial statements. All liabilities are allocated to the reportable segments
based on the operations of the segments other than deferred tax liabilities, tax payable and borrowings
(excluding lease liabilities). These liabilities are classified as unallocated liabilities.

GGeeooggrraapphhiiccaall iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn

Revenue and non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) information based on the geographical
location of customers and assets respectively are as follows:

GGrroouupp
SSaalleess ttoo
eexxtteerrnnaall NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt
ccuussttoommeerrss aasssseettss

22002244 2023 22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000 RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Malaysia 2255,,002277 23,862 5577,,331166 54,865
Indonesia 2299,,220022 27,658 6677 –
Others 2255,,559944 18,748 553388 83

7799,,882233 70,268 5577,,992211 54,948

Non-current assets information presented above are non-current assets as presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position excluding deferred tax assets.

IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn aabboouutt mmaajjoorr ccuussttoommeerrss

Revenue from 2 (2023: 2) customers who individually contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
which are attributable to the paint-standard, paint-premium and maintenance and others segments are as
detailed below:

GGrroouupp
22002244 2023
RRMM’’000000 RM’000

Customer 1 (Paint-Standard and Paint-Premium) 1199,,332277 14,279
Customer 2 (Paint-Standard and Paint-Premium) 1144,,445555 18,549

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
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2288 CCaappiittaall mmaannaaggeemmeenntt

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholders’ value. In order to
maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy-back issued shares, obtain new borrowings or sell
assets to reduce borrowings.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of its total equity and borrowings and the Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged during the financial years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

2299 SSuubbsseeqquueenntt eevveenntt

Subsequent to the financial year end, on 27 May 2024, a fire incident occurred at several properties of the
Group located in Skudai, Johor Bahru, resulting in significant damages to the facilities. The fire was
contained by emergency services, and the local fire department is currently still in the midst of conducting
investigations to ascertain the cause of the fire and the extent of the damage is still being assessed.

Notwithstanding the impact of the fire incident is significant, management is currently working closely with
insurance providers and relevant authorities to evaluate the financial impact and resume operations as
swiftly as possible. Recovery efforts have been initiated to ensure minimal disruption to the business
operations. Additionally, management is of the opinion that the Group has sufficient insurance coverage
over its assets and for any consequential losses including loss of income.

As investigations are still on-going at the time these financial statements are authorised for issue, details of
the effects on the Group’s financial statements for the subsequent financial years ended after 31 March
2024 are not disclosed.

3300 AAuutthhoorriissaattiioonn ooff ffiinnaanncciiaall ssttaatteemmeennttss

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and statement of
changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 15 July 2024.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
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NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES (INCLUDING TREASURY SHARES) : 334,619,787
NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES (EXCLUDING TREASURY SHARES) : 334,564,787
ISSUED AND FULLY PAID-UP CAPITAL : S$19,732,622
CLASS OF SHARES : Ordinary Shares
NUMBER / PERCENTAGE OF TREASURY SHARES : 55,000 (0.0164%)
NUMBER / PERCENTAGE OF SUBSIDIARY HOLDINGS : Nil
VOTING RIGHTS : 1 vote for each Ordinary Share held

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

NO. OF
SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS SHAREHOLDERS % NO. OF SHARES %

1 - 99 0 0.00 0 0.00
100 - 1,000 11 4.57 3,600 0.00
1,001 - 10,000 28 11.62 167,900 0.05
10,001 - 1,000,000 173 71.78 27,093,985 8.10
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 29 12.03 307,354,302 91.85

TOTAL 241 100.00 334,619,787 100.00

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

NO. NAME NO. OF SHARES %

1 ONG YOKE EN 139,152,000 41.59
2 LIM LAY YONG 45,000,000 13.45
3 UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 23,404,300 7.00
4 CHANG CHOR CHOONG 12,750,000 3.81
5 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 9,828,800 2.94
6 KONG HEE SIONG 7,984,800 2.39
7 CHAI FOOK CHOY 7,409,600 2.21
8 ONG YICK SING 7,344,000 2.20
9 PANG HANG HIN 6,113,900 1.83
10 ONG HOW EN 6,024,000 1.80
11 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 5,606,100 1.68
12 LEE SIONG KIM 4,453,902 1.33
13 ONG YOKE HOI 3,924,000 1.17
14 CGS INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES SINGAPORE PTE. LTD. 3,177,000 0.95
15 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE. LTD. 2,976,000 0.89
16 TAY WUU YEAN 2,913,000 0.87
17 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2,435,000 0.73
18 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 2,187,000 0.65
19 RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE.) LIMITED 1,689,000 0.50
20 IFAST FINANCIAL PTE. LTD. 1,539,200 0.46

TOTAL 295,911,602 88.45
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholdings
registered in
the name of
the substantial

Shareholdings
in which the
substantial

shareholder are
deemed to be Percentage of

Substantial Shareholder shareholder interested Total issued shares

ONG YOKE EN 139,152,000 – 139,152,000 41.59
LIM LAY YONG 45,000,000 – 45,000,000 13.45

SHAREHOLDINGS HELD IN HANDS OF PUBLIC

Based on information provided and to the best knowledge of the Directors, approximately 34.36% of the total
number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company are held in the hands of the
public as at 28 June 2024. Rule 723 of the Catalist Rules has therefore been complied with.

STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
 AS AT 28 JUNE 2024
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NNOOTTIICCEE IISS HHEERREEBBYY GGIIVVEENN that the Annual General Meeting of Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited the “CCoommppaannyy”)
will be held physically at Chartroom, Level 2, Raffles Marina Ltd, 10 Tuas West Drive, Singapore 638404
on Tuesday, 30 July 2024 at 2.00p.m. for the purpose of transacting the following businesses:

AAss OOrrddiinnaarryy BBuussiinneessss::

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31
March 2024 and the Auditors’ Report thereon. ((RReessoolluuttiioonn 11))

2. To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association:

Mr Hau Hock Khun (Regulation 98) (SSeeee EExxppllaannaattoorryy NNoottee 11) ((RReessoolluuttiioonn 22))
Dato’ Chang Chor Choong (Regulation 98) (SSeeee EExxppllaannaattoorryy NNoottee 22) ((RReessoolluuttiioonn 33))

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees of RM316,370 for the financial year ending 31 March
2025, to be paid quarterly in arrears. ((RReessoolluuttiioonn 44))

4. To re-appoint Baker Tilly TFW LLP as the Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to
fix their remuneration. ((RReessoolluuttiioonn 55))

5. To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an annual general
meeting.

AAss SSppeecciiaall BBuussiinneessss::

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or
without any modifications:

66.. GGEENNEERRAALL MMAANNDDAATTEE TTOO AALLLLOOTT AANNDD IISSSSUUEE NNEEWW SSHHAARREESS IINN TTHHEE CCAAPPIITTAALL OOFF TTHHEE CCOOMMPPAANNYY

“That, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act 1967 of Singapore (the “CCoommppaanniieess AAcctt”)
and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual Section B: Rules of Catalist of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SSGGXX--SSTT”) (“CCaattaalliisstt RRuulleess”), authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of
the Company to:

(A) (i) allot and issue shares in the Company (“Shares”) whether by way of rights,
bonus or otherwise; and/or

(ii) make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or
would require Shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of
(as well as adjustments to) options, warrants, debentures or other instruments
convertible into Shares,

at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such
persons as the Directors of the Company shall in their absolute discretion deem fit; and

(B) (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force)
issue Shares in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while this
Resolution was in force, provided that:
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(1) the aggregate number of Shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution (including
Shares to be issued in pursuance of the Instruments, made or granted pursuant to this
Resolution) does not exceed one hundred per cent (100%) of the total number of issued
Shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in
accordance with sub-paragraph (2) below), of which the aggregate number of Shares to
be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders of the Company
(including Shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to
this Resolution) does not exceed fifty per cent. (50%) of the total number of issued Shares
(excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company (as at the time of passing of
this Resolution);

(2) (subject to such calculation as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST) for the purpose of
determining the aggregate number of Shares that may be issued under sub-paragraph
(1) above on a pro-rata basis, the percentage of the total number of issued Shares
(excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company shall be calculated based on
the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the
Company at the time of the passing of this Resolution, after adjusting for:

(a) new Shares arising from the conversion or exercise of the Instruments or any
convertible securities;

(b) new Shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards
which are outstanding or subsisting at the time of the passing of this Resolution,
provided the options or awards were granted in compliance with Part VIII of Chapter
8 of the Catalist Rules; and

(c) any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of Shares.

(3) in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply
with the provisions of the Catalist Rules as amended from time to time (unless such
compliance has been waived by the SGX-ST), all applicable legal requirements
under the Act and the Constitution for the time being of the Company; and

(4) unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, such authority shall
continue in force until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company or the date by which the next annual general meeting is required by law to
be held, whichever is the earlier.”
((SSeeee EExxppllaannaattoorryy NNoottee 33)) ((RReessoolluuttiioonn 66))

77.. AAUUTTHHOORRIITTYY TTOO IISSSSUUEE SSHHAARREESS UUNNDDEERR TTHHEE PPEERRFFOORRMMAANNCCEE SSHHAARREE PPLLAANN

That approval be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to allot and issue from time
to time such number of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company as may be required to be
issued pursuant to the vesting of awards granted or to be granted under the Performance Share
Plan (the “Plan”), provided that the aggregate number of ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to
the Plan and any other share based incentive schemes of the Company shall not exceed fifteen
percent (15%) of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company from
time to time, as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Plan.
((SSeeee EExxppllaannaattoorryy NNoottee 44)) ((RReessoolluuttiioonn 77))

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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88.. AAUUTTHHOORRIITTYY TTOO IISSSSUUEE SSHHAARREESS UUNNDDEERR TTHHEE EEMMPPLLOOYYEEEE SSHHAARREE OOPPTTIIOONN SSCCHHEEMMEE

That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to offer and grant options
from time to time in accordance with the provisions of the Employee Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”), and pursuant to Section 161 of the Act, to allot and issue from time to time such
number of shares in the capital of the Company as may be required to be issued pursuant to the
exercise of options granted under the Scheme, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be
issued pursuant to the Scheme and any other share based incentive schemes of the Company shall
not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the issued share capital of the Company excluding treasury
shares of the Company from time to time, as determined in accordance with the provisions of the
Scheme.
((SSeeee EExxppllaannaattoorryy NNoottee 55)) ((RReessoolluuttiioonn 88))

99.. RREENNEEWWAALL OOFF SSHHAARREE PPUURRCCHHAASSEE MMAANNDDAATTEE

That:

(a) for the purposes of the Catalist Rules and Companies Act 1967 of Singapore (the “Act”),
the exercise by the Directors of the Company of all the powers of the Company to use
Funds (as defined hereinafter) to purchase or otherwise acquire the ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company (“Shares”) not exceeding in aggregate the Maximum Limit (as
defined hereinafter), at such price(s) as may be determined by the Directors of the
Company from time to time up to the Maximum Price (as defined hereinafter), whether by
way of:

(i) on-market purchases (each an “On-Market Purchase”) on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”); and/or

(ii) off-market purchases (each an “Off-Market Purchase”) effected otherwise than on the
SGX-ST in accordance with any equal access schemes as may be determined or
formulated by the Directors of the Company as they consider fit based on the
requirements of Section 76C of the Act,

and in accordance with all other laws and regulations of Singapore and the listing rules of
the SGX-ST as may for the time being be applicable, be and is hereby authorised and
approved generally and unconditionally (the “Share Purchase Mandate”);

(b) unless varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting, the authority conferred on
the Directors of the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate may be exercised
by the Directors of the Company at any time and from time to time during the period
commencing from the passing of this Resolution and expiring on the earlier of:

(i) the date on which the next annual general meeting of the Company is held or
required by the law to be held;

(ii) the date on which the share purchases are carried out to the full extent mandated; or
(iii) the date on which the authority contained in the Share Purchase Mandate is revoked

or varied;

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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(c) in this Resolution:

“FFuunnddss” means internal sources of funds of the Company. Illustrations of the financial
impact of the use of Funds are set out in the Appendix;

“MMaaxxiimmuumm LLiimmiitt” means that number of Shares representing ten per cent. (10%) of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary
holdings) as at the date of passing of this Resolution unless the Company has effected a
reduction of the share capital of the Company in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Act, at any time during the Relevant Period (as defined hereinafter), in
which event the issued ordinary share capital of the Company shall be taken to be the
amount of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as altered (excluding any
treasury shares and subsidiary holdings that may be held by the Company from time to
time);

“RReelleevvaanntt PPeerriioodd”” means the period commencing from the date on which the last annual
general meeting was held and expiring on the date the next annual general meeting is
held or is required by law to be held or the date on which the share purchases are carried
out to the full extent of the Share Purchase Mandate or the date the said mandate is
revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, whichever is the earlier, after
the date of this Resolution;

“MMaaxxiimmuumm PPrriiccee”, in relation to a Share to be purchased or acquired, means an amount
(excluding brokerage, stamp duties, applicable goods and services tax and other
related expenses) not exceeding:

(i) in the case of an On-Market Purchase: 105% of the Average Closing Price; and

(ii) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase: 120% of the Average Closing Price,

where:

““AAvveerraaggee CClloossiinngg PPrriiccee”” means the average of the closing market prices of a share over
the last five (5) market days, on which transactions in the Shares were recorded,
preceding the day of the On-Market Purchase, or as the case may be, the date of the
making of the offer pursuant to the Off-Market Purchase and deemed to be adjusted for
any corporate action that occurs after the relevant five (5) market days period;

“DDaattee ooff tthhee mmaakkiinngg ooff tthhee ooffffeerr” means the date on which the Company announces its
intention to make an offer for an Off-Market Purchase, stating the purchase price (which
shall not be more than the Maximum Price calculated on the foregoing basis) for each
share and the relevant terms of the equal access scheme for effecting the Off-Market
Purchase; and

(d) the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such
acts and things (including executing such documents as may be required) as they may
consider expedient or necessary to give effect to the transactions contemplated by this
Resolution.”
((SSeeee EExxppllaannaattoorryy NNoottee 66)) ((RReessoolluuttiioonn 99))
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

By Order of the Board

Ong Yoke En
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Singapore 15 July 2024

EExxppllaannaattoorryy NNootteess::

1. Mr Hau Hock Khun, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, will remain as Independent Director
of the Company, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nominating
Committee and Audit and Risk Committee. The Board considers Mr Hau Hock Khun to be independent
pursuant to Rule 704(7) of the Catalist Rules.

2. Dato’ Chang Chor Choong, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, will remain as the Non-
Executive Director of the Company.

3. The Ordinary Resolution 6 proposed in item 6 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from
the date of this AGM until the date of the next AGM or the date by which the next AGM is required
by law to be held or such authority is revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting,
whichever is earlier, to allot and issue Shares and/or convertible securities in the Company. The
aggregate number of Shares and/or convertible securities which the Directors may allot and issue
under this Resolution shall not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the total issued Shares
excluding treasury shares of which the aggregate number of Shares and/or convertible securities to
be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company shall not exceed
fifty percent (50%) of the total issued Shares excluding treasury shares at the time of passing of
this Resolution.

4. The Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 7 above, is to authorise the Directors to allot and issue
shares on the vesting of awards under the Plan.

5. The Ordinary Resolution 8 proposed in item 8 above, is to authorise the Directors to offer and
grant options under the Scheme and to allot and issue shares pursuant to the exercise of such
options under the Scheme.

6. The Ordinary Resolution 9 proposed in item 9 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the
Company to make purchases or otherwise acquire the Company’s issued shares from time to time
subject to and in accordance with the guidelines set out in the “Appendix” section in the
Company’s Annual Report. The authority will expire on the earlier of (I) the date of which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is held or required by the law to be held; (ii) the date on
which the share purchases are carried out to the full extent mandated; or (iii) the date on which the
authority contained in the Share Purchase Mandate is revoked or varied.
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NNootteess::

(1) The Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting” or “AGM”) will be held physically at venue set out above. There will
be no option for shareholders to participate virtually. The Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 March
2024, the Appendix dated 15 July 2024 in relation to the proposed renewal of the Share Purchase Mandate,
Notice and proxy form have been made available on the SGX website at
https://www.sgx.com/securities/company-announcements and may be accessed at the Company’s website at
https://ir.samurai2kaerosol.com/annual-report/. Printed copies of this Notice of AGM and the accompanying
Proxy Form will be sent to members via post. Printed copies of the Annual Report will not be sent to members.
A member who wishes to obtain a printed copy to the Annual Report should request the same via email to
hanifah@samuraipaint.jp no later than 20 July 2024.

(2) Members (including SRS investors) may participate in the AGM by:

(a) Attending the AGM in person;
(b) Submitting questions to the Chairman of the Meeting in advance of, or at, the AGM; and/or
(c) Voting at the AGM (1) by themselves personally; or (2) through their duly appointed proxy(ies).

(3) Members will need to bring along your NRIC/passport to enable the Company to verify your identity when you
attend the AGM physically.

(4) A member who is not a relevant intermediary (as defined in Section 181 of the Act) is entitled to appoint not
more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf at the AGM. Where a member appoints
more than one proxy, the member shall specify the proportion of his/her Shares to be represented by each
proxy. If no proportion is specified, the Company shall be entitled to treat the first named proxy as
representing the entire number of Shares entered against his/her name in the Depository Register and any
second named proxy as an alternate to the first named or at the Company’s option to treat the instrument of
proxy as invalid.

(5) A member who is a relevant intermediary (as defined in Section 181 of the Act) is entitled to appoint more than
two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the AGM, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached
to a different share or shares held by such member. Where such member appoints more than one proxy, the
appointments shall be invalid unless the member specifies the number of shares in relation to which each proxy has
been appointed.

(6) A proxy needs not be a member of the Company.

(7) SRS Investors who hold Shares through SRS Operators:

(a) may vote at the AGM if they are appointed as proxies by their respective SRS Operators, and should
contact their respective SRS Operators if they have any queries regarding their appointment as
proxies; or

(b) may appoint the Chairman of the AGM as proxy to vote on their behalf at the AGM, in which case
they should approach their SRS Operators to submit their votes by 5.00 p.m. on 19 July 2024.

(8) The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited together with the power of attorney (if any)
under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof:

(a) if sent either by post or hand, be received at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar in
Singapore, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Pte Ltd, at 1 Harbourfront Avenue, Keppel Bay Tower #14-07,
Singapore 098632; or

(b) if submitted by email, be received by Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited at
srs.proxy@boardroomlimited.com
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by 2.00 p.m. on 27 July 2024, being not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for the
AGM in accordance with the instructions stated herein.

A member who wishes to submit an instrument of proxy must complete and sign the proxy form, before
submitting it by post to the address provided above, or before scanning and sending it by email to the email
address provided above. The Company shall be entitled to and will treat any valid instrument appointing a
proxy as valid instrument for the member’s proxy to attend, speak and vote at the AGM.

(9) The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly
authorized in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it
must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorized.
Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by an attorney on behalf of the appointor,
the letter or power of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof shall if required by law, be duly stamped and
must be lodged with the instrument.

(10) A member can appoint the Chairman of the AGM as his/her/its proxy but this is not mandatory. If a member
wishes to appoint the Chairman of the AGM as proxy, such member (whether individual or corporation) must
give specific instructions as to voting for, voting against, or abstentions from voting on, each resolution in
the instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy. If no specific instruction as to voting is given
or in the event of any other matter arising at the AGM and at any adjournment thereof, the Chairman of the
AGM will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion.

(11) A member may ask questions relating to the items on the agenda of the AGM by:

(a) submitting questions via mail to the Company’s registered office at 133, North Bridge Road, #08-03
Chinatown Point, Singapore 059413;

(b) email to agm@samurai2kaerosol.com; or
(c) if a member is attending the AGM in person, live at the AGM.

(12) All questions being submitted ahead of the AGM must be submitted by 2.00 p.m. on 22 July 2024. When
submitting the questions via mail or email, please provide the Company with the following details for
verification purposes:
(a) Full name;
(b) NRIC number;
(c) Current residential address;
(d) Contact number; and
(e) Number of shares held and the manner in which you hold Shares in the Company (e.g. via CDP or

SRS).

Please note that the Company will address substantial and relevant questions relating to the resolutions to be
tabled at the AGM by 24 July 2024. The Company endeavours to address (i) subsequent clarifications sought,
(ii) follow-up questions, or (iii) substantial and relevant questions which are received after 2.00 p.m. on 22
July 2024 at the AGM itself. Where substantially similar questions are received, we will consolidate such
questions and consequently not all questions may be individually addressed.

The Company will, within one month after the date of the AGM, publish the minutes of the AGM on SGXNet
and the minutes will include the responses to the substantial and relevant questions raised during the AGM.

(13) The Company shall be entitled to reject an instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete,
improperly completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the
instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition, in the
case of Shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy
or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have Shares entered against his name
in the Depository Register as at 72 hours before the time appointed for holding the AGM, as certified by The
Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.
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(14) The appointment of a proxy or proxies shall not preclude a shareholder from attending and voting in person
at the AGM. If a shareholder attends the AGM in person, the appointment of a proxy or proxies shall be
deemed to be revoked, and the Company reserves the right to refuse to admit such proxy or proxies to the
AGM.

PPeerrssoonnaall DDaattaa PPrriivvaaccyy

By submitting a proxy form appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the AGM
and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the
member’s personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the
Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the AGM (including any adjournment thereof) and
the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the AGM (including
any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules,
regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal
data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the
prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its
agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the
member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a
result of the member’s breach of warranty.
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SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED
Company No. 201606168C
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
PROXY FORM
(Please see notes overleaf before completing this
Form)

I/We, (Name) NRIC/Passport No./Company’s Registration No.

of (Address)
being a member/members of SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED (the “Company”), hereby appoint:

NNaammee AAddddrreessss NNRRIICC//PPaassssppoorrtt NNoo.. PPrrooppoorrttiioonn ooff SShhaarreehhoollddiinnggss

NNoo.. ooff SShhaarreess %%

and/or (delete as appropriate)
NNaammee AAddddrreessss NNRRIICC//PPaassssppoorrtt NNoo.. PPrrooppoorrttiioonn ooff SShhaarreehhoollddiinnggss

NNoo.. ooff SShhaarreess %%

or failing him/her , the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/our proxy/proxies to vote for *me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting (“AAGGMM”) of the Company to be held on Tue sday, 30 July 2024 at 2.00p.m at Chartroom, Level 2, Raffles Marina Ltd, 10 Tuas West
Drive, Singapore 638404 and at any adjournment thereof. *I/We direct *my/our proxy/proxies to vote on the business before the AGM as
indicated hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given , the *proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting at * his/her/their
discretion , as * he/she/they will on any other matter arising at the AGM and at any adjournment thereof. All resolutions put to vote
at the AGM shall be decided by poll.
NNoottee:: IIff yyoouu wwiisshh ttoo eexxeerrcciissee aallll yyoouurr vvootteess ““FFoorr””,, ““AAggaaiinnsstt”” oorr ““AAbbssttaaiinn””,, pplleeaassee iinnddiiccaattee wwiitthh aann ““XX”” wwiitthhiinn tthhee bbooxx pprroovviiddeedd.. AAlltteerrnnaattiivveellyy,, pplleeaassee
iinnddiiccaattee tthhee nnuummbbeerr ooff vvootteess aass aapppprroopprriiaattee..

NNoo.. RReessoolluuttiioonnss rreellaattiinngg ttoo:: FFoorr AAggaaiinnsstt AAbbssttaaiinn

1. Adoption of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the financial year ended 31 March 2024 together with the Directors’ Statement and Independent
Auditors’ Report

2. Re-election of Mr Hau Hock Khun as a Director

3. Re-election of Dato’ Chang Chor Choong as a Director

4. Approval of the payment of Directors’ Fees of RM316,370 for the financial year ending 31 March 2025

5. Re-appointment of Baker Tilly TFW LLP as Auditors

6. Authority to allot and issue new shares under Section 161 of the Companies Act

7. Authority to allot and issue new shares under the Performance Share Plan

8. Authority to allot and issue shares under the Employee Share Option Scheme

9. Renewal of Share Purchase Mandate

Dated this day of 2024

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES IN:
(a) CDP Register
(b) Register of Members

IMPORTANT:

1. A relevant intermediary may appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend the AGM

and vote (please see note 5 for the definition of “relevant intermediary”).

2. For investors who have used their Supplementary Retirement Scheme (“SRS”)

monies to buy shares in the Company, this Proxy Form is not valid for use and

shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or is purported to be used

by them . SRS investors should contact their respective SRS Operators if they

have any queries regarding their appointment as proxies . SRS investors who
wish to appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy should approach their

respective SRS Operators to submit their votes by 5.00 p.m. on 19 July 2024.

3. Please read the notes to this Proxy Form .

✀

Signature(s ) of Shareholder(s ) or
Common Seal of Corporate Shareholder
IIMMPPOORRTTAANNTT:: PPLLEEAASSEE RREEAADD NNOOTTEESS OOVVEERRLLEEAAFF



NNootteess::
1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you . If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository

Register (as defined in Section 81SF of Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore or any statutory
modification thereof, as the case may be), you should insert that number of shares . If you have shares registered in your
name in the Register of Members, you should insert that number of shares . If you have shares entered against your name in
the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the
aggregate number of shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the
Register of Members . If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all
the shares held by you .

2. A member who is not a relevant intermediary may appoint not more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote on his/her
behalf at the AGM. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, he/she shall specify the proportion of his/her
shareholding to be represented by each proxy in the proxy form . If no proportion is specified, the Company shall be
entitled to treat the first named proxy as representing the entire number of Shares entered against his/her name in the
Depository Register and any second named proxy as an alternate to the first named or at the Company’s option to treat the
instrument of proxy as invalid . A proxy needs not be a member of the Company .

3. A member can appoint the Chairman of the AGM as his/her proxy but this is not mandatory . If a member wishes to appoint the
Chairman of the AGM as proxy, such member (whether individual or corporation) must give specific instructions as to voting
for, voting against, or abstentions from voting on, each resolution in the instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as
proxy . If no specific direction as to voting is given or in the event of any other matter arising at the AGM and at any
adjournment thereof, the Chairman of the AGM will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion.

4. A member who is a relevant intermediary (as defined in Section 181 of the Act) is entitled to appoint more than two proxies to
attend, speak and vote at the AGM, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares
held by such member. Where such member appoints more than one proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless the member
specifies the number of shares in relation to which each proxy has been appointed.

5. Pursuant to Section 181 of the Companies Act 1967, any member who is a relevant intermediary is entitled to appoint one
or more proxies to attend, speak and vote at the AGM, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to
a different share or shares held by such member. Relevant intermediary is either:
(i) a banking corporation licensed under the Banking Act 1970 or its wholly-owned subsidiary which provides

nominee services and holds shares in that capacity;
(ii) a capital market service licence holder which provides custodial services for securities under the Securities and

Futures Act 2001 and holds shares in that capacity.

6. The duly completed instrument appointing a proxy or proxies together with the letter of power of attorney, if any, under
which it is signed or a duly certified copy thereof, must be
(a) deposited at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar in Singapore, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte

Ltd, either by hand or post at 1 Harbourfront Avenue, Keppel Bay Tower #14-07, Singapore 098632; or
(b) if submitted by email, be received by Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited at srs .proxy@boardroomlimited .com

by 2.00 p.m. on 27 July 2024 being not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for the AGM in
accordance with the instructions, being stated herein .

7. Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter of power of attorney
or a duly certified copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be lodged with the instrument of proxy;
failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid .

8. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly
completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of
the appoint or specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies .

9. In the case of a member whose shares are entered against his/her name in the Depository Register, the Company may
reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares
entered against his/her name in the Depository Register seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for holding the
AGM, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company .

10. The appointment of a proxy or proxies shall not preclude a shareholder from attending and voting in person at the AGM. If a
shareholder attends the AGM in person, the appointment of a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to be revoked, and the
Company reserves the right to refuse to admit such proxy or proxies to the AGM.

PPeerrssoonnaall DDaattaa PPrriivvaaccyy::

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personal
data privacy terms set out in the Notice of AGM.
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SSUUMMMMAARRYY SSHHEEEETT FFOORR SSHHAARREE PPUURRCCHHAASSEE MMAANNDDAATTEE

The Sponsor and the SGX-ST assume no responsibility for the correctness of any of the statements made,
reports contained or opinions expressed in this Appendix. If you are in doubt as to the action that you should
take, you should consult your stockbroker or other professional adviser immediately.

Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited (the “CCoommppaannyy”) maintains its accounts and publishes its financial statements in RM.
This Appendix contains conversion of certain S$ amounts into RM (or vice versa) at specified rates solely for the
convenience of the reader. Unless otherwise indicated, the financial figures in this Appendix are converted on
the basis of S$1 = RM3.5125. However, such conversion should not be construed as representing that the RM
amounts have been or could be converted into S$ amounts, or vice versa, at those or any other rates.

11.. SShhaarreess PPuurrcchhaasseedd IInn TThhee PPrreevviioouuss TTwweellvvee MMoonntthhss

The Company has not made any share purchases in the last 12 months immediately preceding 24 June 2024
(the “LLaatteesstt PPrraaccttiiccaabbllee DDaattee”).

22.. PPrrooppoosseedd RReenneewwaall OOff TThhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee

This ordinary resolution if passed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“22002244 AAGGMM”),
will renew the share purchase mandate (the “SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee”) approved by the shareholders of the
Company from the date of the 2024 AGM and expiring on the earliest of the date the next annual general
meeting of the Company is held or is required by law to be held, the date on which the share purchases are
carried out to the full extent of the Share Purchase Mandate or the date the said mandate is revoked or
varied by the Company in a general meeting (the “RReelleevvaanntt PPeerriioodd”) (the “SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee RReenneewwaall
RReessoolluuttiioonn”).

33.. RRaattiioonnaallee ffoorr tthhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee

The Share Purchase Mandate authorising the Company to purchase or acquire its ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company (“SShhaarreess”) would give the Company the flexibility to undertake share purchases or
acquisitions up to the limit described in Section 4 below at any time, subject to market conditions, during
the period when the Share Purchase Mandate is in force.

The rationale for the Share Purchase Mandate includes the following:

(a) The Share Purchase Mandate would provide the Company with a mechanism to facilitate the return
of surplus cash over and above its ordinary capital requirements and investment needs to its
Shareholders in an expedient and cost-efficient manner.

(b) The purchase or acquisition of Shares under the Share Purchase Mandate is one of the ways in which
the return on equity of the Company may be enhanced, thereby increasing Shareholders’ value.
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(c) The Share Purchase Mandate will allow the Directors to exercise greater control over the Company’s
share capital structure, dividend policy and cash reserves, with a view to enhancing the net tangible
assets and/or earnings per Share.

(d) The purchase or acquisition of Shares under the Share Purchase Mandate will help to mitigate short-
term share price volatility by stabilising the supply and demand of issued Shares and offset the
effects of short-term share price speculation, thereby supporting the fundamental value of the
issued Shares and bolstering Shareholders’ confidence.

(e) The Share Purchase Mandate will allow the Directors to effectively manage and minimise any dilution
impact associated with any share-based incentive scheme of the Company.

The purchase or acquisition of Shares will only be undertaken if the Directors believe that it can benefit the
Company and Shareholders. Shareholders should note that purchases or acquisitions of Shares pursuant to
the Share Purchase Mandate may not be carried out to the full 10% limit as authorised. No purchase or
acquisition of Shares will be made in circumstances which would have or may have a material adverse effect
on the liquidity of Shares or the financial position of the Company and the Group or result in the Company
being delisted. The Directors will use their best efforts to ensure that after a purchase or acquisition of
Shares pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate, the number of Shares remaining in the hands of the public
will not fall to such a level as to cause market illiquidity or adversely affect the orderly trading and listing
status of the Shares on the SGX-ST.

44.. AAuutthhoorriittyy aanndd LLiimmiittss ooff tthhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee

The authority and limitations placed on purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company under the Share
Purchase Mandate, are summarised below:

(a) Maximum Number of Shares

The Company may purchase only Shares which are issued and fully paid-up. The total number of
Shares that may be purchased or acquired by the Company is limited to that number of Shares
representing not more than 10% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and
subsidiary holdings) as at the date of the annual general meeting (“AAGGMM”) at which the resolution
authorising the Share Purchase Mandate is passed (the “AApppprroovvaall DDaattee”), unless the Company has
thereafter, at any time during the Relevant Period, reduced its share capital in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, in which event the total number of issued Shares of the
Company shall be taken to be the total number of issued Shares as altered (excluding treasury
shares and subsidiary holdings).

FFoorr iilllluussttrraattiivvee ppuurrppoosseess oonnllyy, based on the issued share capital of the Company as at the Latest
Practicable Date of 334,564,787 Shares (excluding treasury shares or subsidiary holdings), and
assuming that no new Shares are issued on or prior to the date of the AGM, not more than
33,456,478 Shares, representing 10% of the issued Shares as at that date, may be purchased or
acquired by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate.
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WWhhiillee tthhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee wwoouulldd aauutthhoorriissee tthhee ppuurrcchhaassee oorr aaccqquuiissiittiioonn ooff SShhaarreess uupp ttoo tthhee
1100%% lliimmiitt,, SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss sshhoouulldd nnoottee tthhaatt ppuurrcchhaasseess oorr aaccqquuiissiittiioonnss ooff SShhaarreess ppuurrssuuaanntt ttoo tthhee SShhaarree
PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee mmaayy nnoott bbee ccaarrrriieedd oouutt uupp ttoo tthhee ffuullll 1100%% lliimmiitt aass aauutthhoorriisseedd,, oorr aatt aallll.. IInn
ppaarrttiiccuullaarr,, nnoo ppuurrcchhaassee oorr aaccqquuiissiittiioonn ooff SShhaarreess wwoouulldd bbee mmaaddee iinn cciirrccuummssttaanncceess wwhhiicchh wwoouulldd hhaavvee
oorr mmaayy hhaavvee aa mmaatteerriiaall aaddvveerrssee eeffffeecctt oonn tthhee ffllooaatt,, lliiqquuiiddiittyy oorr oorrddeerrllyy ttrraaddiinngg ooff tthhee SShhaarreess aanndd//oorr
ffiinnaanncciiaall ppoossiittiioonn ooff tthhee GGrroouupp..

(b) Duration of Authority

Purchases or acquisitions of Shares may be made, at any time and from time to time, from the
Approval Date up to the earliest of:

(i) the date on which the next annual general meeting of the Company is held or is required by
law to be held;

(ii) the date on which the purchase or acquisition of Shares have been carried out to the full
extent of the Share Purchase Mandate; or

(iii) the date on which the authority conferred by the Share Purchase Mandate is varied or
revoked by an ordinary resolution of Shareholders in a general meeting.

The authority conferred on the Directors by the Share Purchase Mandate to purchase or acquire
Shares may be renewed at the next annual general meeting or at an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company to be convened immediately after the conclusion or adjournment of the next annual
general meeting. When seeking the approval of the Shareholders for the renewal of the Share
Purchase Mandate, the Company is required to disclose details pertaining to purchases or
acquisitions of Shares made pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate during the previous 12
months, including the total number of Shares purchased, the purchase price per Share or the
highest and lowest prices paid for such purchases of Shares, where relevant, and the total
consideration paid for such purchases or acquisitions.

(c) Manner of Purchase or Acquisition of Shares

Purchases or acquisitions of Shares may be made on the SGX-ST (“MMaarrkkeett PPuurrcchhaasseess”) and/or
otherwise than on the SGX-ST, in accordance with an equal access scheme (as defined in Section
76C(6) of the Companies Act) (“OOffff--MMaarrkkeett PPuurrcchhaasseess”).

Market Purchases refer to purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company effected through the
SGX-ST’s trading system, through one or more duly licensed stockbrokers appointed by the
Company for the purpose.

Off-Market Purchases refer to purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company made under an
equal access scheme or schemes for the purchase or acquisitions of Shares from Shareholders. The
Directors may impose such terms and conditions, which are not inconsistent with the Share
Purchase Mandate, the Catalist Rules and the Companies Act, as they consider fit in the interests of
the Company in connection with or in relation to an equal access scheme or schemes. Under the
Companies Act, an equal access scheme must satisfy all the following conditions:
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(i) offers for the purchase or acquisition of issued shares shall be made to every person who holds
issued shares to purchase or acquire the same percentage of their issued shares;

(ii) all of those persons shall be given a reasonable opportunity to accept the offers made; and

(iii) the terms of all the offers are the same, except that there shall be disregarded:

(aa) differences in consideration attributable to the fact that offers may relate to shares
with different accrued dividend entitlements;

(bb) (if applicable) differences in consideration attributable to the fact that offers relate to
shares with different amounts remaining unpaid; and

(cc) differences in the offers introduced solely to ensure that each person is left with a
whole number of shares.

In addition, the Catalist Rules provide that, in making an Off-Market Purchase in accordance with an
equal access scheme, the Company must issue an offer document to all Shareholders, which must
contain at least the following information:

(i) the terms and conditions of the offer;

(ii) the period and procedures for acceptances;

(iii) the reasons for the proposed share purchase or acquisition;

(iv) the consequences, if any, of share purchases or acquisitions by the Company that will arise
under the Take-over Code or other applicable take-over rules;

(v) whether the share purchase or acquisition, if made, could affect the listing of the Shares on the
SGX-ST;

(vi) details of any share purchases made by the Company in the previous 12 months (whether
Market Purchases or Off-Market Purchases), giving the total number of Shares purchased,
the purchase price per Share or the highest and lowest prices paid for the purchases, where
relevant, and the total consideration paid for the purchases or acquisitions; and

(vii)whether the Shares purchased by the Company will be cancelled or kept as treasury shares.

(d) Maximum Purchase Price

The purchase price (excluding brokerage, stamp duties, commissions, applicable goods and services
tax and other related expenses) to be paid for the Shares will be determined by the Directors.

However, the purchase price to be paid for the Shares must not exceed:
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(i) in the case of a Market Purchase, 105% of the Average Closing Price (as defined below); and
(ii) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase pursuant to an equal access scheme, 120% of the Average

Closing Price (as defined below),

(the “MMaaxxiimmuumm PPrriiccee”) in either case, excluding related expenses of the purchase.

For the above purposes:

“AAvveerraaggee CClloossiinngg PPrriiccee” means the average of the closing market prices of a Share over the last five
Market Days on which transactions in Shares were recorded, immediately preceding the day of the
Market Purchase by the Company or, as the case may be, the day of the making of the offer pursuant
to the Off-Market Purchase, and deemed to be adjusted for any corporate action that occurs after
such five-market day period; and

“ddaayy ooff tthhee mmaakkiinngg ooff tthhee ooffffeerr” means the day on which the Company announces its intention to
make an offer for the purchase or acquisition of Shares from Shareholders, stating the purchase price
(which shall not be more than the Maximum Price calculated on the foregoing basis) for each Share
and the relevant terms of the equal access scheme for effecting the Off-Market Purchase.

55.. SSttaattuuss ooff PPuurrcchhaasseedd oorr AAccqquuiirreedd SShhaarreess

Any Share which is purchased or acquired by the Company is deemed cancelled immediately on purchase or
acquisition (and all rights and privileges attached to that Share will expire on such cancellation), unless such
Share is held by the Company as a treasury share. At the time of each purchase or acquisition of Shares by
the Company, the Directors will decide whether the Shares purchased or acquired will be cancelled or kept
as treasury shares, or partly cancelled and partly kept as treasury shares, as the Directors deem fit in the
interests of the Company at that time.

(a) Cancelled Shares

Shares which are cancelled will be automatically delisted by the SGX-ST, and certificates in respect
thereof will be cancelled and destroyed by the Company as soon as reasonably practicable following
the settlement of such purchased Shares.
The total number of issued Shares will be diminished by the number of Shares purchased or
acquired by the Company which are cancelled and not held as treasury shares.

(b) Treasury Shares

Under the Companies Act, Shares purchased or acquired by the Company may be held or dealt with
as treasury shares. Some of the key provisions on treasury shares under the Companies Act are
summarised below:
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(i) Maximum Holdings

The aggregate number of Shares held as treasury shares cannot at any time exceed 10% of the total
number of issued Shares. Any Shares in excess of this limit shall be disposed of orcancelled in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act before the end of the period of six
months beginning with the day on which that contravention occurs, or such further period as the
Registrar may allow.

(ii) Voting and Other Rights

The Company shall not exercise any right in respect of the treasury shares and any purported
exercise of such a right is void. In particular, the Company will not have the right to attend or
vote at meetings and for the purposes of the Companies Act, the Company shall be treated as
having no right to vote and the treasury shares shall be treated as having no voting rights.

In addition, no dividend may be paid, and no other distribution (whether in cash or otherwise) of
the Company’s assets may be made, to the Company in respect of the treasury shares. However,
the allotment of shares as fully paid bonus shares in respect of the treasury shares is allowed.
Also, a subdivision or consolidation of any treasury share into treasury shares of a greater or
smaller number is allowed, so long as the total value of the treasury shares after the subdivision
or consolidation is the same as before.

(iii) Disposal and Cancellation

Where Shares are held as treasury shares, the Company may at any time (but subject always to
the Take-over Code):

(aa) sell the treasury shares for cash;

(ab) transfer the treasury shares for the purposes of or pursuant to any share scheme, whether
for employees, directors or other persons;

(ac) transfer the treasury shares as consideration for the acquisition of shares in or assets of
another company or assets of a person;

(ad) cancel the treasury shares; or

(ae) sell, transfer or otherwise use the treasury shares for such other purposes as may be
prescribed by the Minister for Finance.

Under Rule 704(31) of the Catalist Rules, an immediate announcement must be made of any sale,
transfer, cancellation and/or use of treasury shares (in each case, the “uussaaggee”). Such announcement
must include details such as the date of the usage, the purpose of the usage, the number of
treasury shares comprised in the usage, the number of treasury shares before and after the usage,
the percentage of the number of treasury shares comprised in the usage against the total number
of issued shares (of the same class as the treasury shares) which are listed on the Catalist before
and after the usage, and the value of the treasury shares if they are used for a sale or transfer or
cancelled.
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66.. SSoouurrccee ooff FFuunnddss

The Companies Act permits the Company to purchase or acquire its Shares out of capital or
distributable profits so long as the Company is solvent. For this purpose, the Company is solvent if
at the date of payment for the Shares purchased or acquired, the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) there is no ground on which the Company could be found to be unable to pay its debts;

(b) if:

(i) it is intended to commence winding up of the Company within the period of 12 months
immediately after the date of the payment, the Company will be able to pay its debts in
full within the period of 12 months after the date of commencement of the winding up; or

(ii) it is not intended so to commence winding up, the Company will be able to pay its debts
as they fall due during the period of 12 months immediately after the date of the payment;
and

(c) the value of the Company’s assets is not less than the value of its liabilities (including)
contingent liabilities) and will not, after the purchase or acquisition of Shares, become less
than the value of its liabilities (including contingent liabilities).

The Company intends to use internal sources of funds or external borrowings, or a combination of
internal resources and external borrowings, to finance the purchase or acquisition of Shares
pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate. However, in considering the option of external borrowing,
the Directors will consider particularly the prevailing gearing level of the Company and the costs of
such financing.

77.. FFiinnaanncciiaall EEffffeeccttss

It is not possible for the Company to realistically calculate or quantify the impact of purchases that may be
made pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate on the net tangible asset value or earnings per Share as the
resultant effect would depend on factors such as the aggregate numbers of Shares purchased, the purchase
prices paid at the relevant times, whether the Shares purchased or acquired are held in treasury or
immediately cancelled on purchase or acquisition, how the Shares held in treasury are subsequently dealt
with by the Company in accordance with Section 76K of the Companies Act, and the amounts (if any)
borrowed by the Company to fund the purchases.

Where the purchase of Shares is made out of distributable profits, such purchase (including costs incidental
to the purchase) will correspondingly reduce the amount available for the distribution of cash dividends by
the Company. Where the purchase of Shares is made out of capital, the amount available for the distribution
of cash dividends by the Company will not be reduced.

Where the purchase of Shares is financed through internal resources, it will reduce the cash reserves of the
Group and the Company, and thus the current assets and shareholders’ funds of the Group and the
Company. This will result in an increase in the gearing ratios of the Group and the Company and a decline in
the current ratios of the Group and the Company.
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The actual impact on the gearing and current ratios will depend on the number of Shares purchased or
acquired and the prices at which the Shares are purchased or acquired.

Where the purchase or acquisition of Shares is financed through external borrowings or financing, there
would be an increase in the gearing ratios of the Group and the Company, and a decline in the current ratios
and shareholders’ funds of the Group and the Company, with the actual impact dependent on the number of
Shares purchased or acquired and the prices at which the Shares are purchased or acquired.

For illustrative purposes only and on the basis of the following assumptions:

(a) that the purchase or acquisition by the Company of Shares was made on 1 April 2023

(b) that (i) in the case of the purchase or acquisition of Shares made entirely out of capital, the
Company purchased or acquired 16,728,239 Shares, representing 5% of its issued Shares
(excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) as at 31 March 2024, and (ii) in the case of
the purchase or acquisition of Shares made entirely out of profits, the Company purchased or
acquired 1,672,823 Shares, representing 0.50% of its issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and
subsidiary holdings) as at 31 March 2024;

(c) that (i) in the case of Market Purchases, the Company purchased or acquired Shares at the
Maximum Price of S$0.08631 for each Share (being 105% of the Average Closing Price of the
Shares for the five Market Days on which transactions in the Shares were recorded immediately
preceding the Latest Practicable Date), and (ii) in the case of Off-Market Purchases, the Company
purchased or acquired Shares at the Maximum Price of S$0.09864 for each Share (being 120% of
the Average Closing Price of the Shares for the five Market Days on which transactions in the
Shares were recorded immediately preceding the Latest Practicable Date);

(d) that the purchase or acquisition of Shares by the Company was financed entirely using its internal
sources of funds and required funds amounting to:

(i) in the case of Market Purchases made entirely out of capital, S$1,443,814.31 (equivalent to
RM5,071,397.76);

(ii) in the case of Off-Market Purchases made entirely out of capital, S$1,650,073.49
(equivalent to RM5,795,883.15);

(iii) in the case of Market Purchases made entirely out of profits, S$144,381.35 (equivalent to
RM507,139.50 and

(iv) in the case of Off-Market Purchases made entirely out of profits, S$165,007.26 (equivalent
to RM579,588.00; and

(e) the transaction costs incurred for the purchase or acquisition of Shares pursuant to the Share
Purchase Mandate are insignificant and have not been taken into account in computing the financial
effects,
the financial effects of Share purchases by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate on
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2024, are set out below.
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SScceennaarriioo 11

PPuurrcchhaassee oorr aaccqquuiissiittiioonn ooff 1166,,772288,,223399 SShhaarreess bbyy tthhee CCoommppaannyy ppuurrssuuaanntt ttoo tthhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee mmaaddee
eennttiirreellyy oouutt ooff ccaappiittaall aanndd hheelldd aass ttrreeaassuurryy sshhaarreess

GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy

BBeeffoorree SShhaarree
PPuurrcchhaassee

AAfftteerr SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee BBeeffoorree
SShhaarree

PPuurrcchhaassee

AAfftteerr SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee

MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

OOffff--
MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

OOffff--
MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

AAss aatt 3311 MMaarrcchh 22002244 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

Share capital 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165

Reserves -9,209 -9,209 -9,209 688 688 688

Retained earnings 28,999 28,999 28,999 -9,367 -9,367 -9,367

Treasury shares -64 -5,135 -5,860 -64 -5,135 -5,860

Non-controlling interest -214 -214 -214 - - -

Total shareholders’ equity 76,677 71,606 70,881 48,422 43,351 42,626

Net tangible assets 74,250 69,179 68,454 48,422 43,351 42,626

Current assets 73,790 68,719 67,994 35,160 30,089 29,364

Current liabilities 30,633 30,633 30,633 4,391 4,391 4,391

Total borrowings 34,602 34,602 34,602 - - -

Number of Shares(1) (‘000) 334,565 317,837 317,837 334,565 317,837 317,837

Weighted average number of
Shares (1) (‘000) 334,565 317,837 317,837 334,565 317,837 317,837

FFiinnaanncciiaall RRaattiiooss

Net tangible assets per
Share(2) (sen) 22.19 21.77 21.54 14.47 13.64 13.41

Earnings per Share (sen) 0.46 0.48 0.48 -0.01 -0.01 -0.01

Gearing ratio(3) (times) 0.45 0.48 0.49 - - -

Current ratio(4) (times) 2.41 2.24 2.22 8.01 6.85 6.69

NNootteess::

(1) Excluding treasury shares.

(2) Net tangible assets per Share is computed based on total net assets less intangible assets, divided by the number of
issued Shares (excluding treasury shares).

(3) Gearing ratio equals total borrowings divided by shareholders’ funds (excluding non-controlling interest).

(4) Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.
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SScceennaarriioo 22

PPuurrcchhaassee oorr aaccqquuiissiittiioonn ooff 11,,667722,,882233 SShhaarreess bbyy tthhee CCoommppaannyy ppuurrssuuaanntt ttoo tthhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee mmaaddee
eennttiirreellyy oouutt ooff pprrooffiittss aanndd hheelldd aass ttrreeaassuurryy sshhaarreess

GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy

BBeeffoorree SShhaarree
PPuurrcchhaassee

AAfftteerr SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee BBeeffoorree
SShhaarree

PPuurrcchhaassee

AAfftteerr SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee

MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

OOffff--
MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

OOffff--
MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

AAss aatt 3311 MMaarrcchh 22002244 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

Share capital 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 56,586

Reserves -9,209 -9,209 -9,209 688 688 688

Retained earnings 28,999 28,999 28,999 -9,367 -9,367 -9,367

Treasury shares
-64 -571 -644 -64 -571 -644

Non-controlling interest -214 -214 -214 - - -

Total shareholders’ equity 76,677 76,170 76,097 48,422 47,915 47,842

Net tangible assets 74,250 73,743 73,670 48,422 47,915 47,842

Current assets 73,790 73,283 73,210 35,160 34,653 34,580

Current liabilities 30,633 30,633 30,633 4,391 4,391 4,391

Total borrowings 34,602 34,602 34,602 - - -

Number of Shares(1) (‘000) 334,565 332,892 332,892 334565 332,892 332,892

Weighted average number of
Shares(1) (‘000) 334,565 332,892 332,892 334565 332,892 332,892

FFiinnaanncciiaall RRaattiiooss

Net tangible assets per
Share(2) (sen) 22.19 22.15 22.13 14.47 14.39 14.37

Earnings per Share (sen) 0.46 0.46 0.46 -0.01 -0.01 -0.01

Gearing ratio(3) (times) 0.45 0.46 0.46 - - -

Current ratio(4) (times) 2.41 2.39 2.39 8.01 7.89 7.88

NNootteess::

(1) Excluding treasury shares.

(2) Net tangible assets per Share is computed based on total net assets less intangible assets, divided by the number of
issued Shares (excluding treasury shares).

(3) Gearing ratio equals total borrowings divided by shareholders’ funds (excluding non-controlling interest).

(4) Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.

130ANNUAL REPORT 2024/ SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED



APPENDIX

SScceennaarriioo 33

PPuurrcchhaassee oorr aaccqquuiissiittiioonn ooff 1166,,772288,,223399 SShhaarreess bbyy tthhee CCoommppaannyy ppuurrssuuaanntt ttoo tthhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee mmaaddee
eennttiirreellyy oouutt ooff ccaappiittaall aanndd ccaanncceelllleedd

GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy

BBeeffoorree SShhaarree
PPuurrcchhaassee

AAfftteerr SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee BBeeffoorree
SShhaarree

PPuurrcchhaassee

AAfftteerr SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee

MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

OOffff--
MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

OOffff--
MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

AAss aatt 3311 MMaarrcchh 22002244 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

Share capital 57,165 52,094 51,369 57,165 52,094 51,369

Reserves -9,209 -9,209 -9,209 688 688 688

Retained earnings 28,999 28,999 28,999 -9,367 -9,367 -9,367

Treasury shares -64 -64 -64 -64 -64 -64

Non-controlling interest -214 -214 -214 - - -

Total shareholders’ equity 76,677 71,606 70,881 48,422 43,351 42,626

Net tangible assets 74,250 69,179 68,454 48,422 43,351 42,626

Current assets 73,790 68,719 67,994 35,160 30,089 29,364

Current liabilities 30,633 30,633 30,633 4,391 4,391 4,391

Total borrowings 34,602 34,602 34,602 - - -

Number of Shares(1) (‘000) 334,565 317,837 317,837 334,565 317,837 317,837

Weighted average number of
Shares(1) (‘000) 334,565 317,837 317,837 334,565 317,837 317,837

FFiinnaanncciiaall RRaattiiooss

Net tangible assets per
Share(2) (sen) 22.19 21.77 21.54 14.47 13.64 13.41

Earnings per Share (sen) 0.46 0.48 0.48 -0.01 -0.01 -0.01

Gearing ratio(3) (times) 0.45 0.48 0.49 - - -

Current ratio(4) (times) 2.41 2.24 2.22 8.01 6.85 6.69

NNootteess::

(1) Excluding treasury shares.

(2) Net tangible assets per Share is computed based on total net assets less intangible assets, divided by the number of
issued Shares (excluding treasury shares).

(3) Gearing ratio equals total borrowings divided by shareholders’ funds (excluding non-controlling interest).

(4) Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.
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SScceennaarriioo 44

PPuurrcchhaassee oorr aaccqquuiissiittiioonn ooff 11,,667722,,882233 SShhaarreess bbyy tthhee CCoommppaannyy ppuurrssuuaanntt ttoo tthhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee mmaaddee
eennttiirreellyy oouutt ooff pprrooffiittss aanndd ccaanncceelllleedd

GGrroouupp CCoommppaannyy

BBeeffoorree SShhaarree
PPuurrcchhaassee

AAfftteerr SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee BBeeffoorree
SShhaarree

PPuurrcchhaassee

AAfftteerr SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee

MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

OOffff--
MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

OOffff--
MMaarrkkeett
PPuurrcchhaassee

AAss aatt 3311 MMaarrcchh 22002244 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000 RRMM’’000000

Share capital 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165

Reserves -9,209 -9,209 -9,209 688 688 688

Retained earnings 28,999 28,492 28,419 -9,367 -9,874 -9,947

Treasury shares -64 -64 -64 -64 -64 -64

Non-controlling interest -214 -214 -214 - - -

Total shareholders’ equity 76,677 76,170 76,097 48,422 47,915 47,842

Net tangible assets 74,250 73,743 73,670 48,422 47,915 47,842

Current assets 73,790 73,283 73,210 35,160 34,653 34,580

Current liabilities 30,633 30,633 30,633 4,391 4,391 4,391

Total borrowings 34,602 34,602 34,602 - - -

Number of Shares(1) (‘000) 334,565 332,892 332,892 334,565 332,892 332,892

Weighted average number of
Shares(1) (‘000) 334,565 332,892 332,892 334,565 332,892 332,892

FFiinnaanncciiaall RRaattiiooss

Net tangible assets per
Share(2) (sen) 22.19 22.15 22.13 14.47 14.39 14.37

Earnings per Share (sen) 0.46 0.46 0.46 -0.01 -0.01 -0.01

Gearing ratio(3) (times) 0.45 0.46 0.46 - - -

Current ratio(4) (times) 2.41 2.39 2.39 8.01 7.89 7.88

NNootteess::

(1) Excluding treasury shares.

(2) Net tangible assets per Share is computed based on total net assets less intangible assets, divided by the number of
issued Shares (excluding treasury shares).

(3) Gearing ratio equals total borrowings divided by shareholders’ funds (excluding non-controlling interest).

(4) Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.
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SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss sshhoouulldd nnoottee tthhaatt tthhee ffiinnaanncciiaall eeffffeeccttss sseett oouutt aabboovvee aarree ppuurreellyy ffoorr iilllluussttrraattiivvee ppuurrppoosseess oonnllyy.. IInn
ppaarrttiiccuullaarr,, iitt iiss iimmppoorrttaanntt ttoo nnoottee tthhaatt tthhee aabboovvee aannaallyyssiiss iiss bbaasseedd oonn hhiissttoorriiccaall FFYY22002244 aauuddiitteedd nnuummbbeerrss aanndd iiss
nnoott nneecceessssaarriillyy rreefflleeccttiivvee ooff tthhee ffuuttuurree ffiinnaanncciiaall ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee ooff tthhee CCoommppaannyy aanndd tthhee GGrroouupp.. AAlltthhoouugghh tthhee SShhaarree
PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee wwoouulldd aauutthhoorriissee tthhee CCoommppaannyy ttoo ppuurrcchhaassee oorr aaccqquuiirree uupp ttoo 1100%% ooff tthhee iissssuueedd SShhaarreess
((eexxcclluuddiinngg ttrreeaassuurryy sshhaarreess aanndd ssuubbssiiddiiaarryy hhoollddiinnggss)),, tthhee CCoommppaannyy mmaayy nnoott ppuurrcchhaassee oorr aaccqquuiirree oorr bbee aabbllee ttoo
ppuurrcchhaassee oorr aaccqquuiirree 1100%% ooff tthhee iissssuueedd SShhaarreess iinn ffuullll.. IInn aaddddiittiioonn,, tthhee CCoommppaannyy mmaayy ccaanncceell aallll oorr ppaarrtt ooff tthhee
SShhaarreess ppuurrcchhaasseedd,, oorr hhoolldd aallll oorr ppaarrtt ooff tthhee SShhaarreess ppuurrcchhaasseedd iinn ttrreeaassuurryy..

88.. CCaattaalliisstt RRuulleess

Under the Catalist Rules, a listed company may purchase shares by way of Market Purchases at a price per
share which is not more than 5% above the average of the closing market prices of the shares over the last
five Market Days, on which transactions in the shares were recorded, before the day on which the purchases
were made and deemed to be adjusted for any corporate action that occurs after the relevant five-day period.
The Maximum Price for a Share in relation to Market Purchases by the Company, referred to in Section 4(d) of
this Circular, conforms to this restriction.

The Catalist Rules specify that a listed company shall report all purchases or acquisitions of its shares to the
SGX-ST not later than 9.00 a.m. (a) in the case of a Market Purchase, on the Market Day following the day of
purchase or acquisition of any of its shares and (b) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase under an equal
access scheme, on the second Market Day after the close of acceptances of the offer. Such announcement
must include details of the date of the purchases of the shares, the total number of shares purchased, the
number of shares cancelled, the number of shares held as treasury shares, the purchase price per share or
the highest and lowest prices paid for such shares (as applicable), the total consideration (including stamp
duties and clearing charges) paid or payable for the shares, and the cumulative number of shares purchased.
Such announcement will be made in the form prescribed by the Catalist Rules.

While the Catalist Rules do not expressly prohibit any purchase of shares by a listed company during any
particular time or times, because the listed company would be regarded as an “insider” in relation to any
proposed purchase or acquisition of its issued shares, the Company will not undertake any purchase or
acquisition of Shares pursuant to the proposed Share Purchase Mandate at any time after a price sensitive
development has occurred or has been the subject of a decision until the price sensitive information has
been publicly announced. In particular, in observing the best practices recommended in the Catalist Rules on
securities dealings, the Company will not purchase or acquire any Shares through Market Purchases during
the period of one month before the announcement of the Company’s half-year and full-year financial
statements.

99.. LLiissttiinngg SSttaattuuss oonn tthhee SSGGXX--SSTT

The Company is required under Rule 723 of the Catalist Rules to ensure that at least 10% of its issued Shares
(excluding preference shares, convertible equity securities and treasury shares) are in the hands of the
public. The “ppuubblliicc”, as defined in the Catalist Rules, are persons other than the Directors, Chief Executive
Officer, substantial shareholders and controlling shareholders of the Company and its subsidiaries, as well
as the associates (as defined in the Catalist Rules) of such persons.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were approximately 114,964,787 issued Shares in the hands of the
public (as defined above), representing approximately 34.36% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company. Assuming that the Company purchases its Shares through Market Purchases up to the full 10%
limit pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate and holds the purchased Shares as treasury shares, the
number of issued Shares in the hands of the public would be reduced to 81,508,309 Shares, representing
approximately 27.07% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) of the Company. As
at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company has 55,000 treasury shares and did not have any preference
shares. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company has granted 234,000 and 1,275,000 employees
share options (“ESOS”) expiring on 2 June 2029 and 30 May 2031 respectively to selected employees which
will entitle them to subscribe for a total of 1,509,000 new shares of the Company.

In view of the foregoing, the Company is of the view that there is, at present, a sufficient number of Shares
in public hands that would permit the Company to potentially undertake purchases of its Shares through
Market Purchases up to the full 10% limit pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate without:

(a) affecting adversely the listing status of the Shares on the SGX-ST;

(b) causing market illiquidity; or

(c) affecting adversely the orderly trading of Shares.

1100.. TTaaxx IImmpplliiccaattiioonnss

When a company purchases its own shares using its distributed profits or contributed capital, it will be
regarded as any other disposal of shares by the shareholders from whom the shares are acquired.

For income tax purposes, whether or not the proceeds received by the Shareholders are taxable in the
hands of the Shareholders who sell their Shares to the Company for which the purchases were made out of
distributed profits or contributed capital will depend on whether such proceeds are receipts of an income or
capital nature.

SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss sshhoouulldd nnoottee tthhaatt tthhee ffoorreeggooiinngg iiss nnoott ttoo bbee rreeggaarrddeedd aass aaddvviiccee oonn tthhee ttaaxx ppoossiittiioonn ooff aannyy
SShhaarreehhoollddeerr.. SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss wwhhoo aarree iinn ddoouubbtt aass ttoo tthheeiirr rreessppeeccttiivvee ttaaxx ppoossiittiioonnss oorr tthhee ttaaxx iimmpplliiccaattiioonnss ooff
SShhaarree ppuurrcchhaasseess bbyy tthhee CCoommppaannyy,, oorr,, wwhhoo mmaayy bbee ssuubbjjeecctt ttoo ttaaxx wwhheetthheerr iinn oorr oouuttssiiddee SSiinnggaappoorree,, sshhoouulldd
ccoonnssuulltt tthheeiirr oowwnn pprrooffeessssiioonnaall aaddvviisseerrss..

1111.. IImmpplliiccaattiioonnss ooff TTaakkee--oovveerr CCooddee

11.1 Obligation to Make a Take-over Offer

If as a result of any purchase or acquisition by the Company of its Shares, a Shareholder’s
proportionate interest in the voting capital of the Company increases, such increase will be treated as
an acquisition for the purposes of the Take-over Code. If such increase results in a change in control,
or as a result of such increase a Shareholder or group of Shareholders acting in concert obtain or
consolidate control, it may in certain circumstances give rise to an obligation on the part of such
Shareholder or Shareholders to make a take-over offer under Rule 14 of the Take-over Code.
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The circumstances under which Shareholders, including Directors and persons acting in concert with
them respectively will incur an obligation to make a take-over offer under Rule 14 after a purchase of
Shares by the Company are set out in Appendix 2 (“TTOOCC AAppppeennddiixx 22”) of the Take-over Code.

In relation to Directors and persons acting in concert with them, Rule 14 provides that unless
exempted (or if exempted, such exemption is subsequently revoked), Directors and persons acting in
concert with them will incur an obligation to make a take-over offer if, as a result of a purchase of
Shares by the Company:

(a) the percentage of voting rights held by such Directors and their concert parties in the Company
increases to 30% or more; or

(b) if they together hold between 30% and 50% of the Company’s voting rights, their voting rights
increase by more than 1% in any period of six months.

Under TOC Appendix 2, a Shareholder not acting in concert with the Directors will not be required to
make a take-over offer under Rule 14 if, as a result of the Company purchasing its Shares, the voting
rights of such Shareholder would increase to 30% or more, or, if such Shareholder holds between 30%
and 50% of the Company’s voting rights, the voting rights of such Shareholder would increase by
more than 1% in any period of six months. Such Shareholder need not abstain from voting in respect
of the resolution authorising the Share Purchase Mandate.

11.2 Persons Acting in Concert

Under the Take-over Code, persons acting in concert comprise individuals or companies who,
pursuant to an agreement or understanding (whether formal or informal) co-operate, through the
acquisition by any of them of shares in a company to obtain or consolidate control of that company.
Unless the contrary is established, the following persons will, inter alia, be presumed to be acting in
concert: (i) a company with any of its directors, together with their close relatives, related trusts as
well as companies controlled by any of the directors, their close relatives and related trusts; and (ii) a
company, its parent company, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, and their associated companies,
and companies of which such companies are associated companies, all with each other. For this
purpose, ownership or control of at least 20% but not more than 50% of the voting rights of a
company will be regarded as the test of associated company status.

11.3 Effect of Rule 14 and Appendix 2 of the Take-over Code

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr Ong Yoke En (Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company), Ms Lim Lay Yong (Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company, and
wife of Mr Ong Yoke En), Mr Ong How En (brother of Mr Ong Yoke En) and Ms Ong Yoke Hoi (sister of
Mr Ong Yoke En), who are deemed to be acting in concert with each other, collectively held 58.01% of
the issued Shares. They would not be obliged to make a take-over offer under Rule 14 of the Take-
over Code as a result of any purchase or acquisition of Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share
Purchase Mandate.

SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss wwhhoo aarree iinn aannyy ddoouubbtt aass ttoo wwhheetthheerr tthheeyy wwoouulldd iinnccuurr aannyy oobblliiggaattiioonn ttoo mmaakkee aa ttaakkee--oovveerr
ooffffeerr aass aa rreessuulltt ooff aannyy ppuurrcchhaassee ooff SShhaarreess bbyy tthhee CCoommppaannyy ppuurrssuuaanntt ttoo tthhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee MMaannddaattee
aarree aaddvviisseedd ttoo ccoonnssuulltt tthheeiirr pprrooffeessssiioonnaall aaddvviisseerrss aanndd//oorr tthhee SSIICC aanndd//oorr ootthheerr rreelleevvaanntt aauutthhoorriittiieess aatt
tthhee eeaarrlliieesstt ooppppoorrttuunniittyy bbeeffoorree tthheeyy aaccqquuiirree aannyy SShhaarreess dduurriinngg tthhee ppeerriioodd wwhheenn tthhee SShhaarree PPuurrcchhaassee
MMaannddaattee iiss iinn ffoorrccee..
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APPENDIX

1122.. RReeppoorrttiinngg RReeqquuiirreemmeennttss

Within 30 days of the passing of the Shareholders’ resolution to approve the Share Purchase Mandate,
the Directors shall lodge a copy of such resolution with the Registrar.

The Directors shall lodge with the Registrar a notice of Share purchase within 30 days of a Share
purchase. Such notification shall include the date of the purchase, the number of Shares purchased by
the Company, the number of Shares cancelled, the number of Shares held as treasury shares, the
Company’s issued share capital before and after the purchase, the amount of consideration paid by the
Company for the purchase, whether the Shares were purchased out of the profit or the capital of the
Company, and such other particulars as may be required in the prescribed form.

Within 30 days of the cancellation or disposal of treasury shares in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, the Directors shall lodge with the Registrar the notice of cancellation or disposal of
treasury shares in the prescribed form.

1133.. DDIIRREECCTTOORRSS’’ AANNDD SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALL SSHHAARREEHHOOLLDDEERRSS’’ IINNTTEERREESSTTSS

The interests of the Directors and substantial Shareholders in the share capital of the Company as at
the Latest Practicable Date, as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings and Register of
Substantial Shareholders, are as follows:

DDiirreecctt IInntteerreesstt DDeeeemmeedd IInntteerreesstt

NNuummbbeerr ooff SShhaarreess %% ooff
IIssssuueedd
SShhaarree
CCaappiittaall

((11))

NNuummbbeerr ooff SShhaarreess %% ooff
IIssssuueedd
SShhaarree
CCaappiittaall

((11))

DDiirreeccttoorrss

Ong Yoke En 139,152,000 41.59 - -

Lim Lay Yong 45,000,000 13.45 - -

Dato’ Chang Chor Choong 12,750,000 3.81 - -

Dato’ Loh Shin Siong Nil - - -

Lim Siang Kai - - - -

Hau Hock Khun - - - -

Lim Chong Huat - - - -

SSuubbssttaannttiiaall SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss ((ootthheerr
tthhaann DDiirreeccttoorrss)) - - - -

Note:
(1) Based on the total number of issued Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date, comprising

334,564,787 Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings).
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1144.. DDIIRREECCTTOORRSS’’ RREESSPPOONNSSIIBBIILLIITTYY SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT

The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information
given in this Appendix and confirm after making all reasonable enquiries that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, this Appendix constitutes full and true disclosure of all material facts about the
Share Purchase Mandate, the Company and its subsidiaries, and the Directors are not aware of any facts
the omission of which would make any statement in this Appendix misleading. Where information in
this Appendix has been extracted from published or otherwise publicly available sources or obtained
from a named source, the sole responsibility of the Directors has been to ensure that such information
has been accurately and correctly extracted from those sources and/or reproduced in this Appendix in
its proper form and context.

1155.. DDOOCCUUMMEENNTTSS AAVVAAIILLAABBLLEE FFOORR IINNSSPPEECCTTIIOONN

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the registered office of the Company at 133
North Bridge Road, #08-03 Chinatown Point, Singapore 059413, during normal business hours from the
date of this Appendix up to and including the date of the AGM:

(a) the Constitution of the Company; and

(b) the Annual Report of the Company for FY2024.

APPENDIX
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